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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HENANBLEE
Year ended 31 December

20204 20194 2018%F 20174 20165

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ARBTR ARETT ARBTE ARETT ARETET
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

WA Revenue 5,153,233 3,605,606 2238462 1,197,774 2,092,663
PR AT Profit before tax 1,329,129 1,226,809 937,350 444,745 588376
FsMFAY Income tax expense (588,655) (606,798) (536,382) (286,813) (249,986)
FAFE Profit for the year 740,474 620,011 400,968 157,932 338,390
FREMEE Other comprehensive (loss)/
(B18) Mz income for the year (30,551) (1,595) (1,524) 1,081 (781)
FAZHENELEE Total comprehensive income for
the year 709,923 618416 399,444 159,013 337,609
AT &AM - Attributable to:
BREEBA Owners of the parent 485,805 613,795 401,664 159,151 337,728
FEE RIS Non-controlling interests 224,118 4621 (2,220) (138) 119)
709,923 618416 399,444 159,013 337,609
R12A31H
As at 31 December
20204 20194 20184F 20174 20164F
2020 2019 2018 2017 2016
ARETR ARETT ARETRT ARETRT ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FERBEE Non-current assets 2,401,123 1,998,259 1612213 1,232,644 874,823
RBEE Current assets 10,337,869 6,618,999 8360615 6,471,996 4,427,231
B I=R Non-current liabilities 1,186,330 869,007 1,664,219 1,010,531 567,603
REEE Current liabilities 7,723,026 6,125,627 7,220,639 5,942,387 4,331,586
EESE Net assets 3,829,636 1,622,624 1,087,970 751,722 402,365
B Total equity 3,829,636 1,622,624 1,087,970 751,722 402,865
(SYNSIEZ 2PN/ Total equity attributable to
Bl owners of the parent 3,244,810 1,585,879 958,176 556,512 397,361
e Non-controlling interests 584,826 36,745 129,794 195,210 5,504

4 SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BWA SRR Dear Shareholders,

AAEBERRADNEFTS(EFL)MAMSZA  On behalf of the board of directors of the Company (the “Board”), | am

REESERARAR(ARA])  BRIEM  pleased to present the annual results of Huijing Holdings Company Limited

BRAR(AEEDEZ2020F12A31HIEZF  (the “Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) for the year

EHEFE R 20205F ETEEIREE2021 FF R EE - ended 31 December 2020 (the "Year”), together with the business review
for 2020 and the prospect for 2021.

2FEH ANNUAL RESULTS

HZE2020F 1283181 - FRAEBBURAEA  Asat 31 December 2020, the Group’s revenue and gross profit for the Year

R#515328 870 EFAARE17843HE  amounted to RMB5,153.2 million and RMB1,784.3 million, representing a

T DRI EFRIHEAR LG RK42.9%%8.5% :  year-on-year increase of 42.9% and 8.5% respectively, and the gross profit

MEFE E34.6%  SFFIEE144%  FRFF]  margin and net profit margin were 34.6% and 14.4%, respectively. Net profit

HAEARE7405B 87T B K194%  FE  for the Year was RMB740.5 million, representing a year-on-year increase of

BlERFEERTEREER - 19.4%. The overall revenue and profit achieved stable growth during the
Year.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

(1)

(2)

Property market review

To brace the impacts on the economic development brought by the
outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic at the beginning of 2020, various
local policies in support of the real estate industry were introduced,
resulting in a rapid recovery in the property market. In the meantime,
the central government maintained the same property regulation
and control policy, which persists in the principle of “no speculation
of residential properties” to achieve stable land prices, stable house
prices, and stable price expectations, so that the development of the
property market will remain stable and healthy. Since the second
half of the Year, the industry has seen an increasingly strengthened
financial regulations, evidenced by the introduction of heightened
regulatory policies by numerous cities that see rising housing and
land prices to restore the market to a rational level.

Confronted with the ever-changing market environment and the
increasingly fierce competition in this industry, the Group grasps
the trend and emphasises on the development potential of the city
to focus on the mission of “Maintain foothold in Greater Bay Area,
penetrate Dongguan, and sustain coverage of Southern, Central and
Eastern China area” (Z R K& - AM K= - MH/EHER - EH
NMEEFHIE), as well as persist in the strategy of "taking the urban
renewal projects as the core, taking the cultural and tourism-healthy
living towns and the scientific and innovative technologies industrial
towns as the two-wing”, thus continuously increasing our land
reserves and the development potential of the cities.

Land reserves

In 2020, by leveraging on the Group's in-depth understanding of the
property markets in the Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta
Urban Cluster, the Yangtze Mid-Stream Urban Cluster and intensive
studies on its target cities, the Group continued to strategically select
and acquire parcels of land at strategic and advantageous locations
in those regions and cities in order to further establish the Group’s
presence in those markets. During the year, the Group's new land
reserves with a total GFA of approximately 1.219 million sq.m., spread
over 2 parcels of land, and 5 projects. As at 31 December 2020, the
Group owned 22 real estate projects and 7 parcels of land in 10 cities
across the country, while the total GFA of land reserves of the Group
reached approximately 3.282 million sg.m. Such sufficient and high
quality land reserves will strongly guarantee and support a more
balanced and steady development of the Group in the future.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

As for urban renewal projects, the Group has today secured
preparatory service contracts of seven projects (total site area
of approximately 1.56 million sq.m.) in Dongguan. In addition,
the Zhangmutou Baoshan project, Humen Xinwan project and
Shatian Renzhou project will be launched, and with a total of 12
projects, efforts were made to obtain preparatory services provider
qualification or change land use, involving the proposed total site
area of approximately 2.13 million sq.m. for three-old transformation.
The Group will continue to seize urban development opportunities,
acquire land parcels with strategic geographical advantages and
optimize the layout of urban renewal projects, so as to become a
leading developer in the urban renewal project realm in the Greater
Bay Area.

Financial condition and strategy

As always, the Group is committed to developing a sound and
stable capital structure, laying a solid foundation for its long-term
sustainability development in the future. In 2020, the total assets
of the Group were RMB12,739.0 million, which grew by 47.8% as
compared to the same period last year, with a net gearing ratio of
18.0%. The Company's financial position is in good condition.

For operation performance, the Group continued to provide our
customers with premium products and services by utilizing its own
reputation in the regional markets and improving competitive
strengths of our products, and achieved good results in 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, the Group realized contracted sales of
approximately RMB7,705.9 million with a year-on-year increase of
75.5%.

ll= \
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BUSINESS PROSPECT

(1)

(2)

Development of the overall real estate market

In 2021, the real estate market will continue to face the persistence
of "no speculation of residential properties”, and different
policies will be adopted to meet local conditions with multiple
measures simultaneously taken to promote the stable and healthy
development of the real estate market. Under the “three stabilities”
requirements of the objectives of “stable land prices, stable house
prices, and stable price expectations”, the overall regulation and
control policies for the real estate industry will remain consistent and
stable.

Future development strategies and prospect

Embracing the first year of the 14th Five-Year Plan in 2021, the
Group will proactively keep a track of the orientation of the industrial
development and leverage its strengths and resources to identify
breakthroughs in the changing market driven by new policies
introduced for the new economic era. Strategically positioning
itself as “a leader in city value upgrade” in the future, the Group will
adhere to the regional mission of “Maintain foothold in the Greater
Bay Area, penetrate Dongguan, and sustain coverage of high-
valued cities in the Southern, Eastern and Central China areas”, as
well as the business model of “focusing on residential development
projects, while taking the urban renewal projects as the core, taking
the cultural and tourism-healthy living towns and the scientific and
innovative technologies industrial towns as the two-wing”, which
constitutes our “one focus, one core, and two wings” blueprint. In
pursuit of the high-quality development model that integrates with
"businesses, cities, and residents”, the Group will continue to promote
the upgrades of industries, local economic, city development, and
quality lifestyle so as to generate more city values.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited



B b RO B - AN R [ R 5 R R R B S
AL BAZRER HEFLE
XwEYE  FEREFPREHEEZ TN
[FrAEEIMIFEEIRE TR - ARX
IREENBHNERBYE - NEBRET
EIXREERFE/NE - B XXIRERRX
REXRES  BAREKEE EX -
HENRBELEN  REPREM#2E
BN XIKEELEERETA - It
Sh - RFEE R E R KRR A E
R EXT=MEEBSRL - ER
NZEM - EEREZEM - TERBOR
BEite  BRSEEERESR B
NERERBATRER -

[—ZINERSIMEIFERFE /YK
BlR - MIMEINARXBI—ZDEA
mN - —EREHEK - EREE - ALK
SENRREREHRTRANES N
ZHEBRTEETR - RE20215F
AEEBEHRFDERK - BFK
RINGERFTE - WEaHOmETRES
e B S T LSRR - BRI E T

2 |

g

AAERREZGRC AU H2RER
R REE  GFEF  2RFAEFEUARMESR
RESIFBARBHZE

BERAE - BT 5 B ZBER - BB FIRE
R R E ISR - 2F BB EL - HAANE
BT —EEROFRREREERNS S - REXNT
BRIRST TR EOER < 20215 @ FHFIEEE
B BITHE  FRIEBRNERE

EY4
i
202143 A25H

+ & A
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At the same time, in light of the national industry development
strategy, the Group has integrated various resources to establish
a new industrial real estate platform, in the hope of providing
customers with more versatile ways of “new production” and “new
lifestyle”. Gaining insight into the development trend of the cultural
tourism industry, the Group continued to provide the customers
with a full life cycle of cultural tourism-healthy living approach
by developing cultural and tourism-healthy living towns, which
combine the cultural lifestyle with the tourism in an effort to develop
the operation model that is suitable for tourism, work, and dwelling.
In addition, relying on the science and technology industry layout
of Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay Area and Dongguan,
we have diversified the medium of industries and space, including
research and development of office, production, and manufacturing
spaces, while creating an authoritative service technology platform
that empowers Huijing’s business segments with technologies so as
to facilitate the city-industry integration and upgrade in the Greater
Bay Area.

The development of “One Core” leads to the establishment of a
platform and provision of resources for the “two wings’, the latter
of which will provide impetus for the “One Core” as they expand.
These two aspects complement and promote each other, generating
a powerful drive to support our stable development, as well as
promoting the city value upgrade. Looking into 2021, the Group will
embark on a new excursion by persisting in our corporate vision of
“Inspiring Growth Together”, while riding the wave of change in a
new image under a new brand according to our new strategy.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my
sincere gratitude to our shareholders, investors, business partners, staff and
all sectors of society for their support.

Our previous achievement paves the way for our dazzling success today,
and also enables us to stride forward with greater confidence. With a
brand new strategic positioning, the Group will be fueled with indefinite
momentum to dash off in the next stage, laying a solid foundation for a
brighter future. In 2021, let's together move forward and beyond to make
history in a new era.

Lun Ruixiang
Chairman
25 March 2021

20205 FR  Annual Report 2020 9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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GENERAL OVERVIEW

In 2020, the outbreak of the coronavirus (“COVID-19") has caused an
unprecedented impact on the global economy, the economic growth
is slowing down in the major economic zones worldwide, while China is
the only economic zone that still enjoys a positive growth in 2020. As real
estate is a major part of the macro economy in China, the PRC government
focused more on city-specific measures regarding market regulation to
ensure the steady development of the industry. The PRC government
also pledged to adhere to the principle of housing is “for living in, not for
speculation”, fend off and defuse major risks of the real estate industry and
facilitate the development of a long-term healthy growth for the real estate
market.

Confronted with the ever-changing industry policy control and the
increasingly fierce competition in the industry, the Group takes advantage
of its competitive edge in the Greater Bay Area, especially the urban renewal
and industry integration property projects opportunities in Dongguan, and
continues to develop the Group’s market share in the central and eastern
region, especially the tourism-healthy living property projects and expand
to the west and north part of China, thus continuously increasing our land
reserve and the development opportunity to cater for the market changes.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group derives its revenue primarily from sales of properties and, to
a lesser extent, lease of investment properties. For the year ended 31
December 2020, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMBS5,153.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately
42.9%.

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2020, including the joint venture, the
Group recorded contracted sales of approximately RMB7,705.9 million,
representing an increase of approximately 75.5% compared to the year
ended 31 December 2019, and contracted gross floor area (“GFA”") sold of
approximately 757,828 sq.m., representing an increase of approximately
124.0% compared to the year ended 31 December 2019.

Sales of properties

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the revenue from sales of properties
recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately 43.0% to approximately
RMB5,150.0 million, which accounted for approximately 99.9% of the total
revenue of the Group. For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group
recognised total GFA of approximately 578,747 sq.m., which represented
an increase of approximately 78.7% as compared to the previous year.
The average selling price ("ASP") of the properties recognised as property
sales was approximately RMB8,898 per sq.m., representing a year-on-year
decrease of approximately 20.0%.

10 ESIZERABREZAF Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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FR - AEBUERE AR - #E#EFHR  Based in Guangdong Province, the Group continued to expand into the
Bl 7E B K db Ep bl o west and north region of China during the Year.

;M

Bazhou
28. EWIER
Star City District

e
Xuzhou
25, BREH

Jieyou Lake

|

Hefei
EH 21, AEESHTEHL
Hefei Huijing City Centre

Pinghu
. 23. =RE
579\ Xingfu District
Changsha k5
29. ESBRIBHF O Hengyang

Huijing Global Centre 20 ES o NI RER/NA
. ES @ M) R& /INES

Huijing Yanhu International Resort

(i = AR
Xichang RN Heyuan
26. FHEHE 17. S8R
Feili Garden Chenzhou Bund No. 8
27. BREEN 24, EIE Ea 18. NEEER
Feili Palace Yonghe District e Nine Miles Bay
Dongguan 19. EASEE
1. {EER Stqr River Cgurt
Huijing Riverside Villa 20. FRTEE(#5)
2. (fIEER.ER Dongjiang River Galleries
Huijing Riverside Villa - Perfection (a portion of)
3. HREL
Royal Spring Hill
4. Hmha
City Valley

5. CEREmHL
Huijing City Centre

6. T
Century Gemini
7. ERM
Huijing City
8. HREMR

Central Palace
9. ESENNRESRE
Huijing Palace and Huijing Ginza
10. BRI
Emperor View Peak
1. RFDEER
Humen Marina City
12. BERE
Fenghua Mansion
13. BHHEET R
Houjie Town Baotun Village Area
14. HHER
Hongmei Hongwugao
16. BE=FHE
Qingxi Sanzhong Area
16. W HERIMATER

Shatian Renzhou Area
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TRIF2020FSHMERRIBEEEREERE  The following table sets out the recognised sales and GFA sold of each city
SEER - in 2020:

HERRA HERR
ER’R EEER ER’R S LNt
EEER Bk P EE WA [ERa»e
Percentage Percentage
of total of total
Recognised recognised Recognised Recognised recognised
GFA ASP revenue revenue
AR¥T/

Tk , FHAK ARETFT

sg.m. y RMB/sg.m. RMB'000
e Dongguan 118,008 204% 14,589 1,721,575 334%
SR Heyuan 250,291 432% 5811 1,454,340 28.2%
& Hefei 4,636 0.8% 6,633 30,751 0.6%
ks Hengyeng 12,592 2.2% 9348 117,710 23%
ma Xichang 145,873 25.2% 10,374 1,513,350 29.4%
M Bazhou 47347 82% 6,595 312,240 6.1%
&3t Total 578,747 100.0% 8,898 5,149,966 100.0%

1B E MMRE BB BIIRN T - Particulars of projects and land parcels are set out in the following table:

& ARAR

BEER fhitaES

(Wit1)  REME [

Total

The estimate

Group's Saleable GFAfor
Equity GFA Investment Unsaleable future Total Attributable

Name of Project Interest (Note1)  Property development Consideration* Consideration

(sqm) (sqm) (sqm)

WeEr = 100% 426051 14022 - 49257 - 559891 559891 11442
Huijing Riverside Vila Dongguan

HEERER = 100% 31.%1 910 - 5276 - 80059 80059 2097
Huijing Riverside Villa-Perfection Dongguan

BEAE Ed 0% 2787 6526 - 40 - 184600 184600 6929
Royal Spring Hill Dongguan

LA = 100% 119860 4350 - 24566 - 91,79% 91,79 6170
City Valley Dongguan

ERHmRL E 00 12004 5776 15329 28659 - B0 B0 13%91
Huijing City Centre Dongguan

g (i) e 100% 49749 8759 - 27168 -

Century Gemini(Vote 2) Dongguan

ERNL) e 100% - - 25780 - - 0 e e
Huiing City (Vote 2) Dongguan

12 ESHERABRZAR Huijing Holdings Company Limited



Name of Project

hRER

Central Palace
ERENRERTE
Huijing Palace and Huiing Ginza
BR

Emperor View Peak
gzt

Humen Marina City

E =

Fenghua Mansion
BEEENMRIES)
Houjie Town Baotun Village Area(\ote 3)
SRR
Hongmei Hongwugao (Note 4)
BE=RAR(T2Y
Qingxi Sanzhong Area (Note 4)
Al lsZ)
Shatian Renzhou Area (Note 4)
Shgs

BundNo8

NEELE

Nine Miles Bay

ERE

Star River Court
RIZBEH)

Dongjiang River Galleries (a portion of)
ALERHHRL

Hefei Huijing City Centre
HHERERNLENRE
Huijing Yanhu International Resort
£R2M)

Xingfu District (Note 5)

EAE

Yonghe District

B2l

JieyouLake

FEUR

Feili Garden

&3 B H

am N 0 AT

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

X%
Dongguan
£
Dongguan
7
Dongguan
x=
Dongguan
B
Dongguan
2
Dongguan
x=
Dongguan
2
Dongguan
E
Dongguan
g
Heyuan
g
Heyuan
g
Heyuan
g
Heyuan
Al
Hefei
&5
Hengyang
i
Pinghu
M
Chenzhou
Gl
Xuzhou
fil=
Xichang

Group's
Equity
Interest

100%

100%

100%

9%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

40%

80%

100%

100%

80%

0%

100%

40%

BE
BEER

62590

153010

38698

102,026

12,79

179,797

187,189

61392

102,182

40463

145873

#E
REER
(Hit)

Saleable
GFA
(Note 1)

il

33%

988

508908

21020

105,278

134378

61525

20,267

Investment
Property

13070

84121

ARER

TUHE  fhitERs
BEER i
Total

estimate

GFAfor

Unsaleable future

Total Attributable

development Consideration* ~Consideration

11,670 - 80097 80097 10135
23619 - 144598 144,598 818.1
11,661 - 3703 371023 7352
19,509 - 377298 369,752 31039
2745 - 105,200 105,260 55708
- - 23701 23,701 -

- - 259154 259,154 -

- - 186,300 186,300 -

- - 115075 115075 -
35244 - 186,131 186,131 8616
125413 - 747084 747,084 9094
19,163 - 59412 23,765 5182
- 532,707 490517 392414 9208
69,960 - 182723 18723 5054
27441 1,1055% 330283 330283 2525
229% - 268977 215182 31824
- 246835 418,600 376,740 16959

- 21715 658,200 658,200 29687
20054 - 472061 188,824 2533
20205 5K Annual Report 2020 13
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

i3 ARER
BEER TUHE  (hHEEE
(W) REME BEER i
Total
The estimate
Group's Saleable GFA for
Equity GFA Investment Unsaleable future Total  Attributable
Name of Project Interest (Note1)  Property GFA  development Consideration* Consideration
(EH75%)
(sqm) (sqm)
ZEEN il 0% - 87401 - 2679 - 381842 152731 42389
Feili Palace Kichang
EyER &M 0% 47347 37405 - 10277 - 9% 17998 4735
Star City District Bazhou
ERERERL & 4% B0 14890 - 64672 - 86,040 404760 27849
Huijing Global Centre (Changsha
&t 2,182,085 1174708 138300 0644053 2106853 7,045,384 6447815 1,240
Total

*

Kt

1.

FEA R BB T, T B B o

14

FE/AHEREmMEEDENSEER
- BERBOTEEIAE (MY EN 2K
MO REBISTEEFAE @ MAFEEERER
BIERE © R G2 3Bk D R EET
BIREHAE  TEFEEERARES A
AW B B AP EN AR RER Y
REEANFLEHSE

HREF ESBARE R Bt tE
MRS EE -

EHAEON RN IRMREmBETATA
REA R & LR BDGHA - BRAE—F
5 F2HBARERTETERER - B
EAERFMH - (WRER L RS FRTH
MR TE BB A EREES TR, SR T | —

£ o

2020128318 - BE=FHE - HiEit
ERkPHBRMNFEO L MBI BTER
%o BEEEE(REELR)EREFRN
M BRE— IS B2HBRERIE
% - L EEIE TR -
EZERFLHBRERIESI—HETH
(WA T EREN ARz R R —
B o 7A2020%F12831H » WEEBIZARIERE
ZNEIFE K °

*  Refer to the cost of land/project which the Company acquired.

Notes:

1.

Saleable/leasable GFA refer to the internal floor area of a property, which has
been derived from the relevant (i) pre-sale permit; (i) floor area prediction
report (5 E & 8B3R5 ), where a pre-sale permit is not available for the
whole or a part of a property; and/or (iii) relevant development indicators
approved by the relevant authority responsible for urban and rural planning
or the Group's internal records, where neither a pre-sale permit nor floor area
prediction report is available for the whole or a part of the development.

Century Gemini and Huijing City are situated on the same parcel of land and
therefore share the same site area.

The expected GFA is not available for Houjie Town Baotun Village Area as the
latest land planning remains subject to approval. For further details, please
refer to the subsection under the prospectus headed “Compliance with
Laws and Regulations — Historical Non-compliance Incidents — (A) Delay in
Commencement and/or completion of construction within the prescribed
period as stipulated in the relevant land grant contracts”.

As at 31 December 2020, the land in Qingxi Sanzhong Area, Hongmei
Hongwugao and Shatian Renzhou Area was zoned for industrial use, current
information (including plot ratio) is not relevant for our Group's purpose. For
further details, please refer to the subsection under the prospectus headed
“Business — Land reserves”.

For more information please refer to “Acquisition of equity interest in
companies that hold land use rights” under the section headed “Business” of
the Prospectus. As at 31 December 2020, the acquisition of target company E
and target company F had been completed.

SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BREYE
7R2020F12A318 - AEEHEEEERELY
138,300 F oK (AI M EEE£941,178F 5 K)
HZE2020F 12 A31BEFEMNHERAHAR
BE33HETT ©

Investment properties

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total GFA of approximately
138,300 sg.m. (leasable area of approximately 41,178 sq.m.) with rental
income of approximately RMB3.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.

T fEE Land reserves
BEHRER  R-ARMEMETIPNIMT  Leveraging on the Group's in-depth understanding of the property markets
Eﬂ@%m BERZIEER AN BIZMTAYRA  in the Greater Bay Area, the Yangtze River Delta Urban Cluster, the Mid-

CAREEEEERE RN %E
iﬁzlﬁﬂﬁ EES R AEEAYEIRE © 722020
F o NEBETVERE S & B &AL 5 E ()
Yl BordbE) - b — M AR B R

MK HAL  7A2020F 12318 + AEE
T EE B 493,281,561 F K - BERAFEH
TOREI T A9 22118 B 73 b o

TRIIRFA 20206612 A31 BIR AR E B + i (E #
R IR B &) D R SEE S

Stream Urban Cluster and intensive studies on its target cities, the Group
continued to strategically develop and operate property projects at
strategic and advantageous locations in those regions. In 2020, the Group
also expanded into the west and north region of China, such as Sichuan
and Hebei provinces, to further establish the Group’s present in those
market. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has land reserves amounting
to approximately 3,281,561 sg.m., with 22 projects and 7 parcels of land
located in 10 cities all over China.

The following table sets out the GFA of the Group's land reserves by
geographical locations as at 31 December 2020:

T it fEE 15 L b fE 1S

BERME 2 5l

Percentage of

Total land total land

reserve GFA reserve GFA

(F772K) (%)

(sgq.m.) (%)

R Dongguan 48,608 1.5%
AR Heyuan 1,063,623 324%
A Hefei 105,278 3.2%
b5 Hengyang 1,239,974 37.8%
&Y Changsha 148,930 45%
88 Pinghu 61,525 1.9%
HBIN Chenzhou 246,835 7.5%
M Xuzhou 221,715 6.8%
ma Xichang 107,668 33%
Bl Bazhou 37,405 1.1%
&ast Total 3,281,561 100.0%

20205 TR Annual Report 2020 15
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RARERH  —EERANERNT ¢
1. EABEELURREEAR - ZRE R

16

rEEIRRET=820E - BAT - K

NEIEHE N R AH - WIEER
SBUFHBESBFINKEEL. - BEREF

FLSH B AT - b BT A ML M B BUET L
AE -RNERBREBY NI aERE -
FEHAR DB BN 2021 FEE == FZ &S
)T E AR o ZIEE WA E
MAE171330FF K BErEIAEER
385,000 75 K

REIFTERE - ZIBEB RBUIEFIAB
W RET—ESE - ANIBEB AT
R PIER ERE B L =R E (2020~
2035)MEEIA - FSLIR T EFERE
= BEEB/SHEBEBIITRRE AL -
A BB AT BT TAEEACE - R
e R @A T B TR R 2021 1k
18 o 5%IB B Wb EAE A14910F 5K
JEst st AT H44,730F 5K o

DHEFMNARIER - ZEBRUERA
B | NEITH = EkEIER - 28R
R HE - B(hHEIEL 77,688 F
Ko —EBMETNE - HEMNIHAR
TEEriESE AR EZERMI(M3) - B
SHEEEEBA2I2BF K - AR
A ZEEN=ZEIRBR2021FR%T
B - A FAA R TR o

As at the date of this report, the progress of the Three-old Transformation
Schemes was as follows:

Project Zhangmutou Baoshan Area: The Three-old Transformation
for this project is carried out under the Cooperation Scenario.
Currently, the Company completes the negotiation with local village
committee, and moves forward to obtain the final approval by the
relevant government authorities and then apply to deregister the
current land title and be issued a new land use right. It is expected
that the Company will obtain the new land use right certificate
before the third quarter of 2021 subsequent to relocation of residents
and payment of land premium. The total site area of this project is
171,330 sg.m. with an expected plot ratio accountable gross floor
area of 385,000 sg.m..

Humen Xinwan Area: The Three-old Transformation for this project
is carried out under the Right Owners Scenario. As the project is
located in Humen area, which is within the territorial spatial planning
of Guangdong Province (2020-2035), the urban renewal procedure
is suspended until the completion of the planning by relevant
government authorities. The Company anticipates that the urban
renewal procedure of Humen Xinwan Area will resume in 2021
following completion of the aforesaid government work. The total
site area of this project is 14,910 sq.m. with an expected plot ratio
accountable gross floor area of 44,730 sg.m..

Shatian Renzhou Area: The Three-old Transformation for this project
is carried out under the Right Owners Scenario. The project is located
in Shatian town with a total site area of approximately 77,688 sq.m.
After the Three-old Transformation, the land use right is expected to
be changed to emerging industry use (M3), with an expected plot
ratio accountable gross floor area of 272,000 sg.m. The Company
expects that the Three-old Transformation for this project will
be completed within the year 2021 and begin the construction
afterwards.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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AARIEEABE SRR T 7EB RS E
g HEEBERSET © IRHERTH
BR7 - #B(hHEFE A1,557,500F F K ©
TR IEREIE B AT E —E 2 REI RN
EIT=EME - ZEHEEFBOT ¢

HH
Project

o e BR A

Xie Gang Li Village
AIZR BE /MR

Al Smart Town
AR

Qishi South Town

I k7T

Cha Shan Shang Yuan
BEEE

Qingxi Qingxia
LKA &
Chashan Waterworks Area
BIABA R
Wanjiang Gonglian Area

&t

Total

5= B35 1E 5 A% M 3 O 0 T 58 4 18 B Y A1
BRRRTS R BB EER T 1E - 4BRETE B 51
Hee OETEB SR EFEITLAMEELD
1868 F 7K o

4. The Company had entered into seven agreements as preparatory
services providers with relevant parties. The relevant projects are all
located in Dongguan city carrying out preparatory services and have
a total site area of 1,557,500 sg.m.. The Three-old Transformation for
the relevant projects is expected to be carried out under the Single
Party Scenario. The details of the projects are as follows:

B

Location

RS it el 8

Xiegang town, Dongguan city

R HA

Shatian town, Dongguan city

RmihA

Qishi town, Dongguan city

REmZRILA

Chashan town, Dongguan city

RETBEE

Qingxi town, Dongguan city

REEmARILA

Chashan town, Dongguan city

REme LA R

Wanjiang Gonglian area,
Dongguan city

BGMEE

Total site area

(FF2K)
(sg.m.)

323,000

294,400

255,300

207,800

161,300

105,700

210,000

1,557,500

5. The Company is currently working on obtaining the qualifications
of the preparatory services providers for the other 9 projects. The
relevant projects are all located in Dongguan city and the proposed
total site area of the 9 projects for Three-old Transformation will be

approximately 1.86 million sg.m..

20205 TR Annual Report 2020 17
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475 [O] B8
BERE
AREEHZE2020F12 831 B IEFERNBAWA A
HWAREES 153288 BB RA42.9% °
FERBHNARE1,78438 8T RLERYD
8.5% ° EFE E4)34.6% + RILL TFE£)11.018
B8 - BHE20200F12A31BIEEE &R
AR S RIIER4104%E N AR 74058
B MEURRERS ABMLFBERLTEL

16.1%EHARES164BETT ©
g

W BEZE2019F 12A31BIEFENHAR
#3,605.6E B LI MNEEHF2020F 128318 Lk
FEMNHARES 1532887 ALERY
42.9% o RN HEEBMBNAEE2019F12H31
B 1EFE#9323,795F FoRIEMNE E F 2020 12
B31BH IEFERS78,747F 5K » RILLERA
787% c MFHIEBARBFEHRKARK 11,1217
REBFHAKAREESSSTT ' WHEERA
AREAERNREELEE (Dl 2E
FREEIRE) - HFPHIEBHE2019FRT K
o REEmENREZR S FIEEMRL ALY
PR

SHERA

B ES K IRIEINAEEE - SHE K ANBREE2019
F1N2A3BLEFENNARE196078 B
IEEHZE2020F12A831BIEFEMHARE
336898 BT + JIME019F R EAMELL - B
HZE2020F 12 A31 B IEFEAMR [ IEEMIEE
hnFTER ©

EFNREFNR

FEFMEBEEZ2019F12A3BEFEHARE
164498 B ILIE I E & E20209F 1231 A LEF
BHHARE17843A BT MEMEDBIL
7345.6%234.6% ° EF|E TFE T E EHRF2020
FYEZI MM A E R YE T EEERE
HEIRFTE -

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Overall performance

For the year ended 31 December 2020, total revenue of the Group was
approximately RMB5,153.2 million, which represented a year-on-year
increase of approximately 42.9%. Gross profit was approximately RMB1,784.3
million, which represented a year-on-year increase of approximately 8.5%.
Gross profit margin was approximately 34.6%, which represented a year-on-
year decrease of approximately 11.0 percentage points. Profit for the year
recorded a year-on-year increase of approximately 19.4% to approximately
RMB740.5 million and profit attributable to owners of the parent recorded a
year-on-year decrease of approximately 16.1% to approximately RMB516.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Revenue

Revenue increased from approximately RMB3,605.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB5,153.2 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which represented a year-on-year increase
of approximately 42.9%. The GFA delivered increased from 323,795 sq.m.
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to 578,747 sg.m. for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which represented a year-on-year increase of
approximately 78.7%, while the ASP decreased from RMB11,121 per sg.m.
to RMB8,898 per sq.m., mainly as a result of the higher portion of GFA
delivered in Heyuan and Xichang, such as projects Nine Miles Bay and Feili
Garden, which have relatively lower average selling price compared with
the higher average selling price in Dongguan where the major portion of
GFA was delivered in the 2019.

Cost of sales

Corresponding to the significant increase in revenue, the cost of sales
increased accordingly from approximately RMB1,960.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB3,368.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, which resulted from the increase in GFA
delivered during the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to the
same period in 2019,

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit increased from approximately RMB1,644.9 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB1,784.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, with gross profit margin being approximately
45.6% and 34.6%, respectively. The decrease in gross profit margin was
mainly due to the regional portfolio of property delivery and the relatively
lower average selling price of the properties in 2020.

18 ESHERABRZAR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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REMELATFERE
TEMENFEWREHBE2019F12A4318 1
FEHARBNOBELEMEEF2020F12
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B3 -

HERDHEX

HE RS HA T HEZE2019F 128318 IEFE
M ARKS38EH BT MEEE2020F128
ITHIEFENH AR 1576B 8T » ARG N
TEZEHROEZE2020F 128318 I FEETT
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A3AIEFERESMZER2019F R EE ML
ARM34088ETT : (NBERFELMN - SIE
FE2020F 1283 BIEFEMNMSRAIZMOA
REMIBETT -

THRX

TS AEZE2019F1283BIEFEMAR
K634 B BITIEMEEE2020F 12831 HIEF
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ROBE2020F12A31B I EENF ST E
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Other Income and Gains

Other income and gains increased from approximately RMB27.4 million
for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB142.3 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was mainly due to
(i) the fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
of approximately RMB71.1 million; (i) the dividend income on financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss of approximately RMB18.4 million;
(i) government subsidies of approximately RMB11.0 million; and (iv) the
foreign exchange gains of approximately RMB9.5 million.

Fair Value Gains on Investment Properties

Fair value gains on investment properties increased from approximately
RMB11.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately
RMB41.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2020, the increase was
primarily due to the increased fair value of the Group’s investment property
of hotel and retail in Hefei.

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses increased from approximately RMB83.8
million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB157.6
million for the year ended 31 December 2020. Such increase was primarily
due to (i) the increase of approximately RMB34.0 million of advertisement
expense for the year ended 31 December 2020 as compared to the same
period in 2019, as a result of the increase in advertising and marketing
activities held for the year ended 31 December 2020; (ii) the increase of
approximately RMB41.2 million in commission expense for the year ended
31 December 2020, as a result of the increase in sales.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses increased from RMB263.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to RMB510.2 million for the year ended 31
December 2020. Such increase was primarily due to (i) the increase of
approximately RMB105.6 million in salaries expenses for the year ended 31
December 2020 as compared to the same period in 2019; (ii) the increase
of approximately RMB71.8 million in legal and professional fee regarding
consulting services and post-listing related activities due to the increase in
demand of various capital market service, such as senior notes and other
post-listing activities; (iii) the increase of approximately RMB31.0 million in
other related tax expense.
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Other Expenses

Other expenses increased from RMB12.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2019 to RMB31.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020.
Such increase was primarily due to the impairment of aged receivables of
approximately RMB13.3 million and increase in donation of approximately
RMB4.2 million.

Share of Profit or Loss of a Joint Venture

Share of profit or loss of a joint venture turned around from a share of loss
of approximately RMB14.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
a share of profit of approximately RMB196.1 million for the year ended 31
December 2020, which primarily due to the revenue generated from the
property delivery of the joint venture in 2020.

Finance Costs

Finance cost increased from approximately RMB82.4 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB135.6 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020, which was primarily due to the decrease in the
amount of capitalised finance cost.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased from approximately RMB606.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB588.7 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020, with effective income tax rate of
approximately 49.5% and 44.3% for the respective year. The decrease in
effective income tax rate was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit
margin, which resulted in the decrease of appreciation rate and therefore
the decrease in LAT charge rate.

Net Profit and Net Profit Margin

Net profit increased from approximately RMB620.0 million for the year
ended 31 December 2019 to approximately RMB740.5 million for the
year ended 31 December 2020, while net profit margin decreased
from approximately 17.2% for the year ended 31 December 2019 to
approximately 14.4% for the year ended 31 December 2020. The decrease
in net profit margin was primarily due to the decrease in gross profit
margin and the increase in salary expense, interest expense, marketing and
commission expense.

Our adjusted net profit for the year ended 31 December 2020 after
excluding listing-related expenses and share-based compensation expenses
of approximately RMB5.6 million and RMB33.8 million respectively, was
approximately RMB779.9 million with net profit margin of approximately
15.1%.
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The increase in net profit was primarily due to an increase in revenue by
42.9% for the year ended 31 December 2020 as a result of an increase in
properties delivered, which was partially offset by an increase in selling and
distribution expenses and administrative expenses by 88.0% and 93.7%,
respectively, compared to the year ended 31 December 2019.

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group operated in a capital-intensive industry and has funded its
growth primarily through cash generated from operations including
proceeds from the sale of its properties, debt financing and capital
contributions from shareholders. The Group's cash requirements relate
primarily to acquisitions of lands, properties development, debt repayment,
and clearance of all applicable taxes for projects developed.

Going forward, the Group believes that its liquidity requirements will be
satisfied by cash generated from its operating activities, banking facilities
available to us, and the net proceeds received from the Company’s global
initial public offering (the “Global Offering”) and issuing notes.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total cash and bank balance
(including restricted cash) of approximately RMB2,083.7 million as
compared to approximately RMB728.8 million as at 31 December 2019.
The increase was primarily due to the increase in proceeds from sales of
properties, borrowing from banks, issuance of senior notes and proceeds
from the Global Offering. Substantially all of the Group’s cash and bank
balance are denominated in RMB.

The Group's net current assets were approximately RMB493.4 million and
RMB2,614.8 million as at 31 December 2019 and 2020, respectively. The
increase in net current assets was mainly attributable to (i) the increase of
cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash of approximately RMB1,355.0
million as at 31 December 2020, (ii) the increase of prepayment, other
receivables and other assets of approximately RMB1,135.5 million and (iii)
the increase of current portion of land held for development for sale of
approximately RMB403.3 million; being partially offset by (i) the increase of
contract liabilities of approximately RMB498.4 million as at 31 December
2020 and (i) the net increase of current potion of interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings and senior notes of approximately RMB417.3 million as at
31 December 2020.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's borrowings of RMB931.9 million (2019:
RMB2,059.0 million) were borrowings with floating interest rates.
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As at 31 December 2020, the Group had banking facilities in the total
amount of RMB2,605.4 million, of which approximately RMB1,896.1 million,
representing 72.8% has been utilized.

Key financial ratios

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's net gearing ratio (calculated as
the total borrowings and lease liabilities net of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents divided by total equity) was approximately 18.0%,
which represented a decrease of 64.6 percentage points as compared to
approximately 82.6% as at 31 December 2019. The decrease was primarily
attributable to the (i) increase in cash and cash equivalents balance as at
31 December 2020; and (i) increase in the balance of total equity as at 31
December 2020, which resulted in a better optimised capital structure.

The Group's current ratio was calculated based on its total current assets
divided by its total current liabilities as of the respective dates and remained
relatively stable at 1.1 times and 1.3 times as at 31 December 2019 and
2020, respectively.

Foreign exchange risk

Substantially all of the Group's revenue and expenditure are denominated
in RMB. As at 31 December 2020, the Group has not entered into any
hedging transactions. The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and will
consider hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need
arise.

Interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from its long-term borrowings. As all
of the Group's borrowings are denominated in RMB, the interest rates on
the Group's borrowings are primarily affected by interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings. The Group manages its interest rate risk by closely
monitoring the trend of interest rate fluctuation and its impact on the
Group's interest rate risk exposure, as well as regulating the debt portfolio
of the Group.

Pledge of assets

The Group's bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2020 of
approximately RMB1,896.1 million (2019: approximately RMB2,059.0
million) were secured by certain land held for development for sale,
equity interests in certain subsidiaries, properties under development and
completed properties held for sale of the Group with total carrying values
of approximately RMB2,602.1 million (2019: approximately RMB3,111.2
million).
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Capital commitments

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had commitments that are contracted
but not provided for in respect of property development expenditure as
follows:

®12831H
As at 31 December
20204

20195

2019

(AR FT)
(RMB'000)

2020
(ARETIT)
(RMB'000)

BRTAE R B Contracted, but not provided for:
GBS 3 Properties under development 1,339,627 1,371,239
FBWENRBAGEE L Purchase of land through acquisition of
subsidiaries 491,790 840,108
R EME Investment properties under construction 122,520 119,832
a5t Total 1,953,937 2,331,179
MEERRIAREE Financial guarantees and contingent liabilities

MR20208F12A31H - AEEM Y IS EREFE L

™

AR SE kY E S-Sk rtra: ok iw il
BB MRITHER W 2a)

As at 31 December 2020, the Group's total financial guarantees are as
follows:

MA12831H
As at 31 December
20204

20194
2019
(AREETIT)
(RMB'000)

2020
(ARETT)
(RMB'000)

Guarantees given to banks in connection with
mortgage facilities provided to customers

of the Group's properties (Note a) 4,516,730 5468,152
BARBE AL AEB AT Guarantee given to banks in connection
B E MR TR (Fatb) with facilities granted to related companies
controlled by Mr Lun RX (Note b) - 113,600
&5t Total 4,516,730 5,581,752
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Notes:

(@)

(b)

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted by
certain banks to the customers of the Group'’s completed properties held for
sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in case of default
on mortgage payments by the customers, the Group is responsible to repay
the outstanding mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and
penalties owed by the defaulted customers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to
the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on mortgage
repayments by these customers, the banks are entitled to take over the legal
titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the start of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within one to two years after the customers take possession of the relevant
properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the Year in respect of
the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted to customers of the
Group’s completed properties held for sale. In the opinion of the directors
of the Company (“Directors” and each a “Director”) that in case of default
on payments, the net realisable value of the related properties would be
sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans principals together with
any accrued interest and penalties and accordingly, no financial liability has
been made in connection with these guarantees.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided guarantees in respect of bank
loans granted to certain related companies controlled by Mr Lun RX. The
respective bank loans were also pledged by certain properties owned by Mr
Lun RX or by the Group and guaranteed by Mr Lun RX.

In determining whether financial liabilities should be recognised in respect of
the relevant financial guarantee contracts, the Directors exercise judgement
in the evaluation of the probability of a resources outflow that will be required
and the assessment of whether a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial guarantee
contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the Directors
consider that the possibility of the default of the parties involved is remote,
and accordingly, no financial liability has been recognised in the financial
statements.
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Material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures

In December 2020, the Group acquired (i) 40.0% of the equity interest in
Xichang Shuxin Property Development Company Limited, which holds
a property development project under construction located in Xichang
city, Sichuan Province, the PRG; (i) 40.0% of the equity interest in Xichang
Shugao Property Development Company Limited, which holds a property
development project under construction located in Xichang city, Sichuan
Province, the PRC; and (iii) 40.0% of the equity interest in Bazhou City
Yongzheng Property Development Company Limited, which holds a
property development project under construction located in Bazhou
city, Hebei Province, the PRC. For details, please refer to “Discloseable
Transactions: Investment In The Target Companies By Way of Capital
Injection” of the Company’s announcement dated 10 December 2020 and
the clarification and supplemental announcement dated 11 February 2021.

Save as disclosed above, the Group had no material acquisition or disposal
of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures or updates in relation thereto
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

Significant investment held

On 21 December 2020, Huijing Holdings Company Limited entered into
an agreement with Shenzhen Runhang Investment Industrial Partnership
(“Shenzhen Runhang”), pursuant to which Shenzhen Runhang agreed to
make an investment of an amount not exceeding RMB1,288,240,000 in
Dongguan Huijing East Automobile Development Limited (“Dongguan
Huijing East Automobile”) and Huijing Group Limited, which is a wholly-
owned subsidiary of Huijing Holdings Company Limited, has agreed to
make an investment of approximately RMB575,000,000 in Dongguan Huijing
East Automobile simultaneously regarding the three-old transformation
project located in Zhangmutou Town, Dongguan City. For further detail,
please refer to “Discloseable Transaction Cooperation Agreement” of the
Company’s announcement dated 21 December 2020, and “Supplemental
Announcement in Relation to the Discloseable Transaction: Cooperation
Agreement” dated 12 March 2021.

Other than the above mentioned investment, there were no significant
investment held by the Group during the year ended 31 December 2020.
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Employee and remuneration policy

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had a total of 642 employees. Total
expenditure on salary and welfare of the Group’s employees for the year
ended 31 December 2020 amounted to approximately RMB242.4 million
(2019: approximately RMB149.9 million). The Group has adopted a system
of determining the remuneration of employees based on employees
qualification, experience, position and seniority. In general, the Group
provides competitive remuneration packages to employees, which include
basic salaries, allowances, discretionary bonus, performance-based rewards
and year-end bonus. The Group also pays social security insurance for
the Group's employees, including social insurance and housing funds. In
terms of employee training, the Group provides consistent and systematic
training to employees based on their positions and expertise, in order to
enhance their expertise in real estate and their related fields.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, the Group foresees the PRC economic development
will continue to maintain steady growth. As real estate is a major part
of the macro economy, the PRC government will focus more on city-
specific measures regarding market regulation, so as to ensure the steady
development of the industry as a whole, while the real estate macro control
and the liquidity requirement emphasized on the industry will continue to
bring challenges to the operation of the Group.

The outbreak of COVID-19 since early 2020 has also caused an
unprecedented impact on the global economy, the economic growth is
slowing down with more uncertainty. Under the effective control measures
of the PRC government, the epidemic has generally been under control.
Due to the differences in the size and structure of the PRC economy, the
impact of the epidemic on the economy is higher than that of during
the Severe Acute Respiratory Syndrome (SARS) in 2003. The revenue
from the service industries such as catering, retail, transportation, and
tourism declined significantly. As the global epidemic spreads, trade is
affected and resulted in a weaker foreign demand. In order to achieve the
2021 economic goals, the PRC government will adopt a more proactive
monetary and fiscal policy to increase investment, promote consumption
and stabilize foreign demand.
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The outbreak of COVID-19 will also have certain impact on the Group, and
the specific impact depends on the duration and development trend of the
epidemic situation. With the appropriate measures and proactive review
of project executions by our management, it is believed the Group would
overcome the difficult times and move forward cautiously. The Group will
adopt a more aggressive sales strategy by adjusting marketing plans and
strategies in a timely manner to intensify its marketing effort. Meanwhile,
the Group will continue to strengthen cash flow management, speed up
the contracted sales of the Group's projects and maintain a healthy capital
structure.

The Group will also maintain a prudent investment strategy and ensure
sufficient and quality land reserve through proactively participating in
urban redevelopment and renewal. The Group will continue to strengthen
its presence across the Guangdong-Hong Kong-Macau Greater Bay
Area, vigorously boost its market share in regions where the Group has
established its presence, gradually extending its outreach across areas
with high growth potential such as the Yangtze River Delta, Chengdu-
Chongging and the mid-stream of the Yangtze River.

Faced with new challenges, the Group will pay close attention to the
changes in market environment, continue to meet customers’ demand as
its orientation and concentrate on a balanced and steady development.
The Group adheres to the strategy of a steady and balanced development
and focuses on the mission of “Maintain foothold in Greater Bay Area, based
in Dongguan, and service cover the Southern, Central and Eastern China
area” (LB KB - AHRZ= - HRERM  EPRERMER), thus
constantly improving operational efficiency and business structure. With a
foothold in Dongguan, the Group will continue to focus on developments
in Guangdong Province and expand into regions such as the Central China
Region.
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TRESHNHR2020F 12 A31AAEB LI FEEIE The following table sets out the GFA breakdown of the Group’s land
YI%IE B &l DA AR reserves by property project as at 31 December 2020:

72020612831H As at 31 December 2020

R2020512A31AEAT R2020812A31A%E
Completed as at 31 December 2020 Under development as at 31 December 2020

fhat

FUHE BER  WHiE THE  FAUHE AREE
BEER $ER EEER RENEX BEER  BEER  REME  4REER
Total

(cl7} estimate GFA

Unsaleable available  Investment Saleable  Unsaleable  Investment for future

Property Type GFA  GFAsold forsale  Property GFA  Property development  Total GFA

(sqm,) (sqm) m) (sqm)

frENEER Residential property project

RE Dongguan 0745 1214606 £830 - - - - - 1493
b Heyuan 89769 366986 37110 - 472786 70888 - 530707 1570246
4 Pinghu - - - - 61525 229% - 84521
E Xichang 20054 145873 20267 - 87401 2679 - - 276274
M Chenzhou - - - - - - - 216835 246835
BN Yuzhou - - - - - - - 21715 01715
i Bazhou 4634 4347 12937 - 24468 563 - - 95029
Gt Subtotal BI%2 174812 113,46 - 646,180 102,206 - 100157 3969553
CEVELLE Integrated property project

S Dongguan 28659 120224 5776 - - - - - 154659
R Heyuan 17307 61392 8459 - 12561 1856 - - 101575
AlE Hefe 7415 102,182 378 - 61520 62545 - - 77420
&Y Changsha 64672 8012 148930 - - - - - 296614
It Subtotal 118053 366810 206923 - 74081 64401 - - 830268
RENE Investment property

[T Dongguan - - - 41109 - - - - 41109
R Heyuan - - - - - - 13070 - 13070
Al Hefei - - - - - - 84121 - 84121
gt Subtotal - - - 41109 - - 97191 - 138300
HBETETEN  Property promoting specific

ELE] industry

&l Hengyang 12867 40463 53009 - 81369 14574 - 11055% 1307878
i) Subtotal 12867 40463 53009 - 81369 14574 - 110559 1307878
it Total 16877 2182085 3308 41109 801630 181,181 97191 200683 6245999
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TREF2020F12A31BAREEWHEIEE K The following table sets forth a summary of the Group's property projects
BRZEEREMHE - BIEFERKERN  and project phases developed, including projects and project phases held
THE RIBE R : for future development as at 31 December 2020:

7A2020F12A31H As at 31 December 2020

H202012A31RBAT WENANAER
Completed as at 31 December 2020 Under development asat 31 December 2020
fhit
ARRE
niE 4 TRE TUEE g 2 R "/t
BEER ) B BEER BEER  RRNE i § FIng B8 BIR%
Total Actual/
estimate Estimated Actual/ Actual/
GFA Total GFA GFAfor Construction Estimated Pre-sale ~ Estimated
Totalsite  Unsaleable avallable Investment  TotalGFA  Saleable Presaleable  Presold  Unsaleable Investment under future Commencement  Commencement  Construction

Location area GFA  GFAsold forsale  Property  completed GFA GFA GFA  Property development development  TotalGFA  Time Time Completion Time
T @R R @ B GRD GRN (K TR R G

(sqm) (sqm) {sqm (sqm) [ (sqm)

e = 315867 95 20 1402 - - - - - - - S A 20093 04l 100611
Hujing Riverside Vila Dongguan

gEERER b 1020 520 1% 910 - T - - - - - - - B4 1009 018428 1019626
Hujing Riverside Vila-Perfection Dongguan

BREL B 119969 o 652 i - - - - - - ST 008 050 0739
Royal Spring Hil Dongguan

i [+ 59665 1566 119860 430 - 148776 - - - - - - - 1876 14415 04N 01876
CityValley Dongguan

ERATRD ®= 705 BEH 0 5776 B 169988 - - - - - - S T8 051006 01648 01978
Huiing City Centre Dongguan

e S 1734 7168 9749 8759 - 8676 - - - - - - - 866 11121 00282 1515
Century Gemini Dongguan

R E - - - 578 178 - - - - - - - B0 W0 TR 15430
Huiing City Dongguan na

PRER = 18914 11610 6259 4n - 79080 - - - - - - - 00 2010414 010428 puiRib]
CentralPalace Dongguan

ERERRERRE Rz 38001 3619 153010 118 - 176747 - - - - - - - 16747 205814 00510% 108928
Huiing Palace and Hujing Ginza Dongguan

wE % 1240 1661 38638 - - 50359 - - - - - - - 5039 208319 108933 209916
Emperor View Peak Dongguan

FRRE = 40 1959 100 1 SIS - - - - - - S g W8Ty 181214 200930
Humen Marina City Dongguan

LN = 6042 274 1274 33% - 188%5 - - - - - - - 1885 20181024 019119 100630
Fenghua Mansion Dongguan

gt M MEIH13UE0 18608 49 1gT070 - - - - - - - g

Subtota

s g 60007 B9y 9% S 6 - - - - - - S e W6y 01958 018125
Bund Mo Heyuan

NELEE 8 mn uss e ¥ 17 T Y SR Tk /B )1} 70888 S s SIS0 0N 0181220 m3
Ning Mies Bay Heyuan

ERE AR 000 1730 6139 8459 - 758 1% 12561 3557 185 1300 48 - 14685 2017830 071215 mi3
Star iver Court Heyuan

RIZEER) g 26353 - - - - - - - - - - - s s TER TR TR
Dongjiang River Galris (aportion o}~ Heyuan na. na na

it 619%0 10006 483 5569 SO W M8 1085 T4 B0 ST S0 16891

Subtotal
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0E12A318E4T H00ERANEER
Completed as at 31 December 2020 Under development as at 31 December 2020
w5/R8
FUaE 5} i ) : i FI#E | 82% B/t RLRE BR/ft
BEAR  REER I% B it R BIBE ] HIRE
Total Actual/
estimate Estimated Actuall Actuall
GFA Total GFA GFAfor Construction Estimated Pre-sale ~ Estimated
Totalsite ~ Unsaleable available  Investment  Total GFA  Saleable Pre-saleable Pre-sold Investment under future Commencement ~ Commencement  Construction
Location area GFA  GFAsold forsale  Property  completed GFA GFA FA  Property development development  TotalGFA  Time Time Completion Time
K (AR Ak ¥k Frk FAK ¥ FAR ¥ ¥k FAK ¥h FAK
lsqm) (sqm) s (sqm) 5 (sqm) (sqm) fsqm. lsqm)
RRERATRL Ak ki WS me 478 R ) 6150 63% 6857 62545 @I 281 R 1 R AN 7831 pIE]
Hefe Hujing Ciy Centre Hefe
EREREALESIE i 938407 12867 4463 53009 R %] 81369 5079 m 1451 - S 105K 108 0i6428 17100 4031
Hujing Yanhu International Resort Hengyang
=) T B4 - - - - - 6155 185 2861 0% - w3 - Y1 20630 00115 m3i
XingfuDisrict Finghu
i L] 107319 - - - - - - - - - - - 6835 u685 193 m331 100492
Yonghe Distict Chenzhou
BER il 963% - - - - - - - - - - - 75 mus i i3l 04110
JieyouLake Kuhou
BEAE EES 85455 008 145673 0267 - 181% - - - - - - - 181% 2018625 18817 001219
Fell Garden Xichang
SBER B 097 - - - - - 401 146 7440 2679 - 9080 - 9000 20191018 1201029 pUIRvE]
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DIRECTORS

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr Lun Ruixiang, aged 53, was appointed as a Director on 9 January
2019 and was appointed as chairman of the Board and redesignated as a
non-executive Director on 25 March 2019. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Board. Mr Lun Ruixiang is responsible for
formulating the overall strategies, development and directions, as well
as monitoring the operations and management of the Group. Mr Lun
Ruixiang founded the Group in 2004 and has over 16 years of experience
in residential and commercial property development and business
development. Mr Lun Ruixiang has been engaging in the automobile
industry in Dongguan since January 1995.

Mr Lun Ruixiang is a relative of Mr Lun Zhao Ming and the father of Ms Lun
Ying Kit.

Executive Directors

Mr Lun Zhao Ming, aged 56, is the chief executive officer of the Group.
He was appointed as a Director and redesignated as an executive Director
on 25 March 2019. Mr Lun Zhao Ming joined the Group in June 2005 as a
chairman assistant and was primarily responsible for human resources and
administration affairs. He was promoted as a vice president in November
2009, during which time he was engaged in overseeing the daily operation
of the Group as well as management affairs. Mr Lun Zhao Ming was
promoted as a senior vice president in January 2015, and was promoted
as the chief executive officer of the Group in January 2018. In addition to
monitoring our daily operation and management, he is also in charge of
formulating the Group’s business strategies and directions and serving as
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr Lun Zhao Ming worked at Dongguan Humen
Port Mayong Xinsha Development Co,, Ltd. (825E T 2 98 i f #7432
BBR /A7), a company primarily engaged in industrial park development,
from September 2003 to May 2005. Mr Lun Zhao Ming graduated from Sun
Yat-Sen University in the PRC with a bachelor's degree in science in July
1984.

Mr Lun Zhao Ming is a relative of Mr Lun Ruixiang and Ms Lun Ying Kit.
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Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson, aged 53, has been appointed as a Director
and redesignated as an executive Director and company secretary of
the Company since on 25 March 2019. Mr Lau is primarily responsible for
handling corporate governance and company secretarial matters, and also
a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr Lau has over 12 years
of financial control experience in property development industry and has
various experiences with listed groups. He was appointed as an executive
director of Soundwill Group (Stock Exchange stock code: 878), a Hong
Kong-based investment holding company principally engaged in property-
related business.

Mr Lau is a fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.

Mr Lu Peijun, aged 48, joined the Group as the financial controller in
March 2005 and became a vice president in May 2015. He was appointed as
a Director and redesignated as an executive Director on 25 March 2019. Mr
Lu is mainly responsible for the management of the financial department
and legal department of the Company and assisting in monitoring project
implementation and progress. He has more than 11 years of finance-
related experience before joining the Group. He worked at Guangdong
Development Bank (&R 2 & $£17) (now known as China Guangfa Bank
(B E£IR1T)) from January 1994 to March 2005.

Mr Lu graduated from South China Normal University with a degree of
bachelor in legal studies through online education in February 2005.

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, MH, JP, aged 60, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. Ms Chiu is also
the chairman of the audit committee of the Board.
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Ms Chiu has over 31 years of experience in accounting, business
management and operations. From 2000 to 2006, Ms Chiu joined DVN
Holdings Company Limited (currently known as Frontier Services Group)
(Stock Exchange stock code: 0500), a company specializing in development
and sales of digital broadcasting systems, where she was the chief
operating officer and the senior vice president of the Business Development
and Corporate Affairs. During 2006 to 2019, she served as senior vice
president, group chief representative in Eastern China Region and
consultant under the Fung Group, which engaged in trading, distribution,
logistics and retailing businesses. Since May 2019, she has been serving
as an independent non-executive director of Kato (Hong Kong) Holdings
Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 2189). She has been serving as an
independent non-executive director of Songz Automobile Air Conditioning
Co,, Ltd. (Shenzhen Stock Exchange stock code: 2454) and Huali University
Group Limited (Stock Exchange stock code: 1756) since 20 May 2020 and 17
July 2020, respectively.

Ms Chiu was awarded the Medal of Honor by the Hong Kong Government
in 2013 for her achievement and dedication in public services especially
in relations to the accounting profession. She was also awarded the
"Outstanding Women Professionals” Award in 2014, “Distinguished Alumni”
Award from Sheffield University and was also awarded “2017 Outstanding
Business Women” by Hong Kong Commercial Daily in 2017. In 2017 and
2018, Ms Chiu was awarded the “Justice of Peace” and “New Territories
Justice of the Peace” respectively by the Hong Kong Government for
her contribution to the community. Ms Chiu has been a member of the
Women's Commission since January 2017. She was also a member of
the Equal Opportunities Commission from May 2009 to May 2017, as
well as the Energy Advisory Committee from July 2014 to July 2018. Ms
Chiu is currently a member of The Chinese People’s Political Consultative
Conference of Shanghai.

Ms Chiu graduated with First Class Honors in Economics from the University
of Sheffield in the United Kingdom in 1982 and holds an Executive MBA
degree from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in 1997.
Ms Chiu was the President of the Council of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants in 2013, and the president of the Information
Systems Audit and Control Association (China Hong Kong Chapter) from
2001 to 2005. She is a qualified Chartered Accountant from England, a
Hong Kong Certified Public Accountant, PRC Certified Public Accountant
and Auditor of the Information Systems Audit and Control Association.
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Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen, aged 61, was appointed as an independent
non-executive Director on 11 December 2019. He is also a member of the
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination committee of
the Board.

Mr Hung is a solicitor in Hong Kong and has over 25 years of experience in
legal practice. Mr Hung was admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong in May
1995. Mr Hung is currently with Li & Partners, a Hong Kong based law firm
and has been a partner of the firm since December 2014.

Mr Hung was a member of the Council of the Law Society of Hong Kong
(the “Law Society”) from October 2003 to May 2020. He was elected as vice-
president of the Law Society from May 2012 to August 2014 and president
from August 2014 to June 2016. Mr Hung has also been the representative
for Law Society in the Judicial Officers Recommendation Commission
from July 2015 to July 2019, the representative for the Duty Lawyer Service
Council since February 2018 and Chairman since January 2021. Mr Hung
has been serving various appointments including the Financial Reporting
Council since December 2018; Communications Authority since April 2017,
Professional Services Advancement Support Scheme Vetting Committee
since January 2017; Hong Kong Examinations and Assessment Authority
from September 2013 to September 2019; Sub-committee on Causing
or Allowing the Death of a Child of the Law Reform Commission since
February 2007; member for the Law Reform Commission since December
2020; and Lump Sum Grant Steering Committee since April 2015.

Mr Hung received his degree of Bachelor of Arts from University of
Winnipeg in Canada in May 1982. He later received his degree of Bachelor of
Laws in December 1992 and Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in September
1993 from the University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong.

Ms Lin Yanna, aged 57, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 11 December 2019. Ms Lin is also the chairman of
the remuneration committee, and a member of audit committee and
nomination committee of the Board.
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Ms Lin Yanna has over 19 years of experience in business management
and operation. From January 2001 to August 2008, Ms Lin Yanna worked
as the general manager of Shanghai Bus Financial Management Company
Limited (E/8EB BB IR B R A7), a company focusing on financial
management and providing accounting services, and was responsible for
the overall operational management, construction of operational structure
and formulation of overall management and risk management policies. She
was the director of and a member of the investment decision committee of
Shanghai Stonecapital Co, Ltd. (/82 AR E B A F)), an investment
management company in China, from September 2008 to September
2018. At Shanghai Stonecapital Co., Ltd, she was mainly responsible for
overseeing private equity investment and managing assets of Shanghai
Stonecapital Co,, Ltd.

Ms Lin graduated from Shanghai University of Finance and Economics in
the PRC in January 1999, with a master’s degree in management. Ms Lin
also completed a master's programme jointly organised by the Shanghai
National Accounting Institute and the Chinese University of Hong Kong
in the PRC and received a degree of Master in Accounting for Senior
Management in December 2004.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr Wang Bo, aged 51, has been the chief operating officer of the
Group since January 2018. Mr Wang joined the Group as an executive
vice president in October 2017. Mr Wang is responsible for the overall
implementation of projects, project progress and quality control and
supervision of project progress and implementation. He has many years of
experience in operation management in property development industry.
Before joining the Group, he worked as the general vice president of
Guangzhou Huahai Group (/8% E), a property developer, from
March 2015 to October 2017; the president assistant of Guangdong
Nimble Investment Company Limited (R 8% & B R 2 7)), which
is a property development and property management company, from
October 2012 to November 2013; vice president of Guangdong Chuang
Hong Property Development Company Limited (&R A8 E 1 E M2 A
fR 2 A]) from October 2011 to November 2012; and the general manager
of development department and project supervisor of Guangdong L'Sea
Group Company Limited (E R F/G & B AR A 7)) from April 2010 to
December 2011.

Mr Wang graduated from Wuhan University of Technology in the PRC with

a bachelor’s degree in industrial and residential architecture engineering in
June 1992.
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Mr Chen Yu, 46, the chief financial officer of the Group, has more than 20
years of experience in the field of corporate financial management. He has
served as CFO or financial controller in many large listed multi-national
companies (including Merged Healthcare Inc,, Northern Telecom Network,
MDS, Husky IMS, RioCan REIT, Pacific Securities and Canada Liuhe group).
He has international vision and global collaboration experience. He served
as CFO and general manager of Capital Market Operation center of Xinyuan
Real Estate Co, Ltd.(Z838E Z BFR A Al) from February 2019 to October
2020. Mr Chen Yu is proficient in the management practice of capital
market operation, financial accounting, cost optimization, budget analysis
and other modules, and has excellent financial leadership.

Mr Chen Yu graduated from the College of Economics at Peking University
JEF K E) with a bachelor's degree in economics in 1998 and an MBA
degree from Schulich School of business of York University in Toronto,
Canada in 2004. He is a chartered professional accountant in Canada and a
registered public accountant in the United States (lllinois).

Mr Chen Shaobin, aged 53, is a vice president of the Group. He first joined
as the deputy general manager of Real Estate Development Department
in the Group in April 2004 and became our vice president in May 2016.
Mr Chen is responsible for assisting the Group's outreaching affairs.

Mr Luo Chengyu, aged 37, is the assistant to the chairman of the Board
of the Group and the president of the Urban Renewal Group (¥ &
$1%E). He obtained a bachelor’s degree in traffic engineering from
Huazhong University of Science and Technology in 2006 and a master’s
degree in architecture and civil engineering from Huazhong University
of Science and Technology in 2014. From 2008 to 2016, he worked for
the Dongguan City Xiegang Town People’s Government, responsible for
urban construction and planning, investment promotion, major municipal
projects management, industrial park development and etc. From 2016 to
2017, he was the head of the Urban Renewal Industry Center of Guangdong
Zhongtian Group (B K& B B ETE ZEH 0. He is familiar with
the operation mode and rules of urban renewal with rich experience in
project management, as well as excellent coordination capability.
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Ms Lun Ying Kit, aged 27, is the president assistant and general manager
of strategic brand management of the Group. In 2016, she obtained a
bachelor's degree in art and business from the University of New South
Wales, Australia, and a master's degree in marketing from University of
New South Wales, Australia in 2018. She is in charge of the Strategic Brand
Management and Customer Service Management with excellent market
acumen, insight and team management ability.

Ms Lun Ying Kit is the daughter of Mr Lun Ruixiang and a relative of Mr Lun
Zhao Ming.

Mr Liang Yin, 44, is the chief financing officer of the Group. He is mainly
responsible for the financing management of the Group. Mr Liang holds a
bachelor's degree in computer and its applications from Nanjing University

A KE) and a master's
degree in Applied Finance from Monash University in Melbourne, Australia.

of Aeronautics and Astronautics (B R fin %8

He has more than 22 years of senior management experience in the
financial and real estate industry. Since 1999, he has served successively
as the general manager of various domestic and international banks,
including Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Shenzhen Branch,
Standard Chartered Bank, China CITIC Bank, ICBC (Asia) Bank of China/
Chinese Mercantile Bank and Chong Hing Bank. He has rich financial
professional knowledge and is familiar with the capital market and financial
industry financing rules at home and abroad. He has also served as the
vice presidents of Kaisa Group and the chief financing officer of Blu Ray
Real Estate Group (B2 Yt HBE £ E), both of which are well-known
listed real estate enterprises. He has rich experience in real estate financing
management and operation at home and abroad.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board is committed to achieving high corporate governance standards.
The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Company to safeguard the interests of
shareholders and to enhance corporate value and accountability. The
Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”)
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

The Company’s shares were listed on the Stock Exchange since 16 January
2020 (the “Listing Date”), the CG Code was not applicable to the Company
before the Listing Date. To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, the
Company has fully complied with all applicable code provisions set out in
the CG Code during the period commencing from the Listing Date to the
period ended 31 December 2020.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS OF
LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors. Specific enquiry has been made to all the Directors and
all the Directors have confirmed their compliance with the Model Code
throughout the period commencing from the Listing Date to the period
ended 31 December 2020.

The Company has also established written guidelines no less exacting
than the Model Code (the “Employees Written Guidelines”) for
securities transactions by employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information of the Group. No incident of non-
compliance of the Employees Written Guidelines by the employees was
noted by the Company during the period commencing from the Listing
Date to the date of this annual report.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board during the period commencing from the
Listing Date to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Non-executive Director:

Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman)
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Executive Directors:

Mr Lun Zhao Ming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson
Mr Lu Peijun

Independent Non-executive Directors:

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen
Ms Lin Yanna

The biographical information of the Directors are set out in the section
headed “Profile of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report.

Mr Lun Ruixiang is a relative of Mr Lun Zhao Ming. Save as disclosed
aforesaid, none of the members of the Board is related to one another.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Code provision A2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual.

The chairman, being Mr Lun Ruixiang, provides leadership for and
management of the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that all Directors
are properly briefed on issues to be discussed at Board meetings and
receive, in a timely manner, adequate, accurate, clear, complete and
reliable information. He also takes primary responsibility to ensure that the
Board works effectively, performs its responsibilities and discusses all key
and appropriate issues in a timely manner. He fulfills this by encouraging
Directors to make a full and active contribution to the Board’s affairs
and ensure the Board acts in the best interests of the Company. He also
encourages Directors with different view to voice their concerns, allows
sufficient time for discussion of issues and ensure Board decisions fairly
reflect Board consensus. The chairman is responsible for facilitating the
effective contribution of non-executive Directors and ensuring constructive
relations between executive and non-executive Directors.

The chief executive officer, being Mr Lun Zhao Ming, is responsible for
leading the day-to-day management of the Group’s business in accordance
with the strategy, policies and programmes approved by the Board. The
chief executive officer is also responsible for providing reports and advice to
the Board on the performance of the Group’s business. The chief executive
officer would be supported by the management, who provides relevant
information and recommendations to facilitate informed decision making.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

During the period commencing from the Listing Date to the date of this
annual report, the Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing
Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of the
independent non-executive Directors in respect of his/her independence
in accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that all independent non-
executive Directors are independent.

Non-executive Directors and Directors’ Re-election

Code provision A4.1 of the CG Code stipulates that non-executive directors
shall be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. Code provision
A.4.2 provides that all directors appointed to fill a casual vacancy shall
be subject to election by shareholders at the first general meeting after
appointment and that every director, including those appointed for a
specific term, shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least once every
three years.

Each of the Directors (including independent non-executive Directors) is
appointed for an initial term of three years commencing from the Listing
Date and is subject to retirement by rotation once every three years.

Responsibilities, Accountabilities and Contributions of the
Board and Management

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company and
oversees the Group's businesses, strategic decisions and performance and
is collectively responsible for promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Directors make decisions objectively
in the interests of the Company.

All Directors, including non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business
experience, knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and
effective functioning.

All Directors have full and timely access to all the information of the
Company as well as the services and advice from the company secretary
and senior management of the Company. The Directors may, upon request,
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company's expenses, for discharging their duties to the Company.
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The Directors shall disclose to the Company details of other offices held by
them and the Board regularly reviews the contribution required from each
Director to perform his/her responsibilities to the Company.

The Board reserves for its decision all major matters relating to policy
matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk management,
material transactions (in particular those that may involve conflict of
interests), significant domestic and/or overseas investments, financial
information, appointment of Directors and other significant operational
matters of the Company. Responsibilities relating to implementing
decisions of the Board, directing and coordinating the daily operation and
management of the Company are delegated to the management.

Continuous Professional Development of Directors

Directors keep abreast of responsibilities as a Director and of the conduct,
business activities and development of the Company.

Every newly appointed Director will receive formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment to ensure
appropriate understanding of the business and operations of the Company
and full awareness of Director’s responsibilities and obligations under the
Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure
that their contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
All Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the
Company's expenses.

A summary of training received by Directors during the period under review
and as at the date of this annual report according to the records provided
by the Directors is as follows:

HEBNE
=3
Attended
briefings/
trainings

Mr Lun Ruixiang

Mr Lun Zhao Ming

Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson
Mr Lu Peijun

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen
Ms Lin Yanna
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Board meetings

Code provisions A.1.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the Board should

meet regularly and Board meetings should be held at least four times each
year. The Board held four meeting and one annual general meeting during
the period commencing from the Listing Date to the period ended 31
December 2020. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance at
this meeting:

HEas HEas
BITRE BITRE
Attended/
Number of Attended/
annual general Number of
Name of Directors meeting meetings held
fim L A& Mr Lun Ruixiang 1/1 4/4
fRARAF S & Mr Lun Zhao Ming /1 4/4
2e B A Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson 1 4/4
EME LA Mr Lu Peijun /1 4/4
R T Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna 1 4/4
RRE(E A Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen 1 4/4
U e Ms Lin Yanna 1/1 4/4
EFEEEAT BOARD COMMITTEES
%QEEX_L$V§A &  HMEZEENIESR  The Board has established the audit committee, remuneration committee

ZBg- ﬁ***ﬂ»"&?ﬁi%&%ﬁ’]%i% ZAUN
TJ:Lﬁfrﬁ%%@ia BB IR & m R E
B SRARR RERAAE - WA ERRE
KR -
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and nomination committee, for overseeing particular aspects of the
Company's affairs. All the said Board committees of the Company are
established with defined written terms of reference, which are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange and are available to
shareholders upon request.

The majority of the members of the said Board committees are independent
non-executive Directors and the list of the chairman and members of each
Board committee is set out in the section headed “Corporate Information”
of this annual report.

42 ES1EABR/AET]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited



BEREES

BERZEGNTIZBERORIMBRBENE
T BRERERAEES(EHER  HUENED
TS KRR - RERTAAREX
ZEEN B E BRI BN RERE © ()RER
R RERIN R BEN B MR B
ARZBIZFRAERM ;iR kb
AR BB BB M EE R IR E ) T - LARKIE S
TTHE RSB B AR PR BRI R R~ |
BAMERIBRRITHN N EZFIR MEFE
WEW IR HEZ - (vREXF 6 RN
AR mEZNEE MBEANRREE - &
WRER—BZBAR - BHEAES QR ZER
BEZRWHE WESARFNTBARR (v
ERARRNMBHRESE - BREERA
ERIEBIHIE ¢« R(ViDERARANLEE LR

ak
Be °

BZZEEA ETMHBEEZE2020F12A8318
IFEIARBE RITNAEE - Ret  B%ZEE8
SEMEZTE  BETEVHEELE  THRE
NI EET e EE R B AREPREAS
BEB 2 ZERE  BHEARNBEZEE -
ERVERETE - ARERF - AEPEHIRE
BEBHIERRER - BEEEINBZEE &AE
BIEHE FERERS BRAQRND
¥ERMAEREITT EXRENBE - ARA
MEEERME ERZESNEHALRE
FLETRARAGEEAMENFERESET - T
FIEzEgHMEREER

REEREERE

Name of committee member

HERL LT (E/E)
FREBEE
MR+

Audit Committee

The primary duties of the audit committee are (i) to make recommendations
to the Board on the appointment, reappointment and removal of
the external auditor, and to approve the remuneration and terms of
engagement of the external auditor, and to consider any questions of
resignation or dismissal of that auditor; (i) to review and monitor the
external auditor’s independence and objectivity and the effectiveness of the
audit process in accordance with applicable standards; (jii) to communicate
and monitoring the work of internal audit and external auditors to develop
and implement policy on the engagement of an external auditor to
supply non-audit services, and to report to the Board, identify and make
recommendations on any matters requiring action or improvement; (iv)
discuss with the external auditor before the audit commences, the nature
and scope of the audit and reporting obligations, and ensure coordination
where more than one audit firm is involved; (v) to examine the financial
positions of the Company; (vi) to oversee the Company’s financial reporting
system, risk management and internal control systems; and (vii) to oversee
the Company’s corporate governance functions.

During the period commencing from the Listing Date to the period ended
31 December 2020, four audit committee meetings were held. In the
meetings, the audit committee reviewed the audit plan, reviewed the
annual financial results and report as well as the audit report prepared
by the external auditor relating to accounting issues and major findings
in course of audit, reviewed major internal audit issues, reviewed the
financial reporting system, compliance procedures, internal control and risk
management systems and processes, recommended re-appointment of
external auditors and relevant scope of works and continuing connected
transactions, ensured the Company’s corporate governance function and
fulfilled duties as aforesaid required. From the perspective of the Company’s
corporate governance, the audit committee also reviewed the Company’s
compliance with the Listing Rules and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report. The table below sets forth the details of the attendance
at these meetings:

HES
BRETRY
Attended/
Number of
meetings held

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna (Chairman) 4/4
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen 4/4
Ms Lin Yanna 4/4
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fRimeE
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee has adopted the second model described
in paragraph B.1.2(c) under Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules (i.e. make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Director and senior management member).

The primary duties of the remuneration committee are (i) to recommend
the Board on the Company’s remuneration policy and structure for the
Directors and senior management remuneration and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing remuneration policy;
(ii) to review and approve the management'’s remuneration proposals
with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and objectives; (iii) to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management, including benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment; (iv) to make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration of non-executive
Directors; (v) to consider salaries paid by comparable companies in
the industry in which the Company operates, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group; and
(vi) to consider and recommend to the Board for approval the grant of
share options to Directors and senior management pursuant to any share
option schemes in effect.

During the period commencing from the Listing Date to the period ended
31 December 2020, one remuneration committee meeting was held. In the
meeting, the remuneration committee considered and recommended to
the Board the remuneration package of the individual executive Directors
and senior management as well as the remuneration of the non-executive
Directors and fulfilled duties as aforesaid required. The table below sets
forth the details of the attendance at this meeting:

HE
BREBETRY
Attended/
Number of
meeting held

Ms Lin Yanna (Chairman) 11
Mr Lun Ruixiang 11
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen 11
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Details of the Directors’ remuneration for the period under review are set
out in note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of the remuneration by band of the members of senior
management (excluding Directors) of the Company for the period under
review is set out below:

A

Number of

person(s)

RMB750,000 or below 1
RMB750,001 to RMB1,000,000 1
RMB1,000,001 or above 4

Nomination Committee

The primary duties of the nomination committee are to (i) review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board annually and make
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to complement
the Company’s corporate strategy; (i) to make recommendations to
the Board on the appointment or re-appointment of Directors; (iii) to
identify individuals suitably qualified to become Directors and make
recommendations to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated
for directorship; (iv) to review the policy on Board diversity and make
disclosure of such in the corporate governance report; and (v) to assess the
independence of the independent non-executive Directors.

The nomination committee will assess the candidate or incumbent on
criteria such as integrity, experience, skill and ability to commit time and
effort to carry out the duties and responsibilities. The recommendations of
the nomination committee will then be put to the Board for decision.
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During the period commencing from the Listing Date to the period ended
31 December 2020, one nomination committee meeting was held. In
the meeting, the nomination committee reviewed the structure, size,
composition and diversity of the Board, reviewed the board diversity policy,
as well as assessed the independence of independent non-executive
Directors, made recommendation to the Board on the re-election of the
retiring Directors and fulfilled duties as aforesaid required. The table below
sets forth the details of the attendance at this meeting:

HE
BRETRY
Attended/
Number of
meeting held

Mr Lun Ruixiang (Chairman) 1/1
Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen 11
Ms Lin Yanna 11

Nomination Policy

() Objective
The nomination committee shall nominate suitable candidates
to the Board for it to consider and make recommendations to the

Shareholders for election as the Directors at general meetings or
appoint as Directors to fill casual vacancies.

The nomination committee may, as it considers appropriate,
nominate a number of candidates more than the number of
Directors to be appointed or re-appointed at a general meeting, or
the number of casual vacancies to be filled.

(i) Selection Criteria

In assessing a proposed candidate for the recommendation of
appointment or re-appointment of the members of the Board,
the factors which would be used as reference by the nomination
committee include but not limited to the Director’s reputation for
integrity, his/her accomplishment and experience in the industry
which the Group operates, his/her commitment in respect of
available time and relevant interest as well as the diversity in all
its aspects as set out in the Board Diversity Policy adopted by the
Company from time to time. These factors are for reference only,
and not meant to be exhaustive and decisive. The nomination
committee has the discretion to nominate any person, as it considers
appropriate.
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(i)~ Nomination Procedures

The nomination committee shall invite nominations of candidates
from Board members if any, for consideration by the nomination
committee prior to its meeting. The nomination committee may also
put forward candidates who are not nominated by Board members.

For filling a casual vacancy and/or as an addition to the Board, the
nomination committee shall make recommendations for the Board's
consideration and approval. For proposing candidates to stand for
election at a general meeting, the nomination committee shall make
nominations to the Board for its consideration and recommendation.

Until the issue of the shareholder circular, the nominated persons shall not
assume that they have been proposed by the Board to stand for election at
the general meeting.

In order to provide information of the candidates nominated by the
Board to stand for election at a general meeting, a circular will be sent to
shareholders. The names, brief biographies (including qualifications and
relevant experience), independence, proposed remuneration and any
other information, as required pursuant to the applicable laws, rules and
regulations, of the proposed candidates will be included in the circular to
shareholders.

A candidate is allowed to withdraw his candidature at any time before the
general meeting by serving a notice in writing to the Company Secretary.

The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general
meeting.

Board Diversity Policy

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Diversity Policy”) in
accordance with the provisions of the Listing Rules, which sets out the
approach to achieve diversity on the Board. All Board appointments shall be
based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against selection
criteria, having regard for the benefits of diversity of the Board, including
but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. The nomination committee
will monitor the implementation of the Diversity Policy and will review the
Diversity Policy, as appropriate, to ensure its effectiveness.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the period under review.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, inside
information announcements and other financial disclosures required under
the Listing Rules and other statutory and regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and
information as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed
assessment of the Company's financial statements, which are put to the
Board for approval.

The Directors are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

The statement of the independent auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
section headed “Independent Auditor’s Report”.

The remuneration paid to Ernst & Young ("EY"), the external auditors of
the Company for the period under review was RMB4.6 million and RMB1.3
million for audit services and non-audit services, respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Duties of the Board and the Management

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for overseeing the risk
management and internal control systems of the Group and reviewing their
effectiveness at least annually through the audit committee.

The Board is responsible for assessing and determining the nature and
extent of the risks that the Group is willing to take in achieving the
strategic objectives, and monitoring the establishment and maintenances
of appropriate and effective risk management and internal controls
system. The management is responsible for designing and maintaining an
effective risk management and internal control system as well as providing
confirmations to the Board on the effectiveness of the system.
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Such risk management and internal control systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
that there will be no material misstatements or losses.

Risk Management

The Group's risk management structure meets the best practice model
known as “Three Lines of Defense Model” with the first line of defense
being operational management and internal control measures, the second
line of defense being finance, cost and quality control, human resources
functions, legal and compliance, and company secretarial, and the third line
of defense being internal audit.

ol

E=ER
3rd Line of Defense
ShEE
B

External
Auditor

EERE

Regulator

WERE LT

Internal Audit

During the Year, the Board, through the audit committee, conducted a
comprehensive review of the risk management system, identified the risks
facing the Group and adopted the relevant countermeasures with the help
of external consultants, clarified the main department responsible for risk
management, countermeasures, objectives for improvement, and reported
the assessment results to the audit committee.
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Internal Control

The Group's risk management system is integrated with internal control
system which was developed based on the COSO (the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission) principles.

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable, but not
absolute, assurance on the effectiveness and efficiency of operations in
achieving the established corporate objectives, safeguarding the Group’s
assets, providing reliable financial reporting information and complying
with the applicable laws and regulations. Systems and procedures are also
established to identify, measure, manage and control, rather than eliminate,
different risks arising from different business and functional activities.

Internal Audit

The internal audit department plays an important role in enhancing internal
control system of the Group. It assists the Board in determining whether
sound internal control system is maintained and operated in compliance
with the established processes and standards by performing periodic
audits over all major operations of the Group, under a rotational cycle. An
annual audit plan (comprising annual audit focus and audit frequencies)
is prepared based on the department’s independent risk assessment.
Such work plan is discussed and agreed with the audit committee at the
beginning of each financial year. If any material risks or internal control
defects are found, the internal audit department will discuss with respective
department heads to have actions agreed and subsequently followed up,
in order to ensure that satisfactory controls are maintained. Major internal
audit findings will be submitted to the audit committee for review and
all improvement actions will be properly followed up by management to
ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable period of time.

In addition, the Group has engaged an independent consulting firm to
assist the internal audit department to provide professional internal audit
services to the Group. Such appointment aims to provide leadership to
and enhance professionalism and independence of the internal audit
department.

The Group complies with the requirements of Securities & Futures
Ordinance (“SFO") and the Listing Rules. The Group will disclose inside
information to the public as soon as reasonably practicable unless the
information falls within any of the “safe harbours”provisions and satisfies
the conditions under the SFO. Before the information is fully disclosed
to the public, the Group will ensure that the information is kept strictly
confidential.
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The Group has strictly prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside
information and established and implemented procedures for responding
to external enquiries about the Group’s affairs, so that only the executive
Directors are authorized to communicate with parties outside the Group.

Through the audit committee, the Board has conducted annual review
of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems for the Year, covering all material financial, operational and
compliance controls, and it has considered the Group’s risk management
and internal control system to be effective and adequate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

According to article 58 of the Company’s articles of association, any one
or more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all times
have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting to be called by the
Board for the transaction of any business specified in such requisition; and
such meeting shall be held within two months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to
proceed to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves)
may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by
the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands.
However, shareholders who wish to propose resolutions may follow
article 58 of the Company's articles of association for requisitioning an
extraordinary general meeting and including a resolution at such meeting.
The requirements and procedures of article 58 of the Company'’s articles of
association are set out above.

Regarding proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures are
available on the website of the Company.

Shareholders’ enquiries

If shareholders have any queries in connection with their shareholdings,
please write to or contact the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar,
Tricor Investor Services Limited, at:

Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
Tel: (852) 2980 1066

Fax: (852) 2262 7584

Website: www.tricorglobal.com

Shareholders may also make enquiries with the Board at the general
meetings of the Company.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company's articles of association has been amended and restated with
effect from the Listing Date, and are available on the respective website of
the Stock Exchange and the Company. There has not been any change in
the Company’s constitutional documents during the period commencing
from the Listing Date to the period ended 31 December 2020.
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EEGHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The principal
activities and other particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 1 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the Year and the financial position of the Group
as at 31 December 2020 are set out in the consolidated financial statements
on pages 85 to 208 of this annual report.

The Directors have recommended a final dividend of HK4.95 cents (2019:
special dividend of HK4.5 cents) per ordinary share of the Company,
amounting to a total final dividend of approximately RMB218,643,000 (2019:
RMB212,159,000).

The proposed final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company (the "2021 AGM") to be held on Wednesday, 23
June 2021, will be payable on Monday, 20 September 2021 to shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Friday, 2 July 2021.

The Board has adopted a dividend policy. The principles and guidelines of
such are as follows:

(@)  The Company has no fixed dividend payout ratio;

(b)  Any declaration and payment of dividends by the Company shall
be made in accordance with the constitutional documents of the
Company and the relevant laws and regulations, including the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands (the “Cayman Companies
Law"). Pursuant to the Cayman Companies Law, the Company
shall not declare or pay a dividend or make a distribution out of
contributed surplus (which, for this purpose, includes proceeds
arising from donated shares, credits resulting from the redemption
or conversion of shares at less than the amount set up as nominal
capital, and donations of cash and other assets to the Company), if
there are reasonable grounds for believing that (i) the Company is,
or would after the payment be, unable to pay its liabilities as they
become due; or (ii) the realisable value of the Company’s assets
would thereby be less than its liabilities;
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Any declaration and payment of dividends by the Company,
including the amount of any dividends to be declared, is subject
to the discretion of the Board and, where required under the
constitutional documents of the Company and the Cayman
Companies Law, the approval of the shareholders of the Company
(the "Shareholders”); and

The Directors may recommend a declaration and payment of
dividends after taking into account the Group's operations and
earnings, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future
development requirements, Shareholders’ interests and other factors
which they may deem relevant at such time.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
following periods:

(a)

from Friday, 18 June 2021 to Wednesday, 23 June 2021 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement
to attend and vote at the 2021 AGM. In order to be entitled to
attend and vote at the 2021 AGM, all completed transfer documents
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with
the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor
Services Limited of Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East,
Hong Kong no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Thursday,
17 June 2021; and

from Wednesday, 30 June 2021 to Friday, 2 July 2021 (both days
inclusive), for the purpose of ascertaining shareholders’ entitlement to
the proposed final dividend. In order to be qualified for the proposed
final dividend, all completed transfer documents accompanied by
the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited
at the address as set out in sub-paragraph (a) above no later than 4:30
p.m. (Hong Kong Time) on Tuesday, 29 June 2020.

During the periods mentioned in sub-paragraphs (a) and (b) above, no
transfer of shares will be registered.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

An overview and the outlook of the Group's business are provided in the
sections headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
& Analysis” of this annual report. No important event affecting the Group
has occurred since the end of the Year. Certain financial key performance
indicators can be found in the section headed “Financial Highlights”.

The financial risk management objectives and policies of the Group are
shown in note 45 to the consolidated financial statements.

An account of the Group's relationship with its key stakeholders and
discussions on the Group's environmental policies and performance are
included in a separate “Environmental, Social and Governance Report”,
which will be published in compliance with the stipulations under the
Listing Rules, and in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report”.

The Company is in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that
have a significant impact on the Company for the Year.

USE OF NET PROCEEDS FROM LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 16 January 2020. 788,100,000 new ordinary shares of the
Company of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued at the offer price of
HK$1.93 per share. The net proceeds from the Company’s listing amounted
to HKS1,391.1 million after deducting share issuance costs and listing
expenses. Such net proceeds are intended to be or have been applied in
accordance with the proposed applications as set out in the section headed
“Future Plans and Use of Proceeds” in the Prospectus. A summary of the use
of proceeds is set out below:

ARALTHEREFR(EERET)

Net proceeds from the Company's listing (in HK$ millions)

REEHAS RAEAERAS  KERREZ
FERERE B iifes B KA At RER
Expected
Utilized as at the  Unutilized as at timeline of
dateofthis  the date of this unutilized
Use of proceeds Planneduse  annualreport  annual report proceeds
BEENTEREE R To fund development costs to advance 021F 128
ERAR urban renewal projects 765.1 2953 4698  December 2021
BEMEEEBAEES Development and construction costs for
HmRLRERES RS the development of existing property
ERRME) MR ERE projects, namely Hefei Hijing City Centre TER
SN and Huijing Yanhu International Resort 2782 2782 - N/A
BEETHAMERITE Repayment of certain existing interest-
HREMER bearing bank borrowings and other NER
borrowings 2782 2782 - N/A
REESEREEERE To provide funding for working capital TEm
t—RARIAR and other general corporate purposes 696 696 - N/A
k] Total 13911 9213 4698
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The net proceeds that have not been utilized were temporarily placed in
short term deposits with licensed institutions in the PRC and Hong Kong as
at the date of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company during the
Year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company or the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes of the Company as disclosed in the
section headed “Share Option Scheme” of this report of the Directors
and in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements, no equity-linked
agreements were entered into by the Group during the Year or subsisted at
the end of the Year.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HKS$14 million (2019: HKS2.2 million).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 46 to the financial statements and in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity, respectively.

Under the Cayman Companies Law, the Company may make distribution to
the Shareholders out of contributed surplus. However, the Company cannot
declare or pay a dividend, or make a distribution out of this contributed
surplus if it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its debts as they
fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The five largest customers in aggregate accounted for less than 30.0% of
the Group's turnover for the Year. The five largest suppliers in aggregate
and the largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 39.6%
and 12.2% respectively by value of the Group's total purchases for the Year.

None of the Directors, their close associates or any Shareholders (which,
to the knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5.0% of the Company’s
issued share capital) had any beneficial interest in the major customers or
suppliers noted above.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Year and up to the date of this annual report were:

Chairman and Non-Executive Director

Mr Lun Ruixiang

Executive Directors

Mr Lun Zhao Ming (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson
Mr Lu Peijun

Independent Non-executive Directors

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna
MrHung Wan Shun Stephen
Ms Lin Yanna

In accordance with the Company’s articles of association, at each annual
general meeting one-third of the Directors for the time being shall retire
from office by rotation provided that every Director shall be subject to
retirement at an annual general meeting at least once every three years. Mr
Lun Zhao Ming, Mr Lu Peijun and Ms Lin Yanna shall retire from office at the
2021 AGM, and being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors and as at the date of this
report still considers them to be independent.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the 2021 AGM has a service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Group within one year
without payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF
THE COMPANY ORANY OF ITS ASSOCIATED
CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and chief executive and/or their respective associates of the Company in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance ("SFO")), which were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they were
taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which
were required to be entered in the register maintained by the Company
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which were required to be notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, were
as follows:

(i) Interestsin shares of the Company

R4 E B ‘EREEN BRAEREA
EEEH EEME (FE=E) FE A AR 43 Bott
Underlying Approximate
Number of shares percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interests shares (Note 1) interested shareholding
fRim e e SYEREER (WFE2)  4421,241,000 (L) ~ 4,421,241,000 84.15%
Mr Lun Ruixiang Interest in a controlled
corporation (Note 2)
foiBrEes 44,659,000 (L) 2,600,000 47,259,000 0.90%
Interest of spouse (Ht53)
(Note 3)
EnlAA - 9,600,000 9,600,000 0.18%
Beneficial owner
(GESC P BEREAA - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.11%
Mr Lun Zhao Ming Beneficial owner
Gl AT EnEAA - 2,000,000 2,000,000 0.04%
Mr Lau Kam Kwok Beneficial owner
Dickson
BB S E EnlAA - 6,000,000 6,000,000 0.11%
Mr Lu Peijun Beneficial owner

58 CESERARRAT

Huijing Holdings Company Limited



et -

FEILIRKZATREERHO R
(ERREH R DIV -

Notes:

EETRE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The letter “L" denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part
XV of the SFO) in such shares.

2. EE1WE%$$%$EE%§T§E%E@E%%§H&L 2. Wui Ying Holdings Limited, holding 4,421,241,000 shares of the
AR AR F4,421,241,0000% Company, is beneficially wholly-owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang.
&5 o

3. AR EZ T EneE A MERITR 3. Wui Shing Holdings Limited, holding 44,659,000 shares of the
BRAF] - FFHZARAF44,659,000% A% Company, is beneficially wholly-owned by Ms Chan Hau Wan and
7 MIRBES KEEERD - RIT=X Ms Chan Hau Wan is deemed to be interested in the same number of
TR AR ERIERAR QG FTEAER shares held by Wui Shing Holdings Limited by virtue of the SFO. Since
HFE NP HERER - AR ML Mr Lun Ruixiang is the spouse of Ms Chan Hau Wan, he is also deemed
ERRTI X TR - RIFES K to be interested in the same number of shares which are held by
BRG] RITER ARRID =X AT Ms Chan Hau Wan by virtue of the SFO.
HREE RO PR ER -

(i) RAATHEEEZENER (ii) Interests in the associated companies

HEEE
& ERIME

Number of

RAEBEE
BREFT

Percentage of

B EE AR

class of

shareholding

securities in interests in the
the associated

company

associated
company

Name of associated

Name of Director company Nature of interests

fRimE st

Mr Lun Ruixiang

ME R EAA R A )
Wui Ying Holdings Limited

BEmlEEA ] 100%
Beneficial owner

Br EXXFTHEE SN © 7202012 A31
H BMEEERAQNANESTHRAR
AR B S E A AAEEE 2D - 8
AR RERERPEEREEZESRBE
ﬂ%ﬁﬂ%%z{ HR MR R - SR
BRITHERNAE R

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the
Directors and the chief executive of the Company had registered
an interest or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations that
was required to be recorded pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.
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TERERELAFIRGRIEMZD SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
HNESERKRE SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

2020 12831H  MNALZ(BRESHALD  Asat 31 December 2020, the following persons (other than a Director or
AINESITHRABINERRR ML IEEAAL  chief executive of the Company) had interests or short positions in the
P EERESSAR  REIRIEFZESENRIEIE  shares or underlying shares of the Company which were recorded in the

BB 336I6FE AR RGBT EREM - register of interests required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
section 336 of the SFO:
BREGEE REEEN RRAERE A
BRREB HE (CiEa)) HERG By ARk
Number of Underlying Approximate
shares shares percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interests (Note 1) interested Total shareholding
R ER AR AR R EEES 4,421,241,000 (1) - 4,421,241,000 84.15%
Wui Ying Holdings Limited Interest in a controlled
corporation
BO=& T [t o 4,421,241,000 (1) 9,600,000 4,430,841,000 8433%
Ms Chan Hau Wan Interest of spouse (Hr:22)
(Note 2)
LR R 44,659,000 (1) - 44,659,000 0.85%
Interest in a controlled
corporation
BRBEAA - 2,600,000 2,600,000 0.05%

Beneficial owner

BtaF - Notes:

1. FHRILREZALRZEROOFEUER 1. The letter “L" denotes a person’s “long position” (as defined under Part XV of
RES KB BERIEXVE) the SFO) in such shares.

2. AaHETEER 2 ERAMERITIRABMR 2. WuiYing Holdings Limited, holding 4,421,241,000 shares of the Company, is

AR FBARAF4,421,241,0000 8845 ™ beneficially wholly-owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang and Mr Lun Ruixiang is deemed
RIEEZRBERY - minFEEREAR to be interested in the same number of shares held by Wui Ying Holdings
BERITIRE R AT FTEAE R SR R Limited by virtue of the SFO. Since Ms Chan Hau Wan is the spouse of Mr Lun
B - - IO =L AfRint AR Ruixiang, she is also deemed to be interested in the same number of shares
18 REBEZFRBAEED - BRITERESN G which are held by Mr Lun Ruixiang by virtue of the SFO.

Inte R A PTS IER & B o P HE A o

B EXCETIERE SN - R20209F12H8318 » % Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, no person had registered
ATRARAT 2Bk #HAIRIEFE  an interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
H M EAE GBI E3365E TN AR FIRERMM  Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
NZEzmIOKE © pursuant to section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

A.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The following is a summary of the principal terms of the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”), effective
from 6 April 2019:

1. Purpose:

The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide selected participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
selected participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme provides the Company with a flexible
means of retaining, incentivizing, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected
participants.

2. Participants:

The Board may determine any directors and employees of any
member of the Group, whom the Board considers, in its sole
discretion, have contributed to the Group, to take up options
to subscribes for shares of the Company.

3. Total number of shares available for issue under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the percentage of issued
share capital as of the date of this report:

As at the date of this annual report, the total number of
ordinary shares currently available for issue under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme is 70,550,000, representing 1.34% of the
issued share capital of the Company.
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The period within which shares must be taken up under
an option:

The period within which the Shares shall be taken up under
an option shall be a period during which the option may
be exercised. Subject to the provisions for early termination
contained in the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, such period
shall be the time as indicated in the letter of grant to each
grantee.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments must be
made:

An offer of an option shall be deemed to have been accepted
within 10 business days from the date of offer of grant of the
option upon acceptance of the option duly signed by the
grantee together with a payment of RMB1.0.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price in relation to each option granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be 50.0% to 70.0% of the
final offer price per Offer Share (as defined in the Prospectus) in
Hong Kong dollars.

The remaining life of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme was expired on the Listing
Date. Subsequent to the expiry of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme, no further option can be granted thereunder but in
all other respects, the provisions of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force and all options granted prior
to such expiry shall continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance therewith.



FRERE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

RIEE R AFEERBEREEIR The movements in the number of share options under the Pre-
e RS A N AEENEIE IPO Share Option Scheme during the Year were as follows:
AR TR -
EREETNRAHE
Number of shares under the options
Bo0F  AEE AR AFE AFE Hoowf 8k BE/7RE
SREFRIRES 1818 R i i X% nAnE AKE  (B/R/H)
Vesting/
Asat  Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed Asat  Exercise Exercise
Category and name of Date of grant 1January during during during during  31December price period
participant (dd/mm/yyyy) 220 theYear  theYear  theYear  theYear 2020  pershare  (dd/mmiyyyy)
ES
Directors
)ik 06/04/2019 8600000 - - - - 8600000 0965ETT i)
Mr Lun Ruixiang HKS0.965 (Note 1)
B/10/019 1000000 - - - - 1000000  0965ETT i)
HKS0.965 (Note 1)
fRIREAEE 06/04/2019 6000000 - - - - 6000000 0965ETT i)
Mr Lun Zhao Ming HKS0.965 (Note 1)
2 06/04/2019 2000000 - - - - 200000 135TET (Wit
MrLau Kam Kwok Dickson HKS1.351 (Note 1)
EhERs 06/04/2019 6000000 - - - - 6000000 0965ETT (Wit
Mr Lu Peijun HKS0965 Note 1)
gt 2600000 - - - - 360000
Sub-total
EZVHEA
Associate of Director
ROERL (i) 2100019 2600000 - - - - 2600000 0965ETT i)
Ms Chan Hau Wan (Note J) HKS0.965 (Note 1)
gt 2600000 - - - - 260000
Sub-total
&8
Employees
At 06/04/2019 14900000 - - - S 1490000 0965ETT (Wit)
Inaggregate HK80.965 (Note 1)
06/04/2019 10,350,000 - - - 2650000 7700000 125458 T (W)
HKS1.2545 (Note 1)
06/04/2019 10,900,000 - - - 1200000 9700000 1351 (1)
HKS1.351 Note 1)
06/04/2019 12,350,000 - - - 5,100,000 7250000 1351 (H3)
HKS1.351 Note3)
/100019 4800000 - - - S 480000 13IET (Wite)
HKS1.351 (Note4)
it 53300000 - - - BO0000 44350000
Sub-total
it 79300000 - - - a%000 70550000
Total
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Notes:

20.0% of the underlying shares of the Company is vested from
16 January 2020 to 15 January 2021; 20.0% of the underlying
shares of the Company is vested from 16 January 2021 to 15
January 2022; 20.0% of the underlying shares of the Company
is vested from 16 January 2022 to 15 January 2023; 20.0% of the
underlying shares of the Company is vested from 16 January
2023 to 15 January 2024; 20.0% of the underlying shares of the
Company is vested from 16 January 2024 to 15 January 2025.

Ms Chan Hau Wan is the spouse of Mr Lun Ruixiang. Pursuant
to Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules, Ms Chan Hau Wan is an
associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang.

The underlying shares of the Company will be vested in five
vesting periods as the same manner in note 1 above. The first
vesting date varies for different grantees from 19 June 2020 to
14 August 2021.

The underlying shares of the Company will be vested in five
vesting periods as the same manner in note 1 above. The first
vesting date varies for different grantees from 4 May 2021 to 14
August 2021,

Post-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a Post-IPO Share Option Scheme (the
“Post-IPO Share Option Scheme”) by resolutions in writing of the
Shareholders on 11

December 2019. The following is a summary of

the principal terms of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme:

Purpose:

The purpose of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is to
provide selected participants with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
selected participants to work towards enhancing the
value of the Company and its shares for the benefit of the

Company and Shareholders as a whole. The Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme will provide the Company with a flexible
means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to selected
participants.
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Participants:

Any individual, being an employee, director, consultant,
professional, customer, supplier, agent, franchisee partner,
adviser of contractor of any member of the Group or any
affiliate who the Board or its delegate(s) considers, in their sole
discretion, to have contributed or will contribute to the Group
is entitled to be offered and granted options.

Total number of shares available for issue under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme and the percentage of issued
share capital as at the date of this report:

The total number of shares of the Company which may be
issued upon exercise of all options to be granted under the
Post-IPO Share Option Scheme and any other schemes is
525,400,000, being no more than 10.0% of the total number of
shares in issue on 16 January 2020, being the date the shares
of the Company commence trading on the Stock Exchange.

The overall limit on the number of shares of the Company
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the Post-IPO Share
Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the
Company at any time must not, in aggregate, exceed 30.0% of
the shares of the Company in issue from time to time (“Option
Scheme Limit").

Maximum entitlement of each participant under the Post-
IPO Share Option Scheme:

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to be
issued upon exercise of the option granted to each participant
(including both exercised and outstanding options) in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1.0% of the total number of
shares of the Company in issue. Any grant of further options
above this limit shall be subject to approval of the shareholders
of the Company at general meeting, with such participant and
his close associates (or his associates if such participant is a
connected person of the Company) abstaining from voting.

The period within which shares must be taken up under
an option:

The period which the Board may in its absolute discretion
determine but in any event not exceeding ten years from the
date of grant.
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The minimum period for which an option must be held
before it can be exercised:

The Board may at its discretion impose any conditions,
restrictions or limitations in relation thereto in addition to those
expressly set forth in the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme as it
may think fit (which shall be stated in the offer letter) including,
among other things, vesting period and conditions, restrictions
or limitations relating to the achievement of operating or
financial targets.

The amount payable on application or acceptance of the
option and the period within which payments must be
made:

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the
option to which offer relates shall be deemed to have been
granted and to have taken effect when the duplicate of the
offer letter comprising acceptance of the offer duly signed
by the grantee with the number of shares of the Company in
respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein.
The grantee shall pay HK$1.00 to the Company by way of
consideration for the grant, which must be received by the
Company within 20 business days from the date on which
the offer letter is delivered to the grantee. Any offer may be
accepted in respect of less than the number of shares for
which itis offered provided that it is accepted in a board lot for
dealing in the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange or an
integral multiple thereof.

The basis of determining the exercise price:

The exercise price of the option shall be determined by the
Board but shall be not less than the higher of (i) the closing
price of the shares of the Company as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of grant; (ii) the
average closing price of the shares of the Company as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (iii)
the nominal value of a share of the Company on the date of
grant.

The remaining life of the Post-IPO Share Option Scheme:

The Post-IPO Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for a
period of 10 years commencing on the Listing Date.

As of the date of this annual report, no options were granted,
exercised, cancelled or lapsed under the Post-IPO Share Option
Scheme.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

On 3 August 2020 and 31 August 2020, the Company respectively issued
the 12.5% senior notes due 2021, in an aggregate principal amount of
US$135 million (the “Notes”). Wui Ying Holdings Limited, being directly
wholly-owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang and thus a connected person of the
Company, has subscribed the Notes in an aggregate amount of US$5
million. As the Notes were issued under normal commercial terms,
and there the Notes were not secured by the assets of the Group, the
subscription of the Notes by Wui Ying constituted fully exempt connected
transaction. For details of the issuance of the Notes, please refer to the
Company's announcements dated 3 August 2020, 1 September 2020 and
17 September 2020 respectively.

Please refer to the share option schemes operated by the Company as
disclosed above and in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

Apart from these, neither at the end of nor at any time during the Year did
there subsist any arrangement to which the Company, any of its subsidiaries
or holding companies, was a party, and the objects of or one of the objects
of such arrangement are/is to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any
other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

None of the Directors had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to the business
of the Group to which the Company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party during the Year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the Directors' letters of appointment, no contracts concerning
the management and administration of the whole or any substantial part of
the business of the Company were entered into or existed during the Year.
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DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

The Company shall receive, from each of the controlling shareholders

of the Company (the “Covenantor”), an annual declaration on his/her/
its compliance with the undertakings contained in the deed of non-
competition (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) entered into by each of them
in favour of the Company pursuant to which each of the Covenantors has
undertaken to the Company that he/she/it shall or shall procure that his/

her/its close associates (other than members of the Group) shall:

(i)

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

not, directly or indirectly, carry on, or participate in, or be interested
or involved or engaged in or acquire or hold any right or interest
(in each case whether for his/her/its own account or in conjunction
with or on behalf of other person, and as a shareholder, partner,
agent or otherwise and whether for profit, reward or otherwise) in
any business which is or is about to be engaged in any business
or investment activities in the PRC and Hong Kong, except for the
existing Ancillary Properties (as defined in the Prospectus), which
is the same as, similar or in competition or likely to compete with
the businesses carried on or contemplated to be carried or by any
member of the Group (the “Restricted Business”);

if there is any project or new business opportunity that relates to the
Restricted Business (“New Business Opportunities” and each, a “New
Business Opportunity”), refer such New Business Opportunity to the
Group for consideration;

not invest or participate in any Restricted Business;

If any of the Covenantors, their respective close associates and/or
companies controlled by them (other than the Group) wishes to sell
any interest in land to any third party (the “Opportunity for Sale”),
each of the Covenantors will and will procure their associates that
the Opportunity for Sale is offered to the Company and the Company
shall have a first right of refusal in respect of such Opportunity for
Sale; and

provide, during the Relevant Period (as defined in the Prospectus),
where necessary and at least on an annual basis, all information
necessary for the review by the Company and the independent
non-executive Directors, subject to any relevant laws, rules and
regulations or any contractual obligations, to enable them to review
the Covenantors' and their close associates’ (other than members of
the Group) compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition, and to
enable the Company to enforce the Deed of Non-Competition.

Details of the Deed of Non-Competition were disclosed in the Prospectus

under the section headed "Relationship with Our Controlling Shareholders”.
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As of the date of this annual report, the Company had received an annual
written confirmation from each of the Covenantors in respect of their and
their close associates’ compliance with the Deed of Non-Competition. The
independent non-executive Directors had reviewed and were satisfied that
each of the Covenantors has complied with the Deed of Non-Competition
for the Period and up to the date of this annual report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of the continuing connected transactions of the Company during
the Year are as follows:

(1) Property management services provided by Dongguan
Huijing Property Management Company Limited (3
ETERYERKE B R QA (“Dongguan Property
Management”)

On 11 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
agreement with Dongguan Property Management to regulate
the transactions with Dongguan Property Management and its
subsidiaries in relation to the provision of pre-delivery property
management services for the unsold properties held for sale
only (a) before the completion; (b) after completion and until the
incorporation of the owners association of the relevant properties are
set up; and (c) the engagement of the initial property management
services provided had been renewed upon expiry of the initial term
(the “Framework Management Services Agreement”). Dongguan
Property Management is beneficially owned as to 60.0% by Ms Chan
Hau Wan and as to 40.0% by Mr Lun Ruixiang, and is therefore an
associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang and Ms Chan Hau Wan and a connected
person of the Company under the Listing Rules.

The Framework Management Services Agreement shall become
effective from the Listing Date and up to and including 31 December
2021 and the term may be renewed as the parties may mutually
agree, subject to compliance with the requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations.
The principal terms of the Framework Management Services
Agreement are set forth below:

(i) Dongguan Property Management or its subsidiaries shall,
where it is selected following the relevant tender processes,
provide management and related services to the Group's
unsold properties held for sale according to the tender
documents and definitive management services agreements
to be entered into between Dongguan Property Management
and members of the Group from time to time;
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(i) the management fees payable by the Group in relation to the
unsold properties held for sale shall be based on the fee quotes
to be submitted by Dongguan Property Management under
the relevant tender bids which will be subject to the selection
procedures set out under the subsection headed “Non-exempt
Continuing Connected Transactions—Pricing terms and
tender process of relevant management services and internal
decoration services after the Listing” in the Prospectus; and

(i) the definitive management services agreement to be signed
between Dongguan Property Management and members of
the Group in relation to the unsold properties held for sale
shall only contain provisions which are, in all material aspects,
consistent with the binding principles, guidelines, terms and
conditions set out in the Framework Management Services
Agreement.

The maximum aggregate annual property management fees to be
paid by the Company to Dongguan Property Management in relation
to the property management services for the unsold properties
held for sale for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021
will be approximately RMB2.9 million, RMB5.2 million and RMB8.1
million, respectively. Pursuant to a supplemental agreement dated 23
February 2021 entered into between the Company and Dongguan
Property Management, the annual cap of the annual property
management fees will be increased from RMB8.1 million to RMB10.0
million for the year ending 31 December 2021. For details, please
refer to the “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the Company'’s
announcement dated 23 February 2021.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited



(2)

EHFEE ERIDBRETHSESE )
HEVNFENRANBI=ZAFEEET
FEBENRERELWEHRE : (V8
E2021F 2R3 1AL =ZAFEAREEE
FI B R TE AR AB RT 2R M AE ¢ (i) B Z= 2021
FNABALE=ZEAFEREEMNTER
HEWEL2ERAEEMENRBBARE
L) ¢ (viEAR B TER AR YE
EIREEIES RV ELBRMAEIEAE
WK MEERE -

HE2021F12A3BIE=EFE - AR
EREIERS HEE THEREEIE XA
RG22 FE LR —HEXZER
ABE L RRFERELETBIBI%EY
ER5.0% IEREERGHEETHE
AR ME E2021F12831H IE=ZEF
EEFNEZRFTELRYBETEMR
BIZB4AZTE THER FEEHEA
EHIRTE - HERRETE R EROER

E o

BERESEENKARQ A (AIER
EMESEETIRARAAD (ER
EE ) RHEANKHHRY

R2019F 12 11H » ARGREREEZ
I —IBAEZRE N MR HE - AR
EXASEERSELRRAEBIREM
EARMARBEITHR G 2 GRS AGE T
(MERKMRBHE]) - BIBIERE

R g - W EESREFRREER
SEE - ARBEASEEREELSET
REITNRKREFEMRBHE - R
ELRAASEREZTAEMRE - R
SEYHRNFEAEE=ER - At
RIBELETHA - R ELARIEELE
BB ARARR 2 @EAL -

(2)

EEGHE
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The above annual caps are derived based on (i) the number of the
existing unsold properties of the completed development for the
three years ending 31 December 2021; (i) the expected aggregate
gross floor area to be developed by the Group for the three years
ending 31 December 2021; (iii) the anticipated number of unsold
units for the three years ending 31 December 2021 with reference
to the relevant historical unsold rate of the Group's properties; (iv)
the prescribed property management fees guidance under the
applicable regulations of the PRC; and (v) the property management
fees charged for comparable developments.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the proposed
annual caps in respect of the relevant management and related
services under the Framework Management Services Agreement
exceed 0.1% but are all less than 5.0% on an annual basis for the three
years ending 31 December 2021, the management services under
the Framework Management Services Agreement and the proposed
annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021
are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Provision of interior decoration services by Guangdong
Huifeng Eco-technology Limited (BFEZ 4R
BBR/A7F]) (formerly known as Guangdong Huifeng
Construction Limited (RETEZEZETREERAT))
(“Guangdong Huifeng”)

On 11 December 2019, the Company entered into a framework
interior decoration services agreement with Dongguan Huifeng to
govern the terms and conditions of the transactions between the
Group and Dongguan Huifeng in connection with the provision of
interior decoration services to the Group (the “Framework Decoration
Services Agreement”). Pursuant to the Framework Decoration
Services Agreement, where Dongguan Huifeng shall be selected
following the relevant selection process, Dongguan Huifeng shall
provide interior decoration services to the Group according to the
definitive building decoration services agreement to be signed by
the Group with Dongguan Huifeng from time to time. Dongguan
Huifeng is beneficially owned by Mr Lun Ruixiang, and is therefore
an associate of Mr Lun Ruixiang and a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules.
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The Framework Decoration Services Agreement took effect upon
the Listing Date and will be valid until 31 December 2021, subject
to compliance with the requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules and all other applicable laws and regulations. Pursuant
to the Framework Decoration Services Agreement, the provision of
interior decoration services by Dongguan Huifeng will be subject
to a selection process overseen by the Group's review panel.
Please refer to the paragraph headed “~Non-exempt Continuing
Connected Transactions—Pricing terms and tender process of
relevant management services and internal decoration services after
the Listing” in the Prospectus with respect to the pricing terms and
tender process.

The maximum aggregate annual interior decoration services fees
to be paid by the Company to Dongguan Huifeng in respect of the
provision of interior decoration services for each of the three years
ending 31 December 2021 will be approximately RMB33.0 million,
RMB18.2 million and RMB33.0 million, respectively.

The above annual caps are determined with reference to (i) the
estimation on the demand for the relevant interior decoration
services, projected with reference to the aggregate gross floor area
under development for the Group's existing property projects; (ii)
the historical amounts paid to Dongguan Huifeng by the Group
for building decoration services during the Track Record Period (as
defined in the Prospectus); and (iii) the Group's effort to diversify its
supplier base in connection with the building decoration services.

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratios of the proposed
annual caps in respect of the relevant interior decoration services
under the Framework Decoration Services Agreement exceed 0.1%
but are all less than 5.0% on an annual basis for the three years
ending 31 December 2021, the building decoration services under
the Framework Management Services Agreement and the proposed
annual caps for each of the three years ending 31 December 2021
are subject to the reporting, annual review and announcement
requirements but are exempt from the independent Shareholders’
approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
Framework Management Services Agreement and the Framework
Decoration Services Agreement, and confirmed that each of the
continuing connected transactions has been entered into:

(@) in the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Company;

(b)  on normal commercial terms or better to the Group; and

(c) inaccordance with the relevant agreements governing the
above continuing connected transactions, the terms of which
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders
as awhole.

Ernst & Young, the Company's auditor, was engaged to report on
the Group's continuing connected transactions above in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and with reference to Practice Note
740 Auditor's Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under
the Hong Kong Listing Rules issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants. EY has issued an unqualified letter
containing its findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other non-exempt connected
and continuing connected transactions, arrangement or contracts
of significance to which the Company, its holding company or
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest or interest in competing business, whether directly or
indirectly, nor contracts of significance between the Company or its
subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or its subsidiaries, subsisted
at the end of the Year. Further, subsequent to the year ended 31
December 2020, the Company entered into certain new continuing
connected transactions, including (i) the Commercial Property
Management Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan
Property Management, (ii) the Sales Centre Support Services
Framework Agreement with Dongguan Property Management, (iii)
the Commercial Operational and Value-added Services Framework
Agreement with Dongguan Huisheng and (iv) the Property Agency
Services Framework Agreement with Dongguan Leyuan. For details,
please refer to the “Continuing Connected Transactions” of the
Company's announcement dated 23 February 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Certain significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the Year, which do not constitute connected or continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules are disclosed in note 42 to
the consolidated financial statements.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Company's articles of association, the Directors or other
officers of the Company shall be entitled to be indemnified out of the assets
and profits of the Company against all losses or damages which they may
incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted
in or about the execution of their duty in their respective offices. The
Company has arranged appropriate directors’ and officers’ liability insurance
coverage for the Directors and officers of the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

From the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report, neither the
Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company.

BANKLOANS AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Particulars of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group as of 31
December 2020 are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets, liabilities and non-controlling
interests of the Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 4 of
this annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the projects and land parcels of the Group are shown on
pages 11 to 16 of this annual report.
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EMOLUMENT OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The Directors and senior management of the Company receive
compensation in the form of fees, salaries, contributions to pension
schemes, discretionary bonuses, housing and other allowances and
other benefits in kind. The Company also reimburses Directors and senior
management for expenses which are necessarily and reasonably incurred
for providing services to the Company or discharging their duties in relation
to the operations of the Company.

The emolument policy for the employees of the Group is set up by the
Human Resources Department and the employees’ emoluments are
determined on the basis of their qualifications, experiences and area of
expertises.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the Company
are reviewed and recommended by the remuneration committee of the
Company and decided by the Board, having regard to the Company'’s
performance and the remuneration benchmark in the industry.

The Group has adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme and the Post-IPO
Share Option Scheme for the Directors and the employees of the Group,
details of which are disclosed in section headed “Share Option Schemes”.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors are set out in note 8 to the
consolidated financial statements set out in this annual report.

PUBLIC FLOAT

According to Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules, there must be an open
market in the securities for which listing is sought and for a sufficient public
float of an issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means
that at least 25.0% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times
be held by the public. Pursuant to Rule 8.08(1)(d) of the Listing Rules, the
Stock Exchange may, subject to certain conditions and at its discretion,
accept a lower percentage of between 15.0% to 25.0% in the case of issuers
with an expected market capitalization at the time of listing of over HK$10.0
billion.
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The Stock Exchange had granted the Company a waiver from strict
compliance with the requirement under Rule 8.08(1)(a) of the Listing Rules
to accept a lower public float percentage subject to the condition that:

(i) the minimum public float shall be the higher of (a) 15.0%; or (b) such
percentage of Shares to be held by the public immediately after the
completion of the global offering (as increased by any Shares to be
issued under any exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in
the Prospectus));

(i) the Company’s market capitalisation at the time of listing is over
HKS$10 billion;

(i) the Company will make appropriate disclosure of the lower
prescribed percentage of public float in the Prospectus together with
a confirmation of sufficiency of public float in its successive annual
reports after the listing; and

(iv)  there will be an open market in the shares offered in the global
offering, and the number of shares and the extent of their distribution
would enable the market to operate properly.

Based on information publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors as at the date of this report, the Company has
maintained the sufficient public float as required under the Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance. Information on the corporate governance practices adopted
by the Company is set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance
Report”.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the Year have been
audited by Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as independent auditor of the Company will be proposed at
the 2021 AGM.

By Order of the Board
Lun Ruixiang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 25 March 2021

Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the shareholders of Huijing Holdings Company Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Huijing Holdings
Company Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 85 to 208, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2020, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards ("“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the
audit of the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for
our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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Key audit matters (Continved)

RANETNMEEERETSEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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HREE A B AN B B A R A A AR 25%05 TE B
RN EREH RIEN F30%ZE 60%H %
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31

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the
Group's income tax expense of RMB589 million
comprised corporate income tax at a statutory tax
rate at 25% and land appreciation tax at tax rates
ranging from 30% to 60% incurred by the Group's
subsidiaries in the People’s Republic of China.
The determination of the tax provision involves
significant management estimates about the group
companies’ taxable income and the appropriate
application of the tax rate, in particular when
estimating the land appreciation tax.

We identified this as a key audit matter because
the income tax expense is significant to the Group
and the income tax provision assessment process is
complex and involves estimates.

Related disclosures of the accounting judgements
and estimates, the income tax expense and the tax
provision for land appreciation tax are included in
notes 3, 10 and 31 to the financial statements.

BPFHEASRBEERRENERAEFERATEE
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Our audit procedures to assess the adequacy of the income tax provision
included the following:

obtaining management’s schedules to assess the completeness of
the tax computations;

comparing the financial information used in these management
schedules to the corresponding accounting records or other
underlying documentation;

involving our internal tax specialists in the evaluation of
management’s application of the relevant tax regulations to the tax

computations for significant entities in the Group; and

examining the correspondence with tax authorities to assess whether
there were any uncertain tax positions or tax disputes.
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RBFAFER

Key audit matters (Continued)

BARETEER BANBTNNEERARETSE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Key audit matter

KEYFIGZE

Valuation of investment properties
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m&ﬁ%%%&ﬁ%AE%MME%ﬁo
EEREMEATEAEEAGT M &
EEDEBINEEEMPEEBE T AT
B o INERHERMYE BEBEMIFITEELD
BEYERATRNGHERR - HERAA
ELEREK  BIE2ER—NVEMRRZE
PEZRETSHASEHTHESE  HS
BER IR RHEEXR  (EAXRLE
ARAEER o

HREREMEY BEXEmMsSBEANKE
MENBEY RAE - SR FIR R T
REEETEA

ARG AN R R AN EATES E
BEANY B HEN R4 -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
investment properties with a carrying amount
of RMB1,434 million measured at fair value.
Significant estimation is required to determine
the fair values of the investment properties
and the Group engaged an external valuer
to assist management to determine the fair
values. Different valuation models were applied
by the external valuer to the different types of
investment properties held by the Group. The
models included various assumptions, including
estimated rental values with reference to the
current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, rental growth
rates, discount rates, long term vacancy rates,
occupancy rates and capitalisation rates.

We identified this as a key audit matter because
the investment properties are significant to the
Group and valuation of investment properties
involves estimates.

Related disclosures of the accounting judgements
and estimates and fair values of the investment
properties are included in notes 3 and 14 to the
financial statements.

RO EREDERHENETEFEEATEER
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Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of the investment properties
included the following:

obtaining and reviewing the valuation reports prepared by the
external valuer engaged by the Group;

assessing the external valuer's qualifications, experience and expertise
and considering the external valuer’s objectivity and independence;
and

involving our internal valuation specialists to assist us in evaluating
the assumptions, methodologies and parameters adopted in the
valuations.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Other information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the directors for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in

discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.

20204 R  Annual Report 2020 81



T8 N A% BLAD RS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

EEBMREESMBRRARE
MRE

BMWE S RHRANBRREBESTE
ARG R T SR E A E AR
RSARIRE - W ABERFE R AORUED
Wk o RMEAZERERS - RILZIER
HRMEM AL - BATERARENARM
EAEMATE ERRBEMEE -

BEARERSKFORE  ETEREREE
ERIEAETHERS AR -EAERRAF
FERS #RE TR - AR IR F] DA By BRGF S SR AR B
- RS EBHEFIER SUEALER A ER
BIRAMBHMREREAELMEERE - B
BRAMERRAATRRFEERK -

ERBE SR ENETEHEREF - 3

ERTERALE  RETERREEE - 1M
DI

BB FHE RN FE R R E R A
MBI FEERERRAA RS - &
AR RAEFARYELRR

AEBISFREMEENEEE 1R
BFMERERE - MRMGFAI RS &
woRE ERER ERRL &

BRAmEsz £ - FittReeEBRER
-’Eﬁﬁ%@lﬁ’]ékf AR BRI ) R e B A
RMEBNBAFHRRANER RS

THEREE AR ARG UREHE
EMEFERF BEEMNYYE S5E
NEBIER B RMERRER -

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.
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Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements (Continued)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and
to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of
doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Lok Man Ho.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

25 March 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

EHZ2020F12A31 HIFFE  Yearended 31 December 2020

20204 20194
2020 2019
HtaF ARETR AREFIT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
Iz REVENUE 5 5,153,233 3,605,606
HEMA Cost of sales (3,368,907) (1,960,659)
EF Gross profit 1,784,326 1,644,947
H AU A Rz Other income and gains 5 142,329 27,403
SHE RO ERX Selling and distribution expenses (157,595) (83,818)
THRAX Administrative expenses (510,150) (263,395)
REMERTFERZFE Fair value gains on investment
properties, net 14 41,559 11,027
HAthFA 2 Other expenses (31,889) (12,466)
Hﬁ%ﬁi$ Finance costs 7 (135,554) (82,421)
DIE—REERERF, () Share of profit/(loss) of a joint venture 196,103 (14,468)
BR B A F PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6 1,329,129 1,226,809
Fris i Income tax expense 10 (588,655) (606,798)
F R PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 740,474 620,011
AT PG - Attributable to:
ISYNEIEZEPN Owners of the parent 516,356 615,390
SRR R Non-controlling interests 224,118 4621
740,474 620,011
FREHE AR TRET EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT
EXREE(ERARET) Basic and diluted (RMB per share) 12 0.10 0.14
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

B Z2020F 1231 HIEFE  Yearended 31 December 2020

20205 20194
2020 2019
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FREF PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 740,474 620,011
HiMEgeET > EEEEN Other comprehensive loss that may be
HEmEmEEE : reclassified to profit or loss
in subsequent periods:
MEGINETGHE K =58 Exchange differences on translation
of foreign operations (30,551) (1,595)
FRNEHM P EERE Other comprehensive loss for the year (30,551) (1,595)
FRZHEBABE TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR
THE YEAR 709,923 618416
LA B - Attributable to:
HREHEE A Owners of the parent 485,805 613,795
FEEAR Non-controlling interests 224,118 4621
709,923 618416
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020%F 12H31H 31 December 2020

20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETR AREET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FRBEE NON-CURRENT ASSETS
W - BE L&A Property, plant and equipment 13 65,330 17,607
HREEE Right-of-use assets 15(a) 6,684 10,134
HEE Investment properties 14 1,433,900 1,002,900
| EE Intangible assets 16 7,618 5,460
R—REELENIRE Investment in a joint venture 17 225,061 28,958
FER B A Hﬂﬁmiiﬁl Land held for development for sale 18 496,728 286,975
Bl —REETER Receivable from a joint venture 22 - 492,149
RIETHIAE & Deferred tax assets 32 165,802 154,076
EMENE EBTE Total non-current assets 2,401,123 1,998,259
REBEE CURRENT ASSETS
FHERB AR EMN i Land held for development for sale 18 1,161,151 757,842
ViRt y/E S Properties under development 19 2,944,941 2,875,681
BEHENSRIYE Completed properties held for sale 20 1,153,279 1,075,239
B 5 REUWER Trade receivables 21 56,760 112,806
TERRUIR - EMERGRIA R Prepayments, other receivables and
HEi&EE other assets 22 2,181,815 1,046,327
R —REERFENRIE Receivable from a joint venture 22 258,121 -
BAFEFABEZERMEE  Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 23 494,838 -
TE IR E T Prepaid land appreciation tax 3,241 22,336
XRHRE Restricted cash 24 386,855 276,304
BeMREEED Cash and cash equivalents 24 1,696,868 452 464
mEEERE Total current assets 10,337,869 6,618,999
REBAEE CURRENT LIABILITIES
B 5 R Trade payables 25 1,738,948 1,582,636
HiENAHIE  ElRe R Other payables, deposits received and
JEFtE R accruals 26 719,989 313,602
HERE Lease liabilities 15(b) 5,163 5,709
aHaE Contract liabilities 27 2,223,304 1,724,907
BN EEFIE Amounts due to directors 28 - 62,442
FTERITREMBER Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings 29 823,100 1,277,150
BEEE Senior notes 30 871,332 -
SIS Provision for corporate income tax 644,145 564,036
T IBE T A Provision for land appreciation tax 37 697,045 595,145
mEBELE Total current liabilities 7,723,026 6,125,627
REBEEFRE NET CURRENT ASSETS 2,614,843 493,372
EEABEBRRBEE TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
LIABILITIES 5,015,966 2,491,631
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

2020F12831H 31 December 2020

20204
2020

ARBT T
RMB’000

20194
2019
ARET T
RMB'000

kRBES NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
FTRRITREAMBER Interest-bearing bank and other

borrowings 29 1,073,040 781,860
HERE Lease liabilities 15(b) 2,134 4663
FEERIEAE Deferred tax liabilities 32 111,156 82,484
ERBEERE Total non-current liabilities 1,186,330 869,007
BEEFH Net assets 3,829,636 1,622,624
R EQUITY
BARES ABGER Equity attributable to owners of the

parent
BEITIRA Issued capital 33 47,972 —*
G Reserves 35 3,196,838 1,585,879

3,244,810 1,585,879
IEERE R Non-controlling interests 584,826 36,745
ks Total equity 3,829,636 1,622,624
* R LR ARSS00TT © * The amount is less than RMB500.
fra oA 2em
Lun Zhao Ming Lau Kam Kwok Dickson
EF E
Director Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

EHZ2020F12A31 HIFFE  Yearended 31 December 2020

BATRA AR
Attributable to owners of the parent
EERS
i Eiff RE&EY #it
Statutory

BRI
Rx  Riria®

e

fife  ERRE
Share
option

#2R
B

Non-

Fakk

Share
premium

Issued Capital ~ Merger  surplus Exchange Retained controlling

capital feserve  reserve  reserve  reserve  reserve Total interests

profits
ARETR ARBTR ARMTR AR¥TR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR AR¥TR

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

Total
equity
ARBTR
RMB'000

R020F1 818 As 1 January 2020 = - 46519 (28610) 499 1204 (2819) 1459076 1585879 36745 1,622,624
R Proftfor the year s = = = = = - 516356 516356 224,118 740474
ERAfrERE: Other comprehensive los for the year:
BRI EBNELZE Exchange differences on translation of
foreign operations - - - - - - (30551) - (30,551) - (30551)
ERZENAEE Total comprehensive income for the year = = = = = - (30551 51635 485805 224118 709,923
RIENE-FRAAERE  Deemed disposal of interest of a subsidlary
WBAR R without loss of control > e - 29266 = e e - 2926 110244 139510
R ER RT3 Capitalsation issue of shares (note 33) 40776 (40,776) = = = = = = > - =
BRI Issue of new shares (note 33) 719 1,381,584 . . = = e - 1,388,780 - 1,388,780
ROEART W) Share issue expenses (1ote 33) - (6653) . e = = e - (6653) - (6653
WEEMB LA W) Acquisiton of subsiciares note 37) s e . . = = e e - 61458 61458
RE-ZHERHERZET Contrbution from a non-controlling
shareholder o o o o o = = = - 152,261 152,261
IR EBRER W H34)  Equitysettled share option anangements
(note 34) > - 1 e = = - 43 B - BN
WERRIRE Wit 2019 specil dividend (note 1) - (12159 = - - - = - (212159) - (212159
ERAREET Transfer from retained profits - = = = - B - (339 > = =
R0ENA3NA As 2t 31 December 200 47972 1,062114% 76,040 656 499%  145187%  (33370) 1945712% 3244810 584826 3,829,636
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

B Z2020F 1231 HIEFE  Yearended 31 December 2020

A

Bk TR
BE AR ’ W

Share Statutory

Issued option Capital lerger ~ surplus  Exchange  Retained
capital resene resenV feserve profits Total

Ml

RMB000

R19E1 A1 As 1 January 2019 - - - 4500 89830 (1224 865070 958176 12979 1087970
ERET Profiforthe year - - - - - S I530 61530 462 620011
EREMRESE: Other comprehensive loss for the year:
REFNERN Exchange differences on translation of

EiER foreign operations - - - - - 15%) - (159) S 15%)
EREENALE  Total comprehensive income for the year - - - - - (15%) 61530 613795 46 618416
s SRR Acquisition of non-controlling interests - - (28610) - - - - (86100 (97670)  (126,280)
BeHRA Issue of new shares - - - - - - - - - -
ANBARIEE#EE  Distibution tothe then equity

EEND R 5)  ownersof subsidiaries note 35(c) - - - (4001) - - - (4001) - (4001)
DRBLEMERMRIE  Fouitysettied share option amangements

Rtz (note 34) - 46519 - - - - - 46519 - 4519
ERBRERT Transfer from retained profis - - - -3 - 38y - - -
R19E12A318 As at 31 December 2019 - 46519% (28610 499% 11104 (2819 1459076* 1585879 36745 1622624

* ZEHRBROEREEVBERIRRE  * These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of

AR #3,196,838,0007C (20194 : AR¥E RMB3,196,838,000 (2019: RMB1,585,879,000) in the consolidated statement of
1,585,879,0007T) K47 A 1 © financial position.
# R LR ARSI © # The amount is less than RMB500.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

EHZ2020F12A31 HIFFE  Yearended 31 December 2020

20194
2019
AREET T
RMB'000

20204
2020
AR® T
RMB’000

ftat

Notes

RETHBERELSRE CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES

B B¢ Al g A1 Profit before tax 1,329,129 1,226,809
R Adjustments for:
FEUA Interest income 5 (5,208) (7,883)
M—RKEEREERN Interest income of a loan to a joint
FLEUA venture 5 (16,653) (13,587)
Y - BERRETE Depreciation of property, plant and
equipment 6 8,307 4,848
FREEERE Depreciation of right-of-use assets 6 5,913 7,073
A E Amortisation of intangible assets 6 2,930 1,390
EIR M Share option expense 6 33,774 46,519
WEWMELTFENE  FE Fair value gains on investment
properties, net 14 (41,559) (11,027)
BAFEAEBEZ Fair value gains on financial assets at
SREE N ERE fair value through profit or loss 5 (71,086) -
HEME  BEREE Gain on disposal of items of property,
HE 2 a plant and equipment 6 (91) -
PME—REERE Share of (profit)/loss of a joint venture
Ca ),/ &8 (196,103) 14,468
BB AR Finance costs 7 135,554 82,421
1,184,907 1,351,031
UGBS ERA B AL R &/ Acquisition of land held for development
for sale (613,062) (269,860)
eI N Increase in properties under
development (1,324,638) (1,865,961)
BIELERNE R TMERL Decrease in completed properties held
for sale 3,294,336 1,893,756
Z SRR TOR D, (38 hn) Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables 58,664 (109,438)
TETRUR - EMERGRIAE R Increase in prepayments, other
Hfh &GN receivables and other assets (248,030) (103,143)
B 5 e BR FRIE N Increase in trade payables 77,478 664,922
AHBECRD), M (Decrease)/increase in contract liabilities (2,268,422) 75,789
Hn g aaa - elge & Increase/(decrease) in other payables,
FEstE AL, CRid) deposits received and accruals 165,121 (378,473)
KEEERS Cash generated from operations 326,354 1,258,623
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B Z2020F 1231 HIEFE  Yearended 31 December 2020

REFHRERSRE ()

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Hiat

Notes

20204
2020

ARBT T
RMB’000

20194
2019
ARET T
RMB'000

KEEERS Cash generated from operations 326,354 1,258,623
2HHE Interest received 5,208 7,883
BEARFLE Interest paid (135,223) (277,982)
BB ENER PRC corporate income tax paid (150,546) (57,322)
BB L ER PRC land appreciation tax paid (245,288) (125,065)
g EE) (AT, P33R & RE Net cash flows (used in)/from operating
SRR activities (199,495) 806,137
RETZHFERERE CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
KE—REERED Settlement from/(advance to) a joint
BEMEBRK venture 250,681 (6,668)
JE U B R 75 SRIB3E AN Increase in amounts due from related
parties - (392,700)
JE U E R AR Decrease in amounts due from directors = 83,591
EEWME - WERKHEIEE Purchases of items of property, plant
and equipment 13 (56,869) (4,025)
NEBRVEE Additions of intangible assets 16 (5,088) (2,306)
RNEREME Additions of investment properties 14 (146,302) (59,573)
BEEREAFEFABRZZ Purchases of financial assets at fair value
TRVEE through profit or loss (423,752) -
g1 )=pNG Acquisitions of subsidiaries 37 72,292 -
HEDE  BEREEEER  Proceeds from disposal of items of
Frigsk1E property, plant and equipment 1,441 1,596
SEREIRE0EM,m (Increase)/decrease in restricted cash (110,551) 9,465
KEFHAARE R EF5E Net cash flows used in investing
activities (418,148) (370,620)
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20204 20194
2020 2019
AREET T
RMB'000

HtaF AR® TR
Note RMB’000

MEZTHRERLAE

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES

BITHR Issue of new shares 1,388,780 -
fE 58 1TR 2 Share issue expenses (66,535) -
AT AR S, Payment of dividend (212,159) -
W IE T p i Acquisition of non-controlling interests - (126,280)
N ESZFIER D Decrease in amounts due to directors (62,442) (12,173)
FE A~ BB 75 SR IE S N Increase in amounts due to related

parties = 38,757
FERIT R EABE R New bank and other borrowings 2,159,332 759,320
EBIRIT R EAMER Repayment of bank and other

borrowings (2,332,102) (1,183,670)
BITREERBMEHIE Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 930,640 -
BREEIEITRA Issuance costs of senior notes (28,733) -
FEFE R AR R AR K Contribution from non-controlling

shareholders 152,261 -
RE @B AER Loans from related parties - 581,150
EEREBAHAINER Repayment of loans from related parties - (191,700)
HENFOES IS Principal portion of lease payments (6,307) (7,119)
MEFDAE (FTRRE Net cash flows from/(used in) financing

mERE activities 1,922,735 (141,715)

RERRESEEYIRMFHE NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH

EQUIVALENTS 1,305,092 293,802
FReRIRSEEY Cash and cash equivalents at beginning

of year 452,464 158,662
b 5 Exchange realignment (60,688) -
FERAERAEEEY CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT

END OF YEAR 1,696,868 452,464
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CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

Huijing Holdings Company Limited (the “Company”) is an exempted
company with limited liability incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 9 January 2019 under the Companies Law, Cap 22 of the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the Company is
located at Unit 2403 — 2408, 24/F, Shui On Centre 6 — 8 Harbour Road,
Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 16
January 2020.

During the year, the Company is an investment holding company.
The Company’s subsidiaries were principally engaged in property
development and investment in the People’s Republic of China (the
“PRC"). In the opinion of the directors, the ultimate and immediate
holding company of the Company is Wui Ying Holdings Limited (“Wui
Ying") and the controlling shareholders of the Company are Mr Lun
Ruixiang ("“Mr Lun RX") and Ms Chan Hau Wan (“Ms Chan”, spouse of
Mr Lun RX) (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders”).

Pursuant to the reorganisation of the Company in connection with
the listing of the shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange (the
“Reorganisation”), the Company became the holding company of the
companies now comprising the Group on 25 March 2019. Details of
Reorganisation as set out in the paragraph headed "Reorganisation”
in the section headed “History, Reorganisation and Group Structure”
in the prospectus of the Company dated 31 December 2019 (the
"Prospectus”).

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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Company Limited

LFIRKETH @) 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
EENMBEARNER Information about subsidiaries
ARABNEBHEBRRNFBESHT 0 Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:
T
E#1T
TR B L LER S AAFEAEE
WERES RAmEE BRAEZE DL
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of indirect
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
establishment and registered attributable
place of operations share capital to the Company  Principal activities
BEERERRF &R 1,000,000/ 7T 100% REER
Hai Feng Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 100%  Investment holding
RrmERIREFHEREERAR BB/ HEM  ARS00000007T 100% #EFRE
Dongguan Huijing Kailun Bay Property PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Development Limited
EREEAR AR hEl/HRE N AMERRARS 100% MERERRE
1,500,000,0007C ARREER
Huijing Group Limited PRC/Mainland China  Registered capital of 100%  Property development
RMB1,500,000,000 and investment and
investment holding
REMAERMEREBERAF hEL/RERE  AR2500000007T 100% ¥IERR
Dongguan Daxi Property Development Limited ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB250,000,000 100%  Property development
BREREHEREBERAR RE/RENN ARES500000007 100% WEFE
Hengyang Huijing Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Limited
REMERBHERRERAR hE/ B AKH#1,00000070 100% EREH
Dongguan Huijing Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  Property development
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1.

26

LAFIREEEE @)

FENBARNERE)

REMESRBEEXERERAT
(REERRE =)

Dongguan Huijing East Automobile Development
Limited (‘Dongguan Huijing East Automobile”)

REMERLBERUERERRAR
Dongguan Jade Peninsula Property
Development Limited

ARTESEHERRBERRA

Heyuan Huijing Property Development Limited

AEEREEXRAR AR
Hefei Fuhua Properties Limited

RRERDKBEMREBRERAT
Dongyuan Dongjiang River Village Long
He Investment Development Limited

RESEREXREFRAR
Dongyuan Yayuan Property Investment
Limited

SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

(Continued)

Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

SRR,/ B L
WERELMH

Place of
incorporation/

establishment and
place of operations

hE /BN

PRC/Mainland China

B HE AL
PRC/Mainland China

B/ E A
PRC/Mainland China

RE /BRI,
PRC/Mainland China

B E AL
PRC/Mainland China

B/ E A
PRC/Mainland China

2R1T
LER
RAEE
Nominal value
of issued
ordinary/
registered
share capital

AR #30,0000007T

RMB30,000,000

AR H1,000,0007T
RMB1,000,000

AE50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

AR #150,0000007T
RMB150,000,000

AR #50,000,0007T
RMB50,000,000

AE30,000,0007T
RMB30,000,000

AR EEREE
BRARZH DL
Percentage

of indirect
equity interest
attributable

to the Company

40.8%"

40.8%""

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%
100%

100%
100%

80%
80%

Principal activities

ESGES

Property development

NERZ

Property development

UESES

Property development

WERE RIRERR

Property development
and investment
holding

VEGES

Property development

UESES

Property development
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1. 2FREKESEH® 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
EENMBARINER(E Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
B#T
TR EER RRPAEAREE
WHREE LR RAEE REEZE AL
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of indirect
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
establishment and registered attributable
place of operations share capital to the Company  Principal activities
mmEREHBRAF R/ HEA ARHES5000007C 100% R
Dongguan Haiya Trading Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000 100%  Property development
REMEMESEEBERAR RE/ BN AR¥1000000007 %% MERE
Dongguan Humen Wanfang Properties Limited  PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 98%  Property development
RRERIKBEEBERAA hE/RENE  ARM61,2500007 8% MERE
(RIKBESR])
Dongyuan Dongjiang River Village Properties PRC/Mainland China RMB61,250,000 80%  Property development
Limited ("Dongjiang Village Properties")
BB N ERIRERR D A hE/ R AR HS5,0000007C 100% #ERR
Hengyang Yanhu Eco-tourism Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB5,000,000 100%  Property development
RREEERR) BRAR" /PR A 11,000,0007 70 100% PERE
Songsen Furniture (Dongguan) Company Limited - PRC/Mainland China HK$11,000,000 100%  Property development
REMEatEEREBERAF RE/RERN  ARS00000007T 100% #ERR
Dongguan Jiayishi Investment Limited PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
REMERRHAEXERAA" RE/RERE ARES00000007T 100% MERE
Dongguan Huijing Jianuo Properties PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development

Development Limited
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1. SFRKETH® 1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
EENMBARNER &) Information about subsidiaries (Continued)
(55}
MBS, B LER RN E LG EE
BHREE L RAEE  RIEZEIH
Nominal value Percentage
Place of of issued of indirect
incorporation/ ordinary/ equity interest
establishment and registered ELLTEL
place of operations share capital to the Company  Principal activities
BNTKERHEREERAA RE/RERE  ARES33300007T 4% MERE
(TERMN A D)™
Bazhou City Yongzheng Property PRC/Mainland China RMB53,330,000 40%""  Property development
Development Company Limited
("Bazhou Yongzheng")
RRGEKEEREBRAA RE/RERN  ARE100000007T 4% MERE
(RIRExK )™
Dongyuan Changyong Property Investment PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 40%"  Property development

Limited ("Dongyuan Changyong")

BEBSEHEREERAF RE/mERE  AREN,1600007T 400" MERE
(EERE)"
Xichang Shugao Property Development PRC/Mainland China RMB11,160,000 40%""  Property development

Company Limited ("Xichang Shugao”)

* BEFEEAEZLANEER AT ° * Registered as domestic limited liability companies under PRC law.

. BEPEEEECAINTBEERSE - . Registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC law.

e BIEFEERELRATIIEGERRE e Registered as a sino-foreign equity entity under PRC law.

B .

" AR EREEELEZEERRED * These companies are accounted for as subsidiaries of the Group
R50%HIERT  AEBEEZEEE because the Group owns more than half of the voting rights even
BFEMIEERE - MZERFTIARY though the equity interests in these entities attributable to the Group
AAREEMB AT are less than 50%.

' BRZER R EEMAEAEXAR # The English names of these companies represent the best effort made
B MERYERBIBEAAREERE by management of the Company to directly translate their Chinese
RNEEBZEPNEEMER names as they did not register any official English name.
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION
(Continued)
Information about subsidiaries (Continued)

Details of the subsidiaries acquired during the year are summarised
in note 37 to the financial statements.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give
details of the other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors,
result in particulars of excessive length.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Pursuant to the Reorganisation, the Company became the holding
company of the companies now comprising the Group on 25 March
2019. The companies now comprising the Group were under the
common control of the Controlling Shareholders before and after the
Reorganisation. Accordingly, these financial statements have been
presented by applying the principles of merger accounting.

The consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019 include the results and cash flows
of all companies now comprising the Group from the earliest date
presented or since the date when the subsidiaries first came under
the common control of the Controlling Shareholders, where this is a
shorter period. The consolidated statement of financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 have been prepared to present the
assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries using the existing book values
from the Controlling Shareholders’ perspective. No adjustments are
made to reflect fair values, or recognise any new assets or liabilities as
a result of the Reorganisation.

Equity interests in subsidiaries held by parties other than the
Controlling Shareholders, and changes therein, prior to the
Reorganisation are presented as non-controlling interests in equity in
applying the principles of merger accounting.

All intra-group transactions and balances have been eliminated on
consolidation.
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2.1 RRBE» 2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

100

ZEMBBRRIDBRBEELEFIMAE
(BB EFEMAG)BEMNEEYER
SRAN(EEHBHRELER] - BEFAE
FEMBEWEEN  FAGHENTE
AEEN) kR BEARER
AIREAERAHGPIZ BBRERE - &
EUBHRRTIRBELKAEDIRR -
HEREMERIZ A FEF ARG 22 6t
BEARAFETE - ZFFBIMKRINA
ARBTAREDZ?Y BB HERE
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mEE%E
HRAEPMBREREEARRRENBAR
(RTBIAREE N ZE2020F128318 IHF
BZHERE - MEBRARIEARAREE
HEEEHNER(REEBLER) -
EASERBLHKEHRNEEED
i AE ] & O 3R R kB = A A]
B3R BERENEBEREREHROED
(S AKEBRARENTERELHRN
BTSSR ) EZ ERIRT -
BNER 542 il o

EARTERIHEERAFIRRELHR
REHBHRRSIALER - HEFFHER
CHREHRBAENE - AEEEE
BFIEHBEEEMBER - 8%

(@) BERBEHSEMGREEFSAEENS
ML B

b) HMENLTHELOEN @ &
© AEENRERLBEERTZE -

B A B S R TR B AR R B AR R
BERHE EA-BNEHABERR -
B8~ B] RO SR AR AN SR B EUS 12 IR 2
REFFEIIR  LHEZRAIIKREZX
FEGIERIEZERIE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
the Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") (which
include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards ("HKASs") and Interpretations) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
They have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi ("RMB”) and all
values are rounded to the nearest thousand (RMB'000) except when
otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020. A subsidiary
is an entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly,
controlled by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee (i.e, existing rights that give the Group the
current ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@)  the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of
the investee;

(b)  rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(0 the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated
until the date that such control ceases.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

2.1 BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continued)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets
and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to
transactions between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts
and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more
of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i)
the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii)
the carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the
cumulative translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises
(i) the fair value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any
investment retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES
The Group has adopted the Conceptual Framework for Financial

Reporting 2018 and the following revised HKFRSs for the first time for
the current year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and

HKFRS 7

Amendments to Definition of Material

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8
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2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

The nature and the impact of the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 and the revised HKFRSs are described below:

(@)

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited

Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting 2018 (the
“Conceptual Framework”) sets out a comprehensive set of
concepts for financial reporting and standard setting, and
provides guidance for preparers of financial statements in
developing consistent accounting policies and assistance
to all parties to understand and interpret the standards.
The Conceptual Framework includes new chapters on
measurement and reporting financial performance, new
guidance on the derecognition of assets and liabilities, and
updated definitions and recognition criteria for assets and
liabilities. It also clarifies the roles of stewardship, prudence
and measurement uncertainty in financial reporting. The
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of
the concepts contained therein override the concepts or
requirements in any standard. The Conceptual Framework did
not have any significant impact on the financial position and
performance of the Group.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets to be
considered a business, it must include, at a minimum, an input
and a substantive process that together significantly contribute
to the ability to create output. A business can exist without
including all of the inputs and processes needed to create
outputs. The amendments remove the assessment of whether
market participants are capable of acquiring the business and
continue to produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether
acquired inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary activities.
Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance to assess
whether an acquired process is substantive and introduce an
optional fair value concentration test to permit a simplified
assessment of whether an acquired set of activities and assets
is not a business. The Group has applied the amendments
prospectively to transactions or other events that occurred
on or after 1 January 2020. The amendments did not have
any impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group.
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

2.2 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES AND
DISCLOSURES (Continued)

(@)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
issues affecting financial reporting in the period before the
replacement of an existing interest rate benchmark with an
alternative risk-free rate ("RFR"). The amendments provide
temporary reliefs which enable hedge accounting to continue
during the period of uncertainty before the introduction of
the alternative RFR. In addition, the amendments require
companies to provide additional information to investors
about their hedging relationships which are directly affected
by these uncertainties. The amendments did not have any
impact on the financial position and performance of the
Group as the Group does not have any interest rate hedging
relationships.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new definition
of material. The new definition states that information
is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring it could
reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary
users of general purpose financial statements make on the
basis of those financial statements. The amendments clarify
that materiality will depend on the nature or magnitude of
information, or both. The amendments did not have any
significant impact on the financial position and performance of
the Group.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised HKFRSs,
that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
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Amendment to HKFRS 16
HKFRS 17
Amendments to

HKFRS 17
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 16

Amendments to HKAS 37

Annual Improvements to

statements.
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework®
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2°

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39,
HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and

HKFRS 16

Amendments to Sale or Contribution of Assets between
HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
(2011) Venture*

COVID-19-Related Rent Concesions’
Insurance Contracts *
Insurance Contracts *”

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current#°

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceed's
before Intended Use ?

Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract?
Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9,
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HKFRSs 2018-2020 lllustrative Examples accompanying

HKFRS 16, and HKAS 413

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022

¢ Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

B No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for early
adoption

o As a consequence of the amendments to HKAS 1, Hong Kong

Interpretation 5 Presentation of Financial Statements — Classification by
the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a Repayment on Demand
Clause was revised in October 2020 to align the corresponding
wording with no change in conclusion

/ As a consequence of the amendments to HKFRS 17 issued in October
2020, HKFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption
that permits insurers to apply HKAS 39 rather than HKFRS 9 for annual
periods beginning before 1 January 2023

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited



B 75 i 2R I

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

23 ERHERKRERNHETEME

SR (2

T AEREBERNAEBNREE
BHBREEAME S AR -

EBMEREEDF 1658 (BT R) A&
HMARE—EERAITHERTHENE
ERCOVID-19B IEMER B REEMME
CERTEREEERSHEE - ZE
RUTHEEHAEBARNEBEEERR
EAMELEL  BEEOHEENEN
SEFHEREFMBENR - MEEHRD

REAEXEHEERERNZHER
HOREREHHMEENRE : WEER

R ERBRESE R A A2021F
6A30B AR R(iDVHEMNE
IR R R IGG T EELEEE - ZIEFTR
2020F6 A1 Ak v B FEHIRA
W RFFIREIER c WEBMER - 78
Bz A T e HASENT B REE
FREERFZE -

BT BRELEBEIFUETA) EEIN
2018%F6 B B # & B E A8y fR it
B S B4R 2R 2 21| 1 75 3R K 9124848
o mEFEARBEEENR - ZEEE]
IR BB VS I 5H AE RN 55357 48 I RERR
RAIBFIIN - BEAT2ERSIERET
BEXEBENBREE - ZOIIMNERR
o HREBMIIERERAHPEER
BREBeHERE 750 E S (BFR BT
BHREREZEY)- RE2QINEERK
RAE  FKAEBUBREERFERD
ERES IR BB ERFE375 K
EF (AR BREZREZED)- 2B
21 MIEBERIELR o Lo - ZEBBETA
BBRAREER B R BPTHAER

oo AREEFEHIE2022F1 1B ERIE
HABBIEE] - ARZEEET AN g
WEBHAE NRMNB R ZENER
AGFRTIE IR - REERBE ASE

“EXEBIRFETANTE -

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below:

Amendment to HKFRS 16 provides a practical expedient for lessees to
elect not to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic. The
practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a
direct consequence of the pandemic and only if (i) the change in
lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that
is substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change; (i) any reduction in lease
payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30
June 2021; and (iii) there is no substantive change to other terms
and conditions of the lease. The amendment is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020 with earlier application
permitted and shall be applied retrospectively. This amendment is
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to
the previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of
Financial Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting issued in June 2018 without significantly
changing its requirements. The amendments also add to HKFRS 3
an exception to its recognition principle for an entity to refer to the
Conceptual Framework to determine what constitutes an asset or
a liability. The exception specifies that, for liabilities and contingent
liabilities that would be within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21 if they were incurred separately rather than assumed in a business
combination, an entity applying HKFRS 3 should refer to HKAS 37 or
HK(FRIC)-Int 21 respectively instead of the Conceptual Framework.
Furthermore, the amendments clarify that contingent assets do not
qualify for recognition at the acquisition date. The Group expects to
adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January 2022. Since
the amendments apply prospectively to business combinations for
which the acquisition date is on or after the date of first application,
the Group will not be affected by these amendments on the date of
transition.
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KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16
address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative RFR. The Phase 2 amendments
provide a practical expedient to allow the effective interest rate
to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount when
accounting for changes in the basis for determining the contractual
cash flows of financial assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct
consequence of the interest rate benchmark reform and the new
basis for determining the contractual cash flows is economically
equivalent to the previous basis immediately preceding the change.
In addition, the amendments permit changes required by the
interest rate benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations
and hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of HKFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement is
met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk component
to become separately identifiable within the next 24 months.
Furthermore, the amendments require an entity to disclose additional
information to enable users of financial statements to understand
the effect of interest rate benchmark reform on an entity’s financial
instruments and risk management strategy. The amendments are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021
and shall be applied retrospectively, but entities are not required to
restate the comparative information.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address an
inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS 10 and in HKAS 28
(2011) in dealing with the sale or contribution of assets between an
investor and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require
a full recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or joint venture
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that do not
constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from the transaction
is recognised in the investor's profit or loss only to the extent of
the unrelated investor's interest in that associate or joint venture.
The amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS
28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in January 2016 and a new
mandatory effective date will be determined after the completion
of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint ventures.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to HKAS 1 clarify the requirements for classifying
liabilities as current or non-current. The amendments specify that
if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the
entity complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to
defer settlement of the liability at the end of the reporting period
if it complies with those conditions at that date. Classification of a
liability is unaffected by the likelihood that the entity will exercise
its right to defer settlement of the liability. The amendments also
clarify the situations that are considered a settlement of a liability.
The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied retrospectively. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG

KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to
items of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or
after the beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial
statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under HKAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract. Costs
that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental costs
of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and an
allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity
has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual
reporting period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier
application is permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying
the amendments shall be recognised as an adjustment to the
opening equity at the date of initial application without restating the
comparative information. The amendments are not expected to have
any significant impact on the Group's financial statements.
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2.3 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(Continued)

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 sets out amendments
to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying HKFRS 16,
and HKAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to be
applicable to the Group are as follows:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or
modified financial liability are substantially different from the
terms of the original financial liability. These fees include only
those paid or received between the borrower and the lender,
including fees paid or received by either the borrower or
lender on the other’s behalf. An entity applies the amendment
to financial liabilities that are modified or exchanged on or
after the beginning of the annual reporting period in which
the entity first applies the amendment. The amendment is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2022. Earlier application is permitted. The amendment is not
expected to have a significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from
the lessor relating to leasehold improvements in Illustrative
Example 13 accompanying HKFRS 16. This removes potential
confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives when
applying HKFRS 16.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values
of assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interest issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net
assets in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the
ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised
for non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable
net assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair value of the net
assets acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised in
profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group's cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which
the goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment
loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Investments in an associate and a joint venture

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest
of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over
which it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control
over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net
assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed
sharing of control of an arrangement, which exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Investments in an associate and a joint venture
(Continued)

The Group's investment in an associate and a joint venture are stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group's
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting, less
any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line
any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist. The Group's share
of the post-acquisition results and other comprehensive income
of an associate and a joint venture is included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated other comprehensive
income, respectively. In addition, when there has been a change
recognised directly in the equity of the associate or joint venture,
the Group recognises its share of any changes, when applicable, in
the consolidated statements of changes in equity. Unrealised gains
and losses resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associate or joint venture are eliminated to the extent of the Group's
investment in the associate or joint venture, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred.
Goodwill arising from the acquisition of the associate or joint venture
is included as part of the Group's investment in the associate or joint
venture.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured.
Instead, the investment continues to be accounted for under the
equity method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence
over the associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group
measures and recognises any retained investment as its fair value.
Any difference between the carrying amount of the associate or joint
venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control and the
fair value of the retained investment and proceeds from disposal is
recognised in profit or loss.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible
by the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed
in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities

Level2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is observable, either directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement (Continued)

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than inventories,
deferred tax assets, financial assets and investment properties), the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit's value
in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows
that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of
assets, in which case the recoverable amount is determined for the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises in those expense categories consistent with
the function of the impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as
to whether there is an indication that previously recognised
impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset other than
goodwill is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would have
been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A
reversal of such an impairment loss is credited to the statement of
profit or loss in the period in which it arises.
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Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

@)
(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over the Group;
has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of the key management personnel of the
Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following conditions
applies:

(iff)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other
entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of
the other entity);

the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same
third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the
other entity is an associate of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of either the Group or an entity
related to the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person
identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence
over the entity or is a member of the key management
personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a
part, provides key management personnel services to
the Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item of
property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price and
any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in
which it is incurred. In situations where the recognition criteria are
satisfied, the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where significant
parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life. The principal annual rates used for
this purpose are as follows:

Leasehold improvements Over the lease terms
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20-3333%
Motor vehicles 25%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable
basis among the parts and each part is depreciated separately.
Residual values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year
end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant
part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any
gain or loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference
between the net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the
relevant asset.
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POLICIES (continued)
Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated
at fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of each
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in the statement of profit or loss in the year in
which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in the year
of the retirement or disposal.

Property under construction or development for future use as an
investment property is classified as investment property under
construction. If the fair value cannot be reliably determined, the
investment property under construction will be measured at cost
until such time when fair value can be determined or construction is
completed.

When the Group completes the construction or development of a
self-constructed investment property, any difference between the
fair value of the property at the completion date and its previous
carrying amount is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach
for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets. The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments
and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying
assets.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)
Group as a lessee (Continued)
(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available
for use). Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments
made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the
estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:

Office premises Over the lease terms

(b)  Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date
of the lease at the present value of lease payments to be
made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed
payments (including in-substance fixed payments) less any
lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be
paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also
include the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group and payments of
penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. The
variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Leases (Continued)

Group as a lessee (Continued)
(b)  Lease liabilities (Continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the
accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments
made. In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is
remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease
term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate) or a
change in assessment of an option to purchase the underlying
asset.

(c)  Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption
to its short-term leases of office premises (that is those
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option).
Lease payments on short-term leases are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for
as finance leases.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Land held for development for sale

The land held for development for sale represents parcels of land
owned by the Group for the purpose of development of properties
for sale. The land is initially stated at cost less any impairment
losses and not depreciated. It is transferred to properties under
development upon commencement of the construction work of the
related property development project.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost,
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs incurred directly attributable to
such properties during the development period, and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
the construction period of the relevant property development
project is expected to complete beyond the normal operating
cycle. On completion, the properties are transferred to completed
properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

Cost of completed properties held for sale is determined by an
apportionment of the total costs of land and buildings attributable to
the unsold properties.

Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on the
prevailing market conditions.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets represent computer software, which acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is the fair value
at the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite
lives are subsequently amortised over the useful economic life and
assessed for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life
are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 5 to 10 years.
The useful life of software is determined mainly with reference to (i)
maintenance expenditure required to obtain the expected future
economic benefits from the software for continuous operations, (ii)
expected usage required from the operations of the Group and the
infrequent change of the software, (iii) product life cycles for the
similar software used in the past, and (iv) the period of control over
the software.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends
on the financial asset's contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group's business model for managing them. With the exception
of trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical
expedient of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial asset at its fair
value, plus in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group has
applied the practical expedient are measured at the transaction price
determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the policies set out
for “Revenue recognition” below.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (Continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (“SPPI") on the principal amount
outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that are not SPPI
are classified and measured at fair value through profit or loss,
irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified
and measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to
purchase or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets
within the period generally established by regulation or convention
in the marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains
and losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.
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POLICIES (Continued)
Investments and other financial assets (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair
value through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity
investments classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are also recognised as other income in the statement of profit or
loss when the right of payment has been established, it is probable
that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to
the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a financial liability
or non-financial host, is separated from the host and accounted
for as a separate derivative if the economic characteristics and risks
are not closely related to the host; a separate instrument with the
same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition
of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not measured at fair value
through profit or loss. Embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of
the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows that would
otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of
the fair value through profit or loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing a
financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The financial
asset host together with the embedded derivative is required to be
classified in its entirety as a financial asset at fair value through profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as loans and
borrowings and payables.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in
the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade and other payables, lease
liabilities, amounts due to directors, senior notes and interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method unless the effect of discounting would be
immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses
are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities
are derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the
Group measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i)
the expected credit loss ("ECL") allowance determined in accordance
with the policy as set out in “Impairment of financial assets”; and
(i) the amount initially recognised less, when appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised
(i.e, removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position) when:

the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under
a "pass-through” arrangement; and either (a) the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or
(b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of
ownership of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that
case, the Group also recognises an associated liability. The transferred
asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or
modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability
and a recognition of a new liability, and the difference between the
respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for ECLs for all debt instruments
not held at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows from the
sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from
default events that are possible within the next 12 months (a
12-month ECL). For those credit exposures for which there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the remaining
life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime
ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit risk
on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares
the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
reporting date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and considers
reasonable and supportable information that is available without
undue cost or effort, including historical and forward-looking
information.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
General approach (Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account
any credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is
written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the
contractual cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under
the general approach and they are classified within the following
stages for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage1 = Financial instruments for which credit risk has not
increased significantly since initial recognition and for
which the loss allowance is measured at an amount
equal to 12-month ECLs

Stage2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not
credit-impaired financial assets and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to lifetime
ECLs

Stage3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured
atan amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has established a provision matrix
that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for
forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

SSSWW
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits,
and short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three
months when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on
demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which
are not restricted as to use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised
for a provision is the present value at the end of each reporting
period of the future expenditures expected to be required to settle
the obligation. The increase in the discounted present value amount
arising from the passage of time is included in finance costs in the
statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating
to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit
or loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into
consideration interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Income tax (Continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial
reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not
a business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss;
and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, when the timing of the reversal
of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition of
an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business
combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary differences
can be utilised.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Income tax (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities
or assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control
of goods or services is transferred to the customers at an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled
in exchange for those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable amount,
the amount of consideration is estimated to which the Group will
be entitled in exchange for transferring the goods or services to
the customer. The variable consideration is estimated at contract
inception and constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised
will not occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.
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POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component which provides
the customer with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of goods or services to the customer for more than one year,
revenue is measured at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and the customer
at contract inception. When the contract contains a financing
component which provides the Group with a significant financial
benefit for more than one year, revenue recognised under the
contract includes the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the transaction price
is not adjusted for the effects of a significant financing component,
using the practical expedient in HKFRS 15.

Sale of properties

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of the asset is
transferred to the customer. Depending on the terms of the contract
and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset may
be transferred over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group's performance:

provides benefits which are received and consumed
simultaneously by the customer;

creates and enhances an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group
and the Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

If control of the asset is transferred over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the customer obtains
control of the asset.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)
Sale of properties (Continued)

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group's efforts or inputs to
the satisfaction of the performance obligation that best depict the
Group's performance in satisfying the performance obligation.

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it
is significant.

For sales contracts for which the control of the property is transferred
at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the customer obtains
the physical possession and the Group has a present right to
payment and the collection of the consideration is probable.

Revenue from other sources
Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the
lease terms.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis, using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument
of the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the
contract (i.e, transfers control of the related goods or services to the
customer).
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Contract costs
Costs to fulfil a contract

Other than the costs which are capitalised as properties under
development, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets,
costs incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as an
asset if all of the following criteria are met:

(@)  The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated
contract that the entity can specifically identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(©)  The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to the
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which
the asset relate. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

Incremental costs of obtaining a contract are those costs that the
Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that it would not
have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are capitalised when incurred if the
costs relate to revenue which will be recognised in a future reporting
period and the costs are expected to be recovered. Incremental
costs of obtaining a contract are charged to the statement of profit
or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the pattern of
the revenue to which the related asset is recognised. Other costs of
obtaining a contract are expensed when incurred.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who
contribute to the success of the Group's operations. Employees
(including directors of the Company) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments
(“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is measured
by reference to the fair value at the date at which they are granted.
The fair value is determined by an external valuer using a binomial
model, further details of which are given in note 34 to the financial
statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in employee
benefit expense, together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or service conditions
are fulfilled. The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until the vesting
date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that
will ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the statement of profit or
loss for a period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into
account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the
Group's best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. Market performance conditions are reflected within
the grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an award,
but without an associated service requirement, are considered to
be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting conditions are reflected in
the fair value of an award and lead to an immediate expensing of an
award unless there are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met, no
expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or non-
vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting irrespective
of whether the market or non-vesting condition is satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)
Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In addition, an
expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to
the employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not yet
recognised for the award is recognised immediately. This includes
any award where non-vesting conditions within the control of
either the Group or the employee are not met. However, if a new
award is substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as a
replacement award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification of the original
award, as described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional
share dilution in the computation of earnings per share.

Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong Kong
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the employees’
basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in an independently administered fund. The
Group's employer contributions vest fully with the employees when
contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme
operated by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain proportion of their payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are charged to the
statement of profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the central pension scheme.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited



B 75 i 2R I

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

24 FEFHRREBE

(EENDZS

Wi - B LEEAREREE (RAKLS
—BRERBRTAEREREKAIELE
ZEE)REERBRRAIBEZTE
EZEAKRAN - MxFEEERNLES
HBEMa st m & - BIERKA
TEES - EEE(HERARGERE
E)ZHBRBREMSREKABERT L
EFRACZANER © A H A B SRR AN E
EZHEXHE - BRRABEEEE
BB SR B o

[ g=)
REAR B IR & | I IRt 2B
RmBE-

RHIRE R DRABHK LS K - RER
AABEBERNALANETESE
IR HIB R A - Btk - PEIRER
BEAERGNNEIREE -

g

ZEFBERRAAREZS] - MARE
MEERRET - BEFERR ARK
SETIENPEAMEEER - EAA
REERZVNEBEEAZIAKEE
BRI - AEBEEREFHINE
R 5L 5 B HE MR g & HE
FME AR - LINETHENEBEER
BERVBHRRENNEEREXSR
- HERSRERRHEAMELNER
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2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)
Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on
the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing
costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the
period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs consist of
interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the
borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’s memorandum and articles of association
grant the directors the authority to declare interim dividends.
Consequently, interim dividends are recognised immediately as a
liability when they are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in RMB while the
Company'’s functional currency is the Hong Kong dollar. In the
opinion of the directors, as the Group's operations are mainly in
Mainland China, the use of RMB as the presentation currency is more
appropriate for the presentation of the Group's results and financial
position. Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in
the Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the functional currency rates of exchange prevailing at the end of
the financial periods. Differences arising on settlement or translation
of monetary items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value
of the item (i.e, translation difference on the item whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

The functional currencies of the Company and certain subsidiaries
operating outside Mainland China are currencies other than RMB. As
at the end of the reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into RMB at the exchange rates prevailing at
the end of the reporting period and their statements of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income are translated into RMB at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The resulting
exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income
and accumulated in the exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the component of other comprehensive income
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, the
cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries are translated into RMB at
the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of Hong Kong subsidiaries which arise
throughout the year are translated into RMB at the weighted average
exchange rates for the year.
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Classification between investment properties and completed
properties held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held
to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made
by management in determining whether a property is designated
as an investment property or a completed property held for sale.
The Group considers its intention of holding the properties at the
early development stage of the related properties. During the
course of construction, the related properties under construction
are accounted for as properties under development included in
current assets if the properties are intended for sale after their
completion, whereas, the properties are accounted for as investment
properties under construction included in non-current assets if the
properties are intended to be held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Upon completion of the properties, the properties
developed for sale are transferred to completed properties held for
sale and are stated at cost, while the properties developed to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to investment
properties and are subject to revaluation at each reporting date.

20204 Annual Report 2020 139



B 755 sl 5% B 5
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020%F12H31H 31 December 2020

3.

140

FEE IR et

H i (&

REVEWIELERE

ST EN R FEREGFENRENMEE
EHRERBEABRRELERAEEM
CERZEEHARENKREMES
T RRAEENRENETIAE B
R RERER M IFERHE HRZRED
RSB EENSRBRNEE
BARE - Bt - REEAKEERKR
EMENRELERIAR  EFHR B
SR EF 2R EHAEER R FE
BRI ENRENFEBHEREOR
RERHER -

o> o

EIEBIEEE

BEIBEERMB UM EREZRE -
HEADARBERERABARIEEE
FLAMERR + WA 7] B8 IR AR B s A
ATANEHETINHEREZE  SEXE
BAFHER S KA AR IEBER T R
R BEEREEN TUERZIELER
THEESER - ARB L IRARNRE
RBRF 2B REE  ARRERRH
T EI R BEEL E AR HIE - 702020512
A3 REMRBEEERMEARARKE
165,802,0007C (20194 = A R ¥154,076,000
TT) © i — R IBEN I SRR 32

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Judgements (Continued)

Deferred tax on investment properties

For the purpose of measuring deferred tax liabilities or deferred tax
assets arising from investment properties that are measured using the
fair value model, the directors have reviewed the Group's investment
property portfolio and concluded that the Group's investment
properties are held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied in the
investment properties over time, rather than through sale. Therefore,
in determining the Group's deferred tax on investment properties,
the directors have determined that the presumption set out in HKAS
12 Income Taxes that investment properties measured using the fair
value model are recovered through sale is rebutted.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to
determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies. The carrying amount
of deferred tax assets at 31 December 2020 was RMB165,802,000
(2019: RMB154,076,000). Further details are included in note 32 to the
financial statements.
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
disclosed below:

Impairment review for properties under development,
completed properties held for sale and land held for
development for sale

Properties under development and completed properties held for
sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The
estimated net realisable value is the estimated selling price less
selling expenses and the estimated cost of completion (if any), which
are estimated based on the best available information. The land held
for development for sale is initially stated at cost less any impairment
losses and is not depreciated.

The Group has engaged an external valuer to perform a valuation of
the Group's properties under development, completed properties
held for sale and land held for development for sale as at the end
of the reporting period to assess if the net realisable values of these
assets are lower than their carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of properties under development, completed
properties held for sale and land held for development for sale at 31
December 2020 were RMB2,944,941,000 (2019: RMB2,875,681,000),
RMB1,153,279,000 (2019: RMB1,075,239,000) and RMB1,657,879,000
(2019: RMB1,044,817,000), respectively.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As certain
matters relating to the income taxes have not yet been confirmed
by the local tax bureau, objective estimates and judgements based
on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other related policies
are required in determining the provision for income taxes to be
made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts originally recorded, the differences will impact on the
income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the differences
realise. The carrying amount of corporate income tax payables at 31
December 2020 was RMB644,145,000 (2019: RMB564,036,000).
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3.

142

FEE IR et

HETNTRERE @
B+ IR E R ([ I E R )

NEBMBR P BSRNTHIRER - i
HERBEERNEEBREYEGHET
TR AR ROE AR TR TE M 32 B2 1 0 /Y
SEMGEHR - BRI EEHREER
MERBEERTEHMGKBET -
REE AR BB E A S T YERA
BIFEHMEH T HISERNFTE T ER
N RERERT e B RNV L 88
TR BAWEERYNIREEHEN
THIEEB A MR EEKRTE -
20208128318 » LI EHRBEEN
BRTEE A AR E697,045,0007C (20194 -
AR #5095145,0007T) °

HIREMEDNFENMGE
BREME(BEERIREMERERR
BEWME)NRERRRIBE LB X EE
RUNTEGESHGE ZSFHEE
RETRR - MZEFRIFETEER
= AREBERERAEAZR - AKE
BELAEE - ZEEUYERNEET
SHERERSEN  AERAETRRE
& BB TISIOR L ARR -

AEBERBFAFENIZRREESE
HEEMERAE MAR B U EE R T
e BRESEREX RRX K
HlzmEgx HAXRENMENEESH
THEAMRER -

R2020F12H31H - I EMEZEREE
A AR 1,433,900,0007T (20194 © AR
1,002,900,0007T) ° B B#E —FFFBEH R
B SRR I 5E14 -

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT")

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding
of the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon the completion of the property
development projects. The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation
and payments with the tax authorities for certain of its property
development projects. The final outcome could be different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, and any differences will impact
on the LAT expenses and the related provision in the period in which
the differences realise. The carrying amount of provision for land
appreciation tax at 31 December 2020 was RMB697,045,000 (2019:
RMB595,145,000).

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties, including completed investment properties
and investment properties under construction, are revalued at the
end of the reporting period based on the appraised market value
provided by independent professional valuers. Such valuations are
based on certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty
and might materially differ from the actual results. In making the
estimation, the Group considers information from current prices in
an active market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are
mainly based on market conditions existing at the reporting date.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the fair value
include those related to estimated rental values with reference to the
current market rents for similar properties in the same location and
condition, appropriate rental growth rates, discount rates, long term
vacancy rates, occupancy rates and capitalisation rates.

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2020
was RMB1,433,900,000 (2019: RMB1,002,900,000). Further details are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND ESTIMATES (Continued)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Leases — Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR") to
measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Group
would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a similar
security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value
to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment. The
IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to pay”, which
requires estimation when no observable rates are available (such as
for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing transactions) or when
it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the
lease (for example, when leases are not in the subsidiary's functional
currency). The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs (such
as market interest rates) when available and is required to make
certain entity-specific estimates (such as the subsidiary’s stand-alone
credit rating).

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in one single operating segment, i.e,,
the property development and investment business. Accordingly, no
operating segment information is presented.

Geographical information

No geographical information by operating segment is presented
as the Group's revenue from the external customers is derived
solely from its operations in Mainland China and more than 90%
of the non-current assets of the Group are located in Mainland
China. Accordingly, in the opinion of the directors, the presentation
of geographical information would provide no additional useful
information to the users of these financial statements.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, no revenue
from a single external customer contributed 10% or more of the
Group's total revenue.
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5. iz - Rtk A Rl &2 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
@ AEEHWESFEIIOT (@  Ananalysis of the Group’s revenue is as follows:
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARE TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
Wz Revenue
KEEFEL K Revenue from contracts with customers
R A M) S S Sale of properties in the PRC 5,149,966 3,601,049
P Y=P-viiy Y A0l & Revenue from another source
REMEKEHERESUW A Gross rental income from investment
FEEE property operating leases 3,267 4557
5,153,233 3,605,606
REEFEHHWE Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) WRERBHE (i)  Disaggregated revenue information
FiEREEFAANKEE All revenue from contracts with customers are
RHEmR - recognised at a point in time.
TRINTRAFEEE BR The following table shows the amount of revenue
WiaesE  HERFEFA recognised in the current year that were included in the
BREE contract liabilities at the beginning of the year:

20205 20194
2020 2019

AR®BTT ARBTIT
RMB’000 RMB'000

REVFAGHEED Revenue recognised that was
B R included in contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year:

YEHE Sale of properties 1,692,986 1,570,921
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

(Continued)

(@) Ananalysis of the Group's revenue is as follows: (Continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

(ii)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligation
is summarised below:

Sale of properties

The performance obligation is satisfied when the
physical possession or the legal title of the completed
property is obtained by the customer.

The contracted sales amounts allocated to the
remaining performance obligations as at the end of the
year:

20194
2019
AREFIT
RMB'000

20205
2020

ARBT R
RMB’000

TEARERAREN S ¢ Amounts expected to be
recognised as revenue:
TR Within one year 3,795,407 1,735,375
BB After one year 84,371 52,396
3,879,778 1,787,771

PEEHRTROBEENALN
HESHEBRANHEEDME —
FrRERSNE  HPED
BEESRMERNET - A
HiDREHTEOEEN
BHHESRBHER—FR
BRRNKE - EREEN

1B -

The contracted sales amounts allocated to the remaining
performance obligations which are expected to be
recognised as revenue after one year relate to the sale
of properties, of which the performance obligations are
to be satisfied within two years. All the other contracted
sales amounts allocated to the remaining performance
obligations are expected to be recognised as revenue
within one year. The amounts disclosed above do not
include variable consideration which is constrained.
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5. K&« Rftilt AR W& ) 5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(Continued)
(b)  AHEEEMKA R D AT a0 (b)  Ananalysis of the Group’s other income and gains is as follows:
T
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR®BTR ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BATET ABRE Fair value gains on financial assets at fair
eMEENDFERE value through profit or loss 71,086 -
BATER ABRE Dividend income from financial assets at
TREEERNREKA fair value through profit or loss 18,412 -
M—REELEERL Interest income of a loan
L BWA to a joint venture 16,653 13,587
b H Z RS EE Foreign exchange differences, net 9,490 -
FRITH BYA Bank interest income 5,208 7,883
BWIE S Forfeiture of deposits 1,605 2,997
HEME - BB KR Gain on disposal of items of property,
5B M= plant and equipment 91 -
Hfh Others 19,784 2936

142,329 27,403
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6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX

RNEBRRF AR T &R (GEA) The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging/(crediting):
AT RIREER

20204 20194F
2020 2019

i ARBT R ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

EEMERMA

RRDESREMEELN

BERRERAX
(BREERFRESR)

ME - BE LR EITE

EREEENE

B EESH
HEME - BB R&E
A B R aR*

Hft W R IR R E
BT EFARGEZ
CREENTEZD"
BAVERARRZ
T ENE ER S AT
WEF AT EHEREDN
HEMK
ZERED B &

BERMAX(BRES
B (HfaEs)) -
e EAKREYERN

Cost of properties sold 3,363,348 1,958,259
Direct operating expenses (including

repairs and maintenance) arising on

rental-earning investment

properties 5,559 2,400
Depreciation of property, plant and 13

equipment 8,307 4,848
Depreciation of right-of-use assets 15(c) 5,913 7,073
Amortisation of intangible assets* 16 2,930 1,390
Gain on disposal of items of property,

plant and equipment* (91) -
Impairment of other receivables 13,309 -
Change in fair value of financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss* (71,086) -
Dividend income from financial assets

at fair value through profit or loss* (18,412) -
Lease payments not included in the

measurement of lease liabilities 642 1,262
Auditor’s remuneration 4,600 4,752

Employee benefit expense (including
directors' remuneration (note 8)):
Salaries, bonuses and benefits

in kind 202,034 97125
LA R e 45 5 1O BB AR R A =2 Equity-settled share option expense 33,774 46,519
RN ETEIE R Pension scheme contributions 6,588 6,252
242,396 149,896
VE W Z= RRFRE Foreign exchange differences, net** (9,490) 1,183
* FFAGREBE R EAMKRA R * Included in "Other income and gains” in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss.
i FFAMREIBERNIITERAXS] - ; Included in “Administrative expenses” in the consolidated statement of

profit or loss.
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7. MBRFE 7. FINANCE COSTS
WA - An analysis of finance costs is as follows:
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARET ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEAEME Interest on lease liabilities 331 463
RIT M EMERFE Interest on bank and other borrowings 167,581 277,982
BAEEEFE Interest on senior notes 56,488 -
WA HEEMF B Interest expense arising from revenue
contracts 10,592 30,879
B BAMEF B Less: Interest capitalised (99,438) (226,903)
135,554 82,421
8. EFERERETTHARTH 8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION
FREERERITHRABHMIBE L Directors' and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
mRA] - BELQFHEGIZE383(1)@) ~ (b) pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(), (b), () and (f) of the
OENMERARI(BREESFmERHER Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
FEOEPEL I EE - (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation.
ETESHEEN GO AT EEREE Certain directors received remuneration from the subsidiaries
THBRARMNES R SEEMUKZE now comprising the Group for their capacity as directors and/or
WEBARESHM - ZEWNB AN employees of these subsidiaries. The remuneration of each of these
BHRERPEESNZSEETSENTEH directors as recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiaries is
AT set out below:
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARE TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
we Fees 1,062 -
H b 3REN Other emoluments:
e EMEEYEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,033 4941
BB TEAT Discretionary bonuses 8,816 365
LARS HE 45 H HO BE AR =2 Equity-settled share option expense 11,546 17,057
RIREETEIHER Pension scheme contributions 88 148
26,483 22,511
27,545 22,511
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, certain directors and
the chief executive officer were granted share options, in respect of
their services to the Group, under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
(as defined in note 34) of the Company, further details of which are
set out in note 34 to the financial statements. The fair value of such
options, which has been recognised in the statement of profit or loss
over the vesting period, was determined as at the date of grant and
the amount included in the financial statements for the current year
is included in the above directors' and chief executive’s remuneration
disclosures.

(a) Independent non-executive directors

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during
the year were as follows:

20204 20195

2020 2019

ARE TR ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

HEERRL L Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna 354 -
RREERAE Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen 354

MG £ 4 Ms Lin Yanna 354 -

1,062 -

BB - ARIE(S oA AR
ZEH2019F12A11BEZ T AR
NE)BN FEMITES -

FRMEL G EMNBIFNITES
284 Q0195 + F) o

Ms Chiu Lai Kuen Susanna, Mr Hung Wan Shun Stephen and
Ms Lin Yanna were appointed as independent non-executive
directors of the Company on 11 December 2019.

There were no other emoluments payable to the independent
non-executive directors during the year (2019: Nil).
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(b)

150

At

EEREETRARHM»

8.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

HTEE  —RIFTEER (b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and
BEHITE the chief executive officer
E2ic MR
EER £Em Efhe
BENEA BEfa BRERX Al agm
Salaries,
allowances Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  Discretionary  share option scheme Total
Fees inkind bonuses expense contributions remuneration
ARETR AR®Tn ARETr AR¥Tr ARETR AR%T:n
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
2020 2020
HTEE: Executive directors;
[RERRALE Mir Lun Zhao Ming
ko) (notes (3) and (c)) = 1,687 4,216 3,007 15 8,925
BB EEW26) Mr Lau Kam Kwok
Dickson (note (a)) - 1,265 1,265 810 15 3,355
EREREWH6) Mr Lu Peijun (note (3)) = 1,343 718 3,007 2 5,089
i 4,295 6,199 6,824 51 17,369
FHTEE: Non-executive director:
mHER LR D) Mr Lun RX (note (b)) = 1738 2,617 4722 37 9,114
- 6,033 8,816 11,546 8 26,483
2019% 2019
BTES: Executive directors:
RRALE Mr Lun Zhao Ming
WHaEC) (notes (3) and (c)) - 1518 - 4529 16 6,063
RS BREWiEe) Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson
(note (3)) - 1,350 - 1,200 16 2566
BhEEEHEE) Mr Lu Pejjun note (3)) - 833 365 4529 50 5777
- 3701 365 10258 8 14406
FHTES Non-executive director;
mEERE@RD) Mr Lun RX (note (b)) - 1,240 - 6,799 66 8,105
- 4941 365 17,057 148 22511
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
REMUNERATION (Continued)

(b) Executive directors, a non-executive director and
the chief executive officer (Continued)

Notes:

(@) Mr Lun Zhao Ming, Mr Lau Kam Kwok Dickson and Mr Lu Peijun
were appointed as directors of the Company and redesignated
as executive directors of the Company on 25 March 2019.

(b) Mr Lun RX was appointed as a director of the Company on
9 January 2019 and was appointed as the chairman and
redesignated as a non-executive director of the Company on
25 March 2019.

(@} Mr Lun Zhao Ming was appointed as the chief executive officer
of the Company on 25 March 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year.

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included three
(2019: three) directors, details of whose remuneration are set out in

note 8 to the financial statements. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining highest paid non-director employees for the year are as
follows:

20204 20195

2020 2019

AR®ETx ARET T

RMB’000 RMB'000

e REREWEF Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind 6,031 1,624
BB TEAT Discretionary bonuses 10,732 842
AR E MR IR Equity-settled share option expense 1,179 7,548
RIREETEIHR Pension scheme contributions 36 100
17,978 10,114
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9. hEEEHMES @ 9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)
FHNFTATHENIFESES T HE The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
BAZWMT ¢ remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

20204 2019%F

2020 2019

5,000,001 7T £ 5,500,000/ 7T HKS$5,000,001 to HKS5,500,000 1 1

5,500,001 7T % 6,000,000/ 7T HK$5,500,001 to HK$6,000,000 = 1

16,000,001 7T £ 16,500,000/8 70 HK$16,000,001 to HK$ 16,500,000 1 -

2 2
HZE20190F12A3BILLFE - BTIE During the year ended 31 December 2019, share options were
ERFERITRABZEZ=HBES granted to certain non-directors and non-chief executive highest
18 <5 1A 7 £ (B 42 {1 B9 AR 7%5 i 28 9% B8 Ak paid employees in respect of their services to the Group, further
- B HBEEHR Y B RERME details of which are included in note 34 to the financial statements.
34 ZEBBRENATERSEEHARER The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the
BaEENER)RR L BBET - BAF statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined
EMEHREAANMESED T A L IEE as at the date of grant and the amounts included in the financial
ERFRRITHRABZ&ZSHTMEEH statements for the current year is included in the above non-director
B BB A o and non-chief executive highest paid employees’ remuneration

disclosures.

10. FRiRIRBFASE 10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
AEEARAEEXNERRIEEREE The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
FREERLTS Bl A @ EE A S T8 O R B i arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
EREEHNAEN - BRERSHER of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and
EBEZESHARESR  NEERHA regulations of the Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands, the
EEERABEZESHMEIMNES entities within the Group incorporated in the Cayman Islands and the
EABMEMFEN - ARAEBERAE British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. No provision
FEVWELBBEA(TMERTF - for Hong Kong profits tax has been made for the year as the Group
B B B A BB RS B E (2019 did not generate any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during
F o E) o REEN A E A E RS the year (2019: Nil). Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland
N R)AR25%TE (20199F © 25%) 8149 China are subject to the CIT at a rate of 25% (2019: 25%).

Bl ZEFTEH -
152 JES#EMRABRAE  Huijing Holdings Company Limited



B 75 R 2% BT 5

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. R8T @)

TG ER IR L EEAISELRER
E30%ZE60%EW - T EBENIEES
HEMEMSTERATIRFAY - 21
THBR AN ~ 18 FAK AR I E Ath 4 5 9 2
X - AEBEREFRBERGEERE
R EET R AT IE A ET A ot S (E A
e THIBEHBEARAMTBBEER
RARE T RHE -

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated and included in taxation a provision for LAT
according to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws
and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the final review and

approval by the local tax bureau.

20204 20194F
2020 2019
ARETR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

BNER - Current:
R EMEH PRC CIT 230,655 303,842
FR B (B R (A aF37) PRC LAT (note 31) 366,283 339,929
596,938 643,771
TEIE (f15£32) Deferred (note 32) (8,283) (36,973)
FRBIEL HRE Total tax charge for the year 588,655 606,798

ERAARAREKRZ ZHE AR MER
VRREIR BATE B R Gt B B BR B AT F &Y
BERAMEHAY - BRFABRREG
HHHIARSCHBRI T

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and most of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax expense at the
effective tax rate for the year are as follows:

2020 2019
2020 2019
AR¥TR ARETT
RMB'000 RMB'000
BR A3 A Profit before tax 1,329,129 1,226,809
BRBATEMEHEER  Taxcharge at the PRC statutory
WA income tax rate 332,282 25.0 306,702 250
AE—FRABRECER),/ BB Share of (profit)/loss attributable to
ajoint venture (49,026) (3.7) 3617 04
BARBMA Income not subject to tax (2,005) (0.2) (385) ©.)
A RENHAS Expenses not deductible for tax 1,311 0.1 11,010 09
AERBEER Tax losses not recognised 31,381 2.4 30907 25
T EREE Provision for LAT 366,283 27.6 339,929 207
THSEERAHET 2 Tax effect on LAT (91,571) (6.9) (84,982) (69
BAEEERHERAEMMIE  Tax charge at the Group's effective
tax rate 588,655 443 606,798 495
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10. FAISIRAX @
HE200F12831BILFEZ2EEDE

JERTIE A ARE147,789,0007T (2019
F4E) o

11. BRR

B3 2 REIE - B

10.

11.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The share of tax attributable to a joint venture was RMB147,789,000
for the year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

DIVIDENDS

20194
2019
ARETIT
RMB'000

20204
2020

AR®TT
RMB’000

Proposed final = HK4.95 cents (2019: Nil) per

L3495 U (20194F : M) ordinary share 218,643 -

2019 FFRIAR B - TRk 2019 Special dividend = HK4.5 cents per
A% 458 ordinary share = 212,159
218,643 212,159

Bk#E 2 RABEBEAFARRBRRE
JERRBERE LI -

12. BARHAAELSKRET

HE20200F012A318 L FEZ2HREAR
BRHDERT AR HE AEEFRNE
FAR#516,356,0007T(20194F « AR
#5615,390,00070) R F N E B 1T LB
Z INHESF Y $5,221,700,8200% (20194 -
446589997705+ E ©

ARETEHZ 202000128318 ILEES
REEARE R 2 E @A hnte I BIEA R
AIEEITHI00AR LB - BIBEER(LE
77 (FE 2 BB 3E33(d)) 21T H94,465,899,900
REEA O BUZERBERFRE
T ARARRIEA ETHRBEETH
788,100,0008 L i@A% + E—FBIERN
B A5 R T 5E33(e)

154

12.

The proposed final dividend is subject to the approval of the
Company's shareholders at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
OWNERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 December 2020 is based on the profit for the year attributable to
owners of the parent of RMB516,356,000 (2019: RMB615,390,000),
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of 5,221,700,820
(2019:4,465,899,977) in issue during the year.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 represented 100 ordinary shares of the Company issued,
4,465,899,900 ordinary shares issued pursuant to the Capitalisation
Issue (as defined in note 33(d)) as if these shares had been in issue
throughout the year, as well as 788,100,000 ordinary shares issued
upon the completion of the listing of the Company, as further
detailed in note 33(e) to the financial statements.
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12. BAFRAAREERET 12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
(4 OWNERS OF THE PARENT (Continued)
AR EEHZE2019F 12831 BILFEES
PREARBF) 2 LB INEF 8B AR
AIPAGEMAN S B BREE 1T A 1 AR 3@ AR « A
NAEIFA201953 F27 H LABE 38 5 231 THY
oof% L AL LA AR B B AL BT RITH
4,465,899 900/ L iBI% - WUZERHE
RELZE2019F 128318 IEFEREET -

The weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate
the basic earnings per share for the year ended 31 December 2019
represented 1 ordinary share of the Company issued on the date
of incorporation, 99 ordinary shares of the Company issued by
allotment on 27 March 2019, as well as 4,465,899,900 ordinary shares
issued pursuant to the Capitalisation Issue as if these shares had been
in issue throughout the year ended 31 December 2019.
BRARNMEERFFAENOT - The calculations of the basic and diluted earnings per share are based
on:

20194
2019
AREFIT
RMB'000

20204
2020

ARBT R
RMB’000

&R
ARG ESRER R EE
BNz B ARIER ARG

Earnings
Profit attributable to owners of the parent,
used in the basic and diluted earnings per

il share calculation 516,356 615,390
A& Shares
BARFTEESREALREFZFAN  Weighted average number of ordinary shares

BT @R e N T a 8 in issue during the year used in the basic

earnings per share calculation 5,221,700,820 4,465,899,977

e - L@k Effect of dilution — weighted average number

FHg of ordinary shares:
B e Share options 1,348,261 38,946
ARETEEREERT 2 Weighted average number of ordinary shares

FRD BT R in issue during the year used in the diluted

IR 8 earnings per share calculation 5,223,049,081 4,465,938,923

20205 FR  Annual Report 2020

155



B 755 sl 5% B 5
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020%F12H31H 31 December 2020

13. % - BER®RHE 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

FA - HER
WAERE

Furniture,

HEMREKE

fixtures
Motor
vehicles Total

ARETT ARETT

and office
equipment

ARETT

Leasehold

improvements
ARETT
RMB'000

RMB'000

RMB'000

RMB'000

20205128318 31 December 2020
M20206F1 1A - At 1 January 2020:
&N Cost 9,159 15,211 23,119 47,489
BitinE Accumulated depreciation (2,275) (8,794) (18,813) (29,882)
REFE Net carrying amount 6,884 6,417 4,306 17,607
20201718 - At 1 January 2020, net of
TR B5THTE accumulated depreciation 6,884 6,417 4,306 17,607
IEEKT B A BI(BY7#37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 37) - 273 238 511
RE Additions 8,825 41,268 6,776 56,869
HE Disposals (960) (25) (365) (1,350)
FRTERE Depreciation provided during
the year (351) (4,075) (3,881) (8,307)
20209124318 - At 31 December 2020, net of
B 2T E accumulated depreciation 14,398 43,858 7,074 65,330
20209124318 : At 31 December 2020:
D% Cost 16,373 55,748 28,994 101,115
2EtiE Accumulated depreciation (1,975) (11,890) (21,920) (35,785)
REFE Net carrying amount 14,398 43,858 7,074 65,330
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

13. ¥ - BRERERR») 13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT Continued)
KA £EBR
WAERE

Furniture,

HEMREKE

fixtures
and office Motor
equipment
ARBFT
RMB'000

Leasehold

improvements
ARBETT
RMB'000

vehicles Total
AREFT ARBF T
RMB'000

RMB'000

20195128318 31 December 2019
20191 A18 - At 1 January 2019;

%N Cost 8572 15,445 27,627 51,644

BitinE Accumulated depreciation (1,859) (8,554) (21,205) (31,618)

REFE Net carrying amount 6,713 6,891 6,422 20,026
M2019F1 /418 - At 1 January 2019, net of

TR 2RTHITE accumulated depreciation 6,713 6,891 6,422 20,026
NE Additions 1,138 1,464 1423 4025
HeE Disposals 619) (78) (899) (1,596)
FRFTEER Depreciation provided during

the year (348) (1,860) (2,640) (4,848)

20198128318 At 31 December 2019, net of

bR 2EHTE accumulated depreciation 6,884 6417 4,306 17,607
2019128318 ¢ At 31 December 2019;

%N Cost 9,159 15,211 23,119 47,489

BEHE Accumulated depreciation (2,275) (8,794) (18813) (29,882)

RHEFE Net carrying amount 6,884 6,417 4,306 17,607

20204 Annual Report 2020 157



B 755 sl 5% B 5
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2020%F12H31H 31 December 2020

14. EME 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2% EEH
REWFE REWF
Investment
Completed properties
investment under
properties  construction Total
ARETFT AREFT ARETTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
20191 A1 BRERAE Carrying amount at
1 January 2019 339,600 592,700 932,300
NE Additions - 59,573 59,573
NERBREFE Net gains from fair value
adjustments (8,600) 19,627 11,027
72019128318 & Carrying amount at 31 December
202051 A1 B BREE 2019 and 1 January 2020 331,000 671,900 1,002,900
HERELENERT Transfer from completed
mE properties held for sale 170,201 - 170,201
NE Additions - 146,302 146,302
U BB B B A B (F74237) Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 37) 28,746 44,192 72938
NERBEREFE Net gains from fair value
adjustments (8,647) 50,206 41,559
202012831 BRIREE Carrying amount at 31 December
2020 521,300 912,600 1,433,900
REEBNEEMEMREBERH W The Group's investment properties are situated in Mainland China
2020 12 A3 1 HIRIEB T HE A EK and were revalued on 31 December 2020 based on valuations
(EMFEBTOXTEREHER performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory
NE (R8T )ETHEESEN - A Limited ("JLL"), independent professionally qualified valuers, at
ABR®1,433,900,0007T (20194F : ARHE RMB1,433,900,000 (2019: RMB1,002,900,000).
1,002,900,0007T,) °
NEEEHR Fair value hierarchy
REZ2020F X2019F12A31HIEF For the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the fair value
B KEBKEYETVEREATIE measurements of the Group's investment properties used significant
Rig A (E=)ETALEHE - unobservable inputs (Level 3).

EERE MBEERATEIFEZREY In the opinion of the directors, for all investment properties that are
O EETRSARERS - measured at fair value, the properties have been used in their highest
and best use.

RAFE F-REF_HrHEATER
FEFAEER  TEEAREBLE =L During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements
NEEFFZ Q0195 : ) o between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3

(2019: Nil).
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T RAEREERMOBTERRED
EAENE2HAZE

ERREANR

RER

Valuation technique

Investment properties under construction

T
Retail

BE

Hotel

WA

Income approach

BEREREE

Discounted cash flow approach

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

EXTUBRBANE T
Significant unobservable inputs Weighted average
20205 2019
2020 2019

e BEETHARER) AR¥s8Z132T ARBI0T
Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month) RMB58-132 RMB102
REZEE(Y) 35 5

Long term vacancy rate (%)

BAREE ) 45-5 55
Capitalisation rate (%)

RETRFE-FFHERFH ARMo00T  ARES0T
Average daily room rate in the first year of completion RMB900 RMB950
REHESERE ) 3 3

Stabilised rental growth rate (%)

BEATE ) 70 70
Stabilised occupancy rate (%)

A% () 8 8
Discount rate (%)
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14. |EWMR®) 14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)
NEEBRE) Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
fEERN EXFAREAASE il RE
Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs Weighted average
20206 2019F
2020 2019
ERIREME
Completed investment properties
£33 HRREREE e BEETHARER) ARBIIT  AR®I08T
Retail Discounted cash flow approach  Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month) RMB97 RMB108
BEESERE®) 3 3
Stabilised rental growth rate (%)
FERE (%) 8 8
Discount rate (%)
WANE e BEETHAREA) AR¥NIR -
Income approach Estimated rental value (per sq.m. and per month) RMB117 -
RPZEXM) 3 -
Long term vacancy rate (%)
B 0) 3.25-4.75 -
Capitalisation rate (%)
fFEfir WA it e BEBEELREA) AR¥1887 -
Car parking space Income approach Estimated rental value (per lot and per month) RMB188 -

REZEE R ) 5 -

Long term vacancy rate (%)

B R (%) 4 -

Capitalisation rate (%)
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14. REWME

REEBRE)

REMBARESREZL  RFESIERAR
REBAERON SN BEBAEEN
FH(ERESEURKEE) ETH -
RAESREYE RGN —ERBER
EFER - MSITERR T ERARFERER
TRE - AR EERBRARIRN
BE BERaX-REBETAAR
RARER & -

BenesnHERELRATRHE A
EREomEees  EHRERE
- BEIBHSEMHRE - BENR
BREBXMSTTRRYERRN— @R
T E - ERRRELRBWAIIR
ZE - TAKEMY - WEEE - HE
BE HKEER KENBSERARE
R EMERF AR - Z—FIIEM
REWN TR BRIV RRE
R REEEMTEE  BRERE-

REBWAE - HESREYRGHEOM
SHSWANFRTUERLET - WiE
EERMENERWDESN  H2EH
SR ELBRRZET - EPERINEL
FELARRE ZEFRE - B K B
ZE o

HAHEBERESFEREERFAE
#in R eERREMERATEKE
B REZEER  BRRERE
AMeREBAREN, RO GEBIRE
WENTFERERD, N -

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Under the discounted cash flow method, fair value is estimated
using assumptions regarding the benefits and liabilities of ownership
over the asset’s life including an exit or terminal value. This method
involves the projection of a series of cash flows on a property
interest. A market-derived discount rate is applied to the projected
cash flows in order to establish the present value of the income
stream associated with the asset. The exit yield is normally separately
determined and differs from the discount rate.

The duration of the cash flows and the specific timing of inflows
and outflows are determined by events such as rent reviews, lease
renewal and related reletting, redevelopment or refurbishment.
The appropriate duration is driven by market behaviour that is a
characteristic of the class of property. The periodic cash flow is
estimated as gross income less vacancy, non-recoverable expenses,
collection losses, lease incentives, maintenance costs, agent and
commission costs and other operating and management expenses.
The series of periodic net operating income, along with an estimate
of the terminal value anticipated at the end of the projection period,
is then discounted.

Under the income approach, valuations are based on the
capitalisation of net rental income derived from the existing
tenancies with due allowance for the reversionary income potential
of the properties or made with reference to comparable market
transactions and consider adjustments to reflect differences in
transaction timing, location and tenure.

A significant increase/decrease in the estimated rental value and the
rental growth per annum in isolation would result in a significant
increase/decrease in the fair value of the investment properties.
A significant increase/decrease in the long term vacancy rate, the
discount rate and the capitalisation rate in isolation would result in
a significant decrease/increase in the fair value of the investment
properties.
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15. 8 15. LEASES
AEBEREBEA The Group as a lessee
AEBREEEMANACEZEMEIAR The Group has lease contracts for office premises used in its
EEH - MEINF22=55F o operations, which have lease terms between 2 to 5 years.
) EAEEE (@) Right-of-use assets
RAEFE AEENEREEER The carrying amount of the Group's right-of-use assets and the
AEREFHNT movements during the year are as follows:
WAERFT
Office premises
20204 2019%F
2020 2019
ARBT R ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
®1ATR At 1 January 10,134 4,897
NE Additions 2,494 12,453
KEEFESM Depreciation charged during the year (5,913) (7,073)
PE 5 Exchange realignment (31) (143)
®12A318 At 31 December 6,684 10,134
(b) HEEE (b) Lease liabilities
REFE  AEENHEEBERR The carrying amount of the Group's lease liabilities and the
BEREBHHT : movements during the year are as follows:
2020 2019%F
2020 2019
ARBT R ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
RTATBMREE Carrying amount at 1 January 10,372 4793
WHE New leases 2,494 12,453
AN SR FEET IS Accretion of interest recognised during
the year 331 463
3R Payment (6,307) (7,119)
bE 5, 8 B Exchange realignment 407 (218)
R12A3BHEREEE Carrying amount at 31 December 7,297 10,372
DA - Analysed into:
mENER S Current portion 5,163 5,709
ERBE D Non-current portion 2,134 4663
HEBEZ BB TR B REM T The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 45
4595 R o to the financial statements.
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15. 8 »®)
KEBEELERBA )
(€ BAENEREZNSBENT -

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

15. LEASES (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

(c)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

are as follows:

20204 20194
2020 2019
AR TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HEBGENE Interest on lease liabilities 331 463
FRABEENESH Depreciation charge of right-of-use
assets 5,913 7,073
IR TR HA A HR 25 HR R 2k Expense relating to short-term leases
ZRIERZEBHEER and other leases with remaining
Hib A EMRERAT lease terms ended on or before the
GFFATTER ) end of the reporting period
(included in administrative
expenses) 642 1,262
REBRER A Total amount recognised in profit or
loss 6,886 8,798

(d) THEBRESHRHBENRYERERME
38O = °

AEBEAEBEA
AEBRBELELHELHHEERENE
(MsE14)  BREAUNFEH=ZEEHEYD
¥ - AEERTFRERNESKVAL
AR #3,267,00070 (20194 : 4,557,000
TT) - BEFBEHRIBREMESE) -

(d)  The total cash outflow for leases is disclosed in note 38(c) to
the financial statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting
of three commercial properties in the PRC under operating lease
arrangements. Rental income recognised by the Group during the
year was RMB3,267,000 (2019: HK$4,557,000), details of which are
included in note 5(a) to the financial statements.
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16. ELEE 16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

B4
Software
20204 20194F
pLop ) 2019
AR® T AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
REH At the beginning of the year:
PR R Cost 10,130 7,824
B Accumulated amortisation (4,670) (3,280)
BRERE Net carrying amount 5,460 4,544
REH) - LN TN At the beginning of the year, net of
accumulated amortisation 5,460 4544
NE Additions 5,088 2,306
FREERE Amortisation provided during the year (2,930) (1,390)
RER - K40k ZET#EEH Atthe end of the year, net of
accumulated amortisation 7,618 5,460
RER : Atthe end of the year:
PR Cost 15,218 10,130
BT Accumulated amortisation (7,600) (4,670)
BREFE Net carrying amount 7,618 5,460
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

17. R—REBLEHRE 17. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

EhEEFE Share of net assets 225,061 28,958

AEEEK—REE B ERWRIBBRE The Group's receivable due from a joint venture is disclosed in note

PRSI T2 EE o 22 to the financial statements.

AEBEBZAELEFNBOT Particulars of the Group’s joint venture are as follows:

EATER

Percentage of

TR
EMRBRRE REBGE FrakEs R Efbas FEED
Registered  Place of
and paid-up  registrationand Ownership Voting Profit  Principal
capital  business interest power sharing  activity
WEEREMEXERAFY  ARB 96078400  HE/HER 49% 4%% 9% WERE
Hunan Development Gaoxin RMB196,078400  PRC/Mainland China 49% 49% 49%  Property development
Properties Company Limited

NEREBREAANREERE - The above joint venture is indirectly held by the Company.

* BEFEEEELANEGR AT ° * Registered as a domestic limited liability company under PRC law.

# AR ZA R M E R EX A RS i The English name of this company represents the best effort made by
T MERNEEBAARERESR management of the Company to directly translate its Chinese name as
NEEBRERXEEmMER - it did not register any official English name.

THRERAEBRABENERZEEDR The following table illustrates the financial information of the Group’s

K ZHBER joint venture that is not individually material:

2020 20194F
2020 2019
AR® TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

DEGERENTFE Share of the joint venture’s profit/(loss)

CaEH),/EiE for the year 196,103 (14,468)

DEEEREEME Share of the joint venture's total

WA,/ (E1B) 5 comprehensive income/(loss) 196,103 (14,468)

TEBR-—REEGEREDN Carrying amount of the Group's

BREE investment in a joint venture 225,061 28,958
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18. FEMBLIGHH ST 1 18. LAND HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARBTR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
FYREE Carrying amount at the beginning
of the year 1,044,817 1,409,068
NE Additions 613,062 269,860
R SRy Transfer to properties under
development - (634,111)
FAREEEE Carrying amount at the end of the year 1,657,879 1,044,817
TEHER —FRIER 2 ERAR Current portion expected to be
s 18 BNERER 5> recovered within normal operating
cycle after one year (1,161,151) (757,842)
JERNEREL o Non-current portion 496,728 286,975
R2020F12A31H » NEEZBRHEE At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's land held for
B AREE931,352,00070 (20194F : AR development for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of
776,122,0007T) YIS 1ER B A E B E RMB931,352,000 (2019: RMB776,122,000) was pledged to secure
FLi2 TEM  UERERTAEED certain bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

BT R1T MEMER(HEE29)

19. EEME 19. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

20204 2019%F

2020 2019

ARET R ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

TEHAR IE % 48 & 48 2R Y 21 9 Properties under development expected
TEREME - to be recovered within normal
operating cycle:

— R Within one year 1,914,511 2,598,441

—Fi& After one year 1,030,430 277,240

2,944,941 2,875,681
20206124318 - AEE 2 BEREE At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group's properties
BARE1,050,172,0007C(2019F « AR under development with an aggregate carrying amount of
1,369,428,0007T) V& THEEY XD EK RMB1,050,172,000 (2019: RMB1,369,428,000) was pledged to secure

o NERR TAEENE TIRITRE certain bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

fl &R (I FE29) °
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20. HEHEMEBIYME
R20208F 128310 AEBEZEREmAE
A AR #620,450,0007T (20194 © AR
965,655,00070) K& THRHEHEME R T
MEBEER  NWERETASENS
FIRTT R EABE R (I 7E29) o

21. BHEWIRSR

= 5 YRR

Trade receivables

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

20. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE

At 31 December 2020, certain of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB620,450,000
(2019: RMB965,655,000) was pledged to secure certain bank and
other borrowings granted to the Group (note 29).

21. TRADE RECEIVABLES

20194
2019
AREFIT
RMB'000

20204
2020

AR®TR
RMB’000

56,760 112,806

B 5 RWER IR R HEE SRR
R ABRMENREDNREERES W
BZIEFBABTPIN - AEE I REH
R e UK B AR B BR AR PR R - T B R A
HHEEETHEZ -

HRASENEZREEREZ @S T
EtEFAH BUBEAEERARE
oo NS B H E 5 R WK A B
HAETMERRKEMERER -5
FEUERFBTELE -

RERE H BB TR R R R ER
BHMARE DA

—FR

Within 1 year

Trade receivables represent receivables arising from the sale of
properties. Consideration in respect of properties is payable by the
customers in accordance with the terms of the related sale and
purchase agreements. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and overdue balances are reviewed
regularly by management.

Since the Group's trade receivables are related to a number of
diversified customers, there is no significant concentration of
credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are non-interest-bearing.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the year,
based on the revenue recognition date or invoice date, is as follows:

20194F
2019
AREETIT
RMB'000

20204
2020

ARBTR
RMB’000

56,760 112,806

AEEEAE BV IEHRELERNE AT
TR A AR TE = B R B IEH &
B ZIRTEAFEHATEE S EREFUR
BEHmEREERE - ERYBEEE
BEEBRLEAAENTL  ESRA
EHAZEEBRTEHEEBENT K
AT K o 720205 2019512 A31
H ZHRWERZBEEEBERTGE
B e

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for ECLs
prescribed by HKFRS 9, which permits the use of the lifetime
expected loss provision for all trade receivables. Based on the
evaluation on the expected credit loss rate and gross carrying
amount, the Directors are of the opinion that the financial impact of
ECLs in respect of these balances is considered immaterial. As at 31
December 2020 and 2019, the loss allowance for trade receivables
was assessed to be minimal.
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22, FAFTHRIA - HtEWRIERE 22. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

168

fhE&E

B —FHABMRERIEA
DERRBEEQ019%F

OTHER ASSETS

20204 20194
2020 2019
AREFIT

ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

Receivable from a joint venture classified
as current assets

FERBEE) (2019: non-current assets) 258,121 492,149
TR HIE Prepayments 1,721,680 961,333
A KB BAR Cost of obtaining contracts 37,336 14,358
E e GRIE RiE S Other receivables and deposits 422,799 70,636

2,181,815 1,046,327

20208128318 » REBE i EIK
FIENRIES BER/AR258,121,0007T
(20194F : AR #492,149,0007T) K FEU —
RABMENIE  ZSREEER %
FFEE618%(2019%F : 6.18%)5T B+ WA
1218 A NEE (20194 : BB 12{8 A
WEE) -

Br il R —REEDEREN - Hih
EWFBERIZEETEBEERLF - BN
RERHEEAIHKRSREER
© e EHEEEBELEASERELEIE
SoER R AN B YRR TR B R AR B
BEFIE - RABBEREAMGE - BEX
1A E R RED AR ARBRIBEER
MIERAIRRAEEA SR - WK E—HAE
B EUEIE R E R IETFE
ITHIE NS R AHSE - R2020F K&
2019F12A31H » EER A BIEEE
WEFBER -

As at 31 December 2020, included in the Group's other receivables
and deposits was a receivable from a joint venture of RMB258,121,000
(2019: RMB492,149,000), which is unsecured, bears interest at the rate
of 6.18% (2019: 6.18%) per annum and is repayable within 12 months
(2019: not repayable within 12 months).

Except for the receivable from a joint venture as mentioned above,
other receivables and deposits mainly represent deposits with
contractors which are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable
on demand and rental deposits. The ECLs are estimated by applying
a loss rate approach with reference to the historical loss record of
the Group and the amount payable to the relevant contractors for
the Group's property development projects. The loss rate is adjusted
to reflect the current conditions and forecasts of future economic
conditions, as appropriate. There was no recent history of default and
past due amounts for the receivable from a joint venture and other
receivables. As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Directors are of
the opinion that the loss allowance was assessed to be minimal.

SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited



B 755 sl 5% BT 5
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

23. BMAFEHAIBESHEMZE 23. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT ORLOSS
2020 2019%F
2020 2019
AR¥ TR ARET T
RMB’000 RMB'000
ETRAIEE (A TFE) Listed equity investments, at fair value 89,324 -
HihIEEMESREGRATFE)  Other unlisted fund investments,
at fair value 405,514 -
494,838 -
LRI ES AR ATEF AER The above equity investments were classified as financial assets at fair
ZEREE BARRARERFEER value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.
% o
Fat3E FTRIREH ARSI DBRRIRAFE The above unlisted investments were mandatorily classified as
FFAEERNeREE  RRAESGHNIR financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as their contractual
EMEBWIHFMARZNAE RAE - A cash flows are not solely payments of principal and interest. Details
FEHAAEZNEREEN A TRER of the fair value hierarchy of the financial assets at fair value through
R FEIS BN BTSRRI 5E44 o profit or loss are set out in note 44 to the financial statements.

24, RRFHRMELRBREKRINEEFE 24. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH

B EQUIVALENTS
20204 2019%F
2020 2019
ARET T ARETFTT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Re MIRITHEER Cash and bank balances 2,083,723 728,768

B XREIRE (W aF@ kb)) Less: Restricted cash (notes (a) and (b)) (386,855) (276,304)

BeMIReEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,696,868 452,464

Bat - Notes:

@ REAEEETWHBARERITEEN @  According to relevant loan facility agreements signed by certain
FHRENRBRERE  ZENMBARA subsidiaries of the Group with the banks, these subsidiaries are required
BREMENTEERIBRF AEERT to place the pre-sale proceeds of their properties at designated bank
BRP - ZEFRER AR KBRS accounts. The deposits can only be used for the payment of property
EENMERERAREEZEHENR development costs incurred by the subsidiaries and the repayment
R2020F 128318 » ZEZREIEFERE of the relevant loans. At 31 December 2020, such restricted deposits
AR #370,725,0007T (2019 : AR amounted to RMB370,725,000 (2019: RMB247,178,000).
247,178,0007T) °

b)) BREAEEETHBARMEZENEH (b)  According to relevant loan facility agreements signed by certain
ERpE R ZEWEBARARRIE subsidiaries of the Group, the subsidiaries are required to place
FERITRPIFARIBIERTER ° 122020 deposits at designated bank accounts as a guarantee. At 31 December
F12A318 - BEZRIIZEAEARE 2020, such restricted deposits amounted to RMB16,130,000 (2019:
16,130,0007T (20194F : A ER#29,126,000 RMB29,126,000).

JT) °
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24. SEFRELURBERBAEE
B
RBERR  AEERARBAEZR
% MERTTAE B8 AR H1,986,295,0007T (2019
£ AR#ET726,182,0007T) © A RBETA]
HEMEEAHR LR BREFBEAL
HNIE B IR G0 o AETE -« EIE R HEEE
MT  AEBEESREREETINE
EBHNRITBEARESBAEMER -

FRIBITHRSRIES BORITERF
KREUFBNE - ROTERDERER
R 8 BT B 2 )R8k AV IRTT o
BeMBTEHRERERERFENR

++

Eo

25. B HEMFIRER

24. RESTRICTED CASH AND CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in RMB amounted to RMB1,986,295,000
(2019: RMB726,182,000). The RMB is not freely convertible into other
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and bank balances approximate to their fair values.

25. TRADE PAYABLES

20204 2019%F

2020 2019

ARBT R ARBT T

RMB’000 RMB'000

ERNE=FTHNEZEN Trade payables to third parties 1,708,751 1,556,470
FEHRIRtF ST EFTIEHIBIEE AT Trade payables to related companies

BB ZER controlled by Mr Lun RX 30,197 26,166

1,738,948 1,582,636

REREZEMNEFIZER A HORER

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the year,

DT ¢ based on the invoice date, is as follows:
20205 20194F
2020 2019
ARET ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
—&FR Within 1 year 1,389,669 1,433,818
—EWF 110 2 years 277,233 128,009
—ERF 3to 5 years 72,046 20,809
1,738,948 1,582,636

BHRNERASEER  AE - B—
BRREASECEEVENEREES

=
Ea

170

The trade payables are unsecured and interest-free and are normally
settled based on the progress of the construction of the Group's
properties under development.
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26. HtFEMHREA - SR E R E

27.

28.

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

26. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED

iEH AND ACCRUALS
20204 20194F
2020 2019
AR®T X AREEFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
HAth FE T 501 Other payables 184,018 183,660
BlRS Deposits received 308,273 13,625
FEFtER Accruals 227,698 116,317
719,989 313,602

Hp @A - Bz BT ERE
B TR —FAREE -

AR
AEBERRUATREHEENANE
&

Other payables, deposits received and accruals are unsecured, non-
interest-bearing and repayable within one year.

27. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract
liabilities:

20205 20194F
2020 2019

ARBT R ARETT
RMB’000 RMB'000

Y2 SEE TR NG IE Receipts in advance for sale of properties 2,223,304 1,724,907

REBRBEMEHE S WFTRTBGREE
REATPWEGIR « BB EYEH
EAHWEITZATER

EFERER

2019 12H31H - BEENERTIE
FEZHMHE - mEF  AHERERE
SKIEIE o AR E 202051 AARAQF]
LTRIEEUEE -

28.

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. Payments are
usually received in advance under the contracts which are from the
sale of properties.

BALANCES WITH DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2019, the balance with directors was non-trade in
nature, unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable on demand.
The entire balance has been fully settled before the listing of the
Company in January 2020.
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29. SIESERITRHEMBR 29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS
20205 20195
2020 2019
1 ik )il ARETT ERF% HHR ARETTL
Effective Effective
interest NEE
rate Maturity RMB'000 rate Maturity RMB'000
Ik Current
RITER-BHA Bank loans - secured 4,35%-9.02% 2021 488,600 475%-9% 2020 1214350
EER-EEA Other loans - secured 9%-13.5% 2021 334,500 9%-13.5% 2020 62800
823,100 1277150
FEH Non-current
ROER-FER Bank loans - secured 4,75%-8.50% 2022-2023 783,080  475%-8.08% 20212022 610,660
EHER-BHA Other loans — secured 9%-13.5% 2022-2023 290,000 9%-13.5% 2021-2022 171,200
1,073,040 781860
1,896,140 2059010
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR® TR ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
DT Analysed into:
BERITER Bank loans repayable
—FRX Within one year 488,600 1,214,350
F_F In the second year 144,150 410,880
E-ZhFBREEREMF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 638,890 199,780
1,271,640 1,825,010
BEEMER Other borrowings repayable
—FNR Within one year 334,500 62,800
E_F In the second year 20,000 131,200
E-EZhF(BEEEMSF) In the third to fifth years, inclusive 270,000 40,000
624,500 234,000
1,896,140 2,059,010

172 SESERAERAE Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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MERTRAEMMER =

REE 2B TRITREMEFTIATITG
AR IER

[0 IR AREB PR RS BRERAE
AR #931,352,0007 (20194 = A
R#776,122,00070) 8945 1ERI 2% A
B Es i (Mse)

i)y HWHEAEEAFEmEARE
1,050,172,0007C(2019%F : AR¥E
1,369,428,0007T) K £ 32 40 5 (Ffi 7
19)

iy EHAEBREmMEARE
620,540,0007C (20194 : AR¥E
965,655,0007T) K F{EH B A B2 %
T (FTE20) + &

(V) RS BRI A E RS TH
B A FBAE R o

R2019F 128318 - AEMZETIRT
REAE AT T AR -

0  EEEERRRE BB AR
BNETYE &

(i) EERBCREEHOEAZR -

20205 K 20195128318 » FTBEIRT
REMEZTHAAREE -

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

29. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (Continued)

Notes:

(a) Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured or
guaranteed by:

0]

(ii)

(ifi)

(iv)

pledges over the Group’s land held for development for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of RMB931,352,000 (2019: RMB776,122,000) (note 18);

pledges over the Group’s properties under development with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB1,050,172,000 (2019:
RMB1,369,428,000) (note 19);

pledges over the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB620,540,000 (2019:
RMB965,655,000) (note 20); and

pledges over the Group's equity interests in certain subsidiaries
as at the end of the reporting period.

(b) As at 31 December 2019, certain of the Group's bank and other
borrowings are secured or guaranteed by:

(i)

(i)

pledges over certain properties owned by the Controlling
Shareholders and a related company; and

personal guarantees provided by the Controlling Shareholders

(©) As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, all bank and other borrowings were
denominated in RMB.
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30. BERIE

2021 F B R EE

2021 Senior Notes

30. SENIOR NOTES

BRAI=
(5 Fll 2 %)
Effective
interest rate
(% per annum)

20194
ARETx

20205
AR®T T

2020
RMB’000

2019
RMB'000

12.5 871,332 -

DIV
R—FRER

Analysed into:
Repayable within one year

20194
2019
AREET T
RMB'000

20205
2020

ARBT R
RMB’000

871,332 -

ez -

174

MR2020F8 A3A K31H « AARAETT
N4 48%8 /5135,000,000F T (K A R
930,640,0007T) BB IE - IRFF =
125%FT 8. FTE I FHLHkRET
AR 14 #9 5130,832,000% 7T (9 AR
901,907,0007T) ° B EEH7K1202148
A5HZE|HE -

HINF N AR R B ERIEHZ AR
FISHEE W - ARRRRER D
BRI E A TR S EE m B EE (R
SHEMEBANRE) NEBEZED AN
RERANFE - BEE AR E L
eSS

REENBERBIAZITAE - WK
AARRAETHE QR RREERR -

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(0

SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited

On 3 and 31 August 2020, the Company issued senior notes with
an aggregate principal amount of US$135,000,000 (approximately
RMB930,640,000) bearing interest at 12.5% per annum. The
net proceeds, after deducting the issuance costs, amounted to
approximately US$130,832,000 (approximately RMB901,907,000). The
senior notes will mature on 5 August 2021.

The Company, at its option, can redeem all or a portion of the senior
notes at any time prior to the maturity date at a pre-determined
redemption price (principal amount plus applicable premium) plus
accrued and unpaid interest up to the redemption date, as set forth in
the written agreements between the Company and the trustees of the
senior notes.

The senior notes of the Group are denominated in United States
dollars and are secured by pledges over the equity interests of certain
subsidiaries of the Company.
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20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

31. PROVISION FOR LAND APPRECIATION TAX

20204 20195

2020 2019

AR¥ T ARETTT

RMB’000 RMB'000

M1ATE At 1 January 595,145 361,522
REREz RN B :F10) Charged to the statement of profit or

loss during the year (note 10) 366,283 339,929

FRMR Payment during the year (264,383) (106,306)

M®12A318 At 31 December 697,045 595,145

BER1994F1 A1 0 A %H) b B+ sy 4%
BEREITHRAIETE RR1995F1 H271°
A AR Y R B kb 3 (B B T TR ) s 4
Bl RPBA N EREERE L E
B - EFRENBREELENTAER
B IBE R 30% 2 60% 2 3 B R4
MR ER - DETBEEME W
HigERE BB NRIEE £%5820% -
BIERSN o

AEBEREBEFTEBBRIARELER
ZHTE - hE RIEH IR ET A
ERIHMBERARABNHEE R
EXRBHEBRTRET  REERAY
AFE LR ER B R A RN RS -

According to the requirements of the Provisional Regulations of
the PRC on LAT effective from 1 January 1994, and the Detailed
Implementation Rules on the Provisional Regulations of the PRC
on LAT effective from 27 January 1995, all gains arising from the
sale or transfer of state-owned land use rights, buildings and their
attached facilities in Mainland China are subject to LAT at progressive
rates ranging from 30% to 60% of the appreciation value, with an
exemption provided for the sale of ordinary residential properties if
their appreciation values do not exceed 20% of the sum of the total
deductible items.

The Group has estimated and made a provision for LAT according
to the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and
regulations. The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination
by the tax authorities upon completion of the property development
projects and the tax authorities might disagree with the basis on
which the provision for LAT is calculated.
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32, RERIF 32. DEFERRED TAX
REANECHBEEERABEEZH N The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
N are as follows:

ELEBEEE Deferred tax liabilities
g
B A B i
REMRKRE EIbEES EEW
MEMEE FANRMEE AV ERE
Arising from Fair value
Arising from prepayment adjustments
revaluation of of land arising from
investment appreciation  acquisition of
properties tax subsidiaries Total
ARET T ARBTFTT ARETT ARBFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R2019F1A1H At 1 January 2019 76,806 - - 76,806
RERNBRKRAHIR Charged to the statement of
(HtaF10) profit or loss during the year
(note 10) 2,756 2,922 - 5,678
R2019F 124318 K& At 31 December 2019 and
20201 A1H 1 January 2020 79,562 2,922 - 82,484
IWBEKT B AR (BY7#37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 37) - - 39,496 39,496
RERNBREZAMBR,  Charged/(credited) to the
Gr N (Hf10) statement of profit or loss
during the year (note 10) 10,390 7,845 (29,059) (10,824)
720208124318 At 31 December 2020 89,952 10,767 10,437 111,156

SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

&2 8 40 The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

A AR
AR 2R
ERBEF AL HEE
MEBEMEL BREMEL
Arising
from losses  Arising from
available provision
for offsetting of land
against future appreciation

taxable profits tax Total
ARETT ARETT ARETET
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

At 1 January 2019 23,123 88,302 111,425

(Charged)/credited to the statement
of profit or loss during the year
(note 10) (11,144) 53,795 42,651

20195128318 &

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January

20201 A1 H 2020 11,979 142,097 154,076
Ug BE B B A | (K aE37) Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 37) 14,267 - 14,267
RENEZEN (Charged)/credited to the statement

(), FtAHTzZ10) of profit or loss during the year

(note 10) (20,710) 18,169 (2,541)
720205124311 At 31 December 2020 5536 160,266 165,802
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32.

178

EERIA ()

MR2020F12A31H - AEEEFER
WEAMNRKDABEEBEEAARE
236,007,0007T (20194 = A R #8110,483,000
L) HABEEEENFEREER
F - AREKEEEEIB R RMRLER
FmA o WHERZEBERRELTLHIE
BE - AARERT MR AT KA 8
AR IE T RE B AT Ia S -

BREFBEGEMESRE - NP R A
SHHNE IR E B E MINE IR B E TR
BIBI10%M B R TEIR o ILRTE
200841 A1 B BA - WiEA R 2007
FI2A3BAEBMERF o ik B A b 8L 5h
BisEEMERERE AN E W -
B A] fE R M B RS AL - BLA
EEME BMAREAw - ALt - A%
B A & TR B R AL ZEH B
ARE2008F1 A1BREEENEFFTD
TR B I B TR o

20204 2019128318 » AEEW
ERLER B A BB A R A
MIEMB A RE D ZFETEAMS B TERD
RERRETERIE - EFRE  %Z5H
BRARRARBRTKRAEEDIKZSE
AF| o 72020128318 » BRFERA
H BB A BRI E B B 3 A o b
RELEHBEAENEREERENA
AER#2,335111,0007C (20194 : ARE
1,826,898,0007T) ©

32. DEFERRED TAX (Continued)

The Group had unutilised tax losses arising in Mainland China of
RMB236,007,000 as at 31 December 2020 (2019: RMB110,483,000)
that can be carried forward for five years from the year in which
the losses arose for offsetting against future taxable profits of the
companies in which the losses arose. Deferred tax assets had not
been recognised in respect of these losses as it was not considered
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the tax
losses could be utilised.

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the
foreign investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The
requirement is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings
after 31 December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied
if there is a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction
of the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 5%.
The Group is therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends
distributed by those subsidiaries established in Mainland China in
respect of earnings generated from 1 January 2008.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Group's
subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion of the
Directors, it is not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute
such earnings in the foreseeable future. The aggregate amount of
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries
in Mainland China for which deferred tax liabilities have not been
recognised was approximately RMB2,335,111,000 as at 31 December
2020 (2019: RMB1,826,898,000).

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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33. & 33. SHARE CAPITAL
gy Shares
20204 20194
2020 2019
AR%ET R ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
VEIE Authorised:
10,000,000,0008% & & EI & 10,000,000,000 ordinary shares of
00178 T2 & @A HK$0.01 each 90,141 90,141
EEITRHRE Issued and fully paid:
5,254,000,000(20194F : 100) 5,254,000,000 (2019: 100) ordinary
f& =R EE0.017E T 2 Ak shares of HK$0.01 each 47,972 —
AR FEE M T A summary of movements in the Company’s share capital is as

follows:

ZEREE EEREE
Nominal
Number of value of
ordinary shares ordinary shares
ARETT
RMB'000
VERE ¢ Authorised:
201951 H9H At 9 January 2019 (date of @)
(sEfAk sz B E7) incorporation) 38,000,000 331
72019123118 Increase in authorised share (b)
VE TE BRI B capital on 11 December 2019 9,962,000,000 89,810
M2019%F12 8318 » At 31 December 2019, 1 January
2020F1 A1H & 2020 and 31 December 2020
2020912 A31H 10,000,000,000 90,141
20205 TR Annual Report 2020 179
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33. BE )

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

R (&) Shares (Continued)
28T
EERHE BBTRE RORE
Number of
ordinary
shares Issued Share
in issue capital premium Total
ARBTT ARBTT ARBTT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
BEITREE Issued and fully paid:
20191 A9A At 9 January 2019 (date of
(Gaiiava=Ei) incorporation) @) 1 - - -
2019834 27H Shares issued on 27 March 2019
BITRG (© 99 - - -
2019F 128318 & At 31 December 2019 and
202041818 1 January 2020 100 - - -
B EAT Capitalisation Issue () 4465899,900 40,776 (40,776) -
BATHARE] Issuance of new shares in
FRBEBRER, connection with the listing of
the Company (e) 788,100,000 7,196 1,381,584 1,388,780
e Share issue expenses - - (66,535) (66,535)
2019F K5 RIRR B 2019 special dividend - (212,159) (212,159)
20205124318 At 31 Decernber 2020 5,254,000,000 47972 1,062,114 1,110,086

* SEONARES00TT © *
Htet -
@  ARRR2019F1 AoBRHSEE M (@)

AL - RTE IR A380,0008 7T - BAYE
ER00EI - REFMAYBE - &
AR BT — R A o

(b)  BER2019F 12811 HiEEMRE RS (b)
R AR E)SBISREESN,962,000,000
BEREBENEITHLT @M - BET
J% 75 £3 380,000 7T 3 il % 100,000,000/
5T e

(© 2019938278  RIBFFEHE - 98 %1 (©
& G A%0.017 T B EBAR o B Al 8 K 2
OTFER(—HHRBELEL2EHRSE
I AE) RIERIERBRA B (HERE] -
—EHEBRZLTE2ERENRRF) o

180

Notes:

SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited

The amount is less than RMB500.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 9 January
2019 with authorised share capital of HK$380,000 at par value of
HK$0.01. On its date of incorporation, 1 ordinary share was allotted and
issued by the Company.

Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed on 11 December
2019, the authorised share capital of the Company was increased
from HK$380,000 to HK$100,000,000 by the creation of an additional
9,962,000,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each.

On 27 March 2019, pursuant to the Reorganisation, 98 ordinary shares
and 1 ordinary share of HK$0.01 each were allotted and issued to
Wui Ying (@ company wholly-owned by Mr Lun RX) and Wui Shing
Holdings Limited (“Wui Shing”, a company wholly-owned by Ms Chan),
respectively.
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A7 (&)
Wt - (#)

d  RIER2019F 12811 HiBBHRE RS
2 AREEEBERNMEARBRG R
BIRAEBR%844,658,9998 T AIE & I
T A% it 2% K2 38174 $£4,465,899,000 0% &
BRIWIZEEARY AHE (B
171) « BAR(LEEITE R 20201 168
AR -

e MABRARBRMORBRFLETmE -
BRER1BEBTNERETEREE
0.0178 7T A9788,100,000% ¥7 L 5BA% + IR
SREBAETE AT )1,521,033,000
BT (FEE N AR 1,388,780,0007T) °
R BB Z FTRIAR 9 820201 A 16
AFEAETEE -

BRE

KRR A B AR A B AR IR BB AR M 5 814X
HzBREZFBAN T B RRME
340

i
KRABIR2019F Ky —HE R E
(TEXAFAEERERERS]  UA
AEBEERSKINELERNE &R
SEERHEBMEED BRARABRE
AIEBIRIERTE 2 A B2 HEERIERD
REERALEEEMES -

BRAFEERTERER 87 2019F 48
6B AR - WR2020F1 B16B & °

33.

34.

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Shares (Continued)
Notes: (Continued)

(d) Pursuant to the shareholders’ resolution passed on 11 December 2019,
the Company shall allot and issue a total of 4,465,899,900 ordinary
shares, credited as fully paid at par, to Wui Ying and Wui Shing by way
of capitalisation of the sum of HK$44,658,999 standing to the credit
of the share premium account of the Company (the “Capitalisation
Issue”). The Capitalisation Issue became unconditional on 16 January
2020.

(e) In connection with the listing of the shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange, 788,100,000 new ordinary shares of HK$0.01
each were issued at a price of HK$1.93 per share for a total cash
consideration, before expenses, of HK$1,521,033,000 (equivalent to
RMB1,388,780,000). Dealings in the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange commenced on 16 January 2020.

Share options

Details of the Company’s share option scheme and the share options
granted under the share option scheme are included in note 34 to
the financial statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company adopted a share option scheme in 2019 (the “Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and
rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group's operation. Eligible participates of the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme include the Company’s directors and other employees of the
Group.

The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on 6 April 2019
and expired on 16 January 2020.
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34. MEBxiEt® ) 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

FEARAYXNEEREAEEARKE I T The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 10 days
% BREBRENEHIINELHAAE from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
1ORAER - ERLBERENTTEIS of RMBT1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the granted
HENE—ERBEERFRRrEEE A E options commences from the respective first vesting date up to the
BEBRIE - REBEERARESAERE fifth anniversary date of it. The exercise price of each option granted
RSO ERECITEEREAR under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme shall be 50% to 70% of the
KwEEE(B1202051 8168 &1.93/87T) final offer price (i.e. HK$1.93 on 16 January 2020).

HI50%Z 70% °

BRI AR T 158 AR IR R B3 Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
RERREgHELRE - vote at shareholders’ meetings.
FARBERAAAEEE—RETE The following share options were outstanding under the Pre-IPO
BARITE Z BRENT Share Option Scheme during the year:
20205 2019F
2020 2019
IR INFEF
e BREE 1L B RS
Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price  share options exercise price share options
BT T BT Tk
HK$ ‘000 HKS ‘000
MIAR At 1 January 1.1486 79,500 - -
HiNR Granted during the year = = 1.1486 87,900
HRg I Forfeited during the year 1.3224 (8,950) 13510 (8,400)
M12H31H8 At 31 December 1.1265 70,550 1.1486 79,500
B ZE 2020 &2019F 12831HIEFE - No share options were exercised during the years ended 31
MR AR T(E - December 2020 and 2019.
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34. MERRHERT R (= 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
RIERR - WRITEZBREZTE The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options
BRITHENT - outstanding as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
BREHE TEE TEH
Number of share options Exercise price  Exercise period
20204 20196 BB
2020 2019 HKS per share
39,100,000 39,100,000 09650 16-01-2020%F 15-01-2025
16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025
7,700,000 10,350,000 1.2545  16-01-2020&15-01-2025

16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025

11,700,000 12,900,000 13510 16-01-2020215-01-2025

16-01-2020 to 15-01-2025

- 1,200,000 13510 19-06-2020% 18-06-2025

19-06-2020 to 18-06-2025

1,000,000 1,000,000 13510 10-07-2020Z09-07-2025

10-07-2020 to 09-07-2025

1,100,000 1,100,000 13510 15-07-2020Z 14-07-2025

15-07-2020 to 14-07-2025

1,400,000 1,400,000 13510 17-07-2020Z16-07-2025

17-07-2020 to 16-07-2025

- 1,200,000 13510 07-10-2020Z06-10-2025

07-10-2020 to 06-10-2025

1,150,000 1,150,000 13510 31-10-2020Z30-10-2025

31-10-2020 to 30~10-2025

1,200,000 1,200,000 13510 18-11-2020%17-11-2025

18-11-2020 to 17-11-2025

- 1,100,000 13510 09-01-2021Z08-01-2026

09-01-2021 to 08-01-2026

1,400,000 3,000,000 13510  04-03-2021Z03-03-2026

04-03-2021 to 03-03-2026

1,600,000 1,600,000 13510 04-05-2021Z03-05-2026

04-05-2021 to 03-05-2026

1,600,000 1,600,000 13510 01-07-2021Z30-06-2026

01-07-2021 to 30-06-2026

1,600,000 1,600,000 13510  14-08-2021Z13-08-2026

14-08-2021 to 13-08-2026

70,550,000 79,500,000
HE2019F12A318LFE - BEMNE The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended
IR HE YA E R A KB 114,346,0007T (B 31 December 2019 was RMB114,346,000 (from RMB0.85 to RMB1.67
EAR®E0SSTTEARKE1677T) + B each), of which the Group recognised a share option expense of
REBPEZE2020F 124310 L FERE RMB33,774,000 (2019: RMB46,519,000) during the year ended 31
IR S A AR %33,774,0007T (2019 December 2020.

F: AR#46,5190007T) ©
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34. BEEEE 2

HE2019F12831BILFEE > FIRERN
NIREEENERE ATFERELH
MR —EARAEIT A WAt AR
IR M IR I MO AR R I MG » TR AT
FEREXME AR

34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the year
ended 31 December 2019 was estimated as at the date of grant using
a binomial model, taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the share options were granted. The following table lists
the inputs to the model used:

20194
2019

P& B (%) Dividend yield (%) 359-427
TEHRR 1R (%) Expected volatility (%) 38.90 — 40.34
47 [ B2 ) 2 (%) Risk-free interest rate (%) 150157
IR UK & (%) Forfeiture rate (%) 5

BRENEFHNENBE=ZFNE
SRE;E RUKAKRAREELENTER
= o TEHIM 0B [ BR (R AR LR IR AR S 1K
RAKBE - MERBERARLLE o

AEATERSEIASRLBRED
HAbA5Eh o

The expected life of the share options is based on the historical data
over the past three years and is not necessarily indicative of the
exercise patterns that may occur. The expected volatility reflects the
assumption that the historical volatility is indicative of future trends,
which may also not necessarily be the actual outcome.

No other feature of the share options granted was incorporated into
the measurement of fair value.

ESIERR AR AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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34. MERRHERT R () 34. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)
BkEsEIRAT The share option vesting method is as follows:

BRETESER
AR D 2
Be BT
Maximum
percentage of

underlying shares

in respect of

the options

Vesting date may be vested

PEBREEER(EEERE DS R BRNERRKEE 20%
EEREEREBERREEAF R BH

Atany time on or after the relevant vesting date (the “Relevant Vesting Date”) to the date
immediately before the first anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

RS ER A EEFEE AR ROERKERE 20%
ZEEEREERRE _ERE ATz BH

At any time on or after the date falling on the first anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to the
date immediately before the second anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

REEEE RS _EEF R E AR 2 ZOEARBHEE 20%
ERHEFBERABRE=[ARF 2B

Atany time on or after the date falling on the second anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to
the date immediately before the third anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

PAERERE B B = B F A8 B2 e EAFHEE 20%
KEEERE R RENERS ATz B

At any time on or after the date falling on the third anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to the
date immediately before the fourth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

PRAEREE B S MEEF A E B2 e EARSREE 20%
SR HERERAPERERF BRIz B

At any time on or after the date falling on the fourth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date to the
date immediately before the fifth anniversary of the Relevant Vesting Date

RBEHR BEBALAHABERE At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 70,550,000
ARERTE - AR AFERFAF70,550,00017 18] share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme.
RITEWERE - BBEARARBRFER The exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under
R BEOEHARITECERER the present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
B EE1770,550,000 8 AN B EESNE @ 70,550,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company and additional
g R BEINER AR (TR EITR AN AR share capital of RMB67,023,000 (equivalent to HK$79,477,000) (before
67,023,0007T (FBE $279,477,0007 7T) ° issue expense).

RZEVBREMLEDR  BREBKX At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
AHABEAERETE  ARAEE had 70,550,000 share options outstanding under the Pre-IPO Share
70,550,00017 i ARATEE < Bk i - AU(h 7R Option Scheme, which represented approximately 1.34% of the
NAIEBE#ITRNAI1.34% ° Company’s shares in issue as at the date.
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35. &l
FEENAEERATEENEESS
BENGOREHRLT -

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

186

EEBRBRRE

RIB B R BDE R A B AR SR P
BRAMASEEAMR - SHEBEN
BRRARPEAREEN - &
10%F) R 751 1 48 | 8 220K 78 2 PR fet
1 BEEREBARED A 50%
BN o RIEAERE P BUAAR K AR R A
BARMABERAAMEETR
B R E RSB AREHEER
S BT AR (R BUR HE 8R T
BAOR25%EMER) TR A
RERS B AN A - BAME
RREBENIK

aOHRE
EHFEREAREEAEENR
G

REARGOMNE LT ERAE
BB A DK

A B AR EROEEEEAD /JL'E
EASERRBEEARENE R
FEDRER ATHIR(E -

BR#E
$E .E’Jﬁ$f§%1ﬁ?§ﬂ&ﬁﬁiﬁ [

35. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles of
association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, each of
the relevant subsidiaries is required to appropriate 10% of its
net profits after tax, as determined under the PRC generally
accepted accounting principles, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant
PRC regulations and in the articles of association of the relevant
subsidiaries, the statutory surplus reserve may be used either
to offset losses, or to be converted to increase the share capital
provided that the balance after such conversion is not less
than 25% of the registered capital. The reserve cannot be used
for purposes other than those for which it is created and is not
distributable as cash dividends.

(b) Merger reserve

The merger reserve represents reserve arising pursuant to the
Reorganisation.

(c) Distribution to then equity owners of subsidiaries
upon the Reorganisation
Distribution to the then equity owners of subsidiaries
represents the consideration paid by the Group to the equity
owners in respect of the acquisition of subsidiaries pursuant to
the Reorganisation.

(d) Capital reserve

The Group's capital reserve represents the gain or loss arising
from the acquisition of non-controlling interests.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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36. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES WITH

MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The following table lists out details of the Group’s subsidiaries that
have material non-controlling interests (“NCI"). The summarised
financial information disclosed below are before any inter-company

Al ° eliminations.
RRESRBAE HEHS* RIKkHBEE
Dongguan Huijing Xichang
East Automobile Shugao*  Dongjiang Village Properties
20205 2019 2020 20205 20195
2020 2019 2020 2020 2019
ARETRn ARETT ARETrR AR¥Tr ARETx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
FERERB AL NCl percentage 59.2% 20% 60% 20% 2%
PEEEERERNER Profit/(loss) for the year
w5/ (E8) allocated to NC| (2,763) (143) 183,514 (719) (94)
RS BB R R Accumulated balances on NC|
RS at reporting date 95,627 5,045 188,483 144,461 10852
e Revenue = - 1,513,350 = -
BRZ Total expenses (6,206) (714)  (1,207,494) (3,596) (468)
EREHN/ (BB Profit/(loss) for the year (6,206) (714) 305,856 (3:596) (468)
FREEWA,/(BIE)EE  Total comprehensive income/
(loss) for the year (6,206) (714) 305,856 (3,596) (468)
MEBEE Current assets 316,453 329,347 577,581 1,108,086 773708
FNPEE Non-current assets 2 6 91 - -
mEBE Current liabilities (179,847) (304,127) (263,534) (385,781) (231,098)
E eI N=E Non-current liabilities - - = = -
BETHMERLSTMEFE  Net cash flows from operating
activities - 109 (569) (336) 259
RATHMBRALREFE  Net cash flows from investing
activities - - = - _
BETHMERESMEFE  Netcash flows from financing
activities 61,327 - - - -
BEFBLEBMEIMFE  Netincrease in cash and cash
equivalents 61,327 109 (569) (336) 259
* 2R RN E R o * The company was acquired during the year.
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37. ¥t 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

188

R2020F 128108 - REBEBIE=
FEIFEMHR —BITBHE - W
TEBEREHEREERAR(AER
£]) - HEB S RBINKIESB40%8K
B AEETHZEFWEELR
BB 75 R A8 B BT ARSI - RUEE
TEE  ZEFRREARKARERK
FEEMBAR - ZERBBELREEE
TERBEYEYERAERIEHYMEERER
%o RFWESENABEREAR®
AR ¥27,131,0007T ©

o

R20205F12H3H  AEBEE—-FZBT
E=FEN—EEBE LR —BITE
o W ERIR B K40%A8 % - Eitk -
REBIHRRE KNP BERLLEFD
ITIBPESIRE - RUIEERTE - RIRE K
KAEXEENIEZENBAGT - BRE
KEBEFHEAREMETRRIREHDE
EERY c REXKNEEREARERS
AR #13,841,0007T ©

On 10 December 2020, the Group entered into capital injection
agreements and acting in concert agreements with independent
third parties for the acquisitions of a 40% equity interest in each of
Xichang Shuxin Property Development Company Limited (“Xichang
Shuxin”), Xichang Shugao and Bazhou Yongzheng, pursuant to which
the Group can exercise control over the financial and operating
activities of these acquired companies. Upon the completion of
the acquisitions, these acquired companies became non-wholly-
owned subsidiaries of the Group. These acquired companies are
principally engaged in property development and the provision of
property management services in the PRC. The aggregate purchase
consideration for these acquisitions was in the form of cash of
RMB27,131,000.

On 3 December 2020, the Group entered into a capital injection
agreement and an acting in concert agreement with an independent
third party for the acquisition of 40% equity interest in Dongyuan
Changyong, pursuant to which the Group can exercise control over
the financial and operating activities of Dongyuan Changyong.
Upon the completion of the acquisition, Dongyuan Changyong
became a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group. Dongyuan
Changyong is principally engaged in property development and the
provision of property management services in the PRC. The purchase
consideration for Dongyuan Changyong was in the form of cash of
RMB13,841,000.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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37. XBEH» 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)
ZEEBNBERINABINEERE The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these entities
BHRFEET : as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

HEME BEMR FMNKE REEX @t
Xichang Xichang Bazhou Dongyuan
Shuxin Shugao Yongzheng Changyong Total
ARETT ARBTT ARBTTL AREFTT AREFTL
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
W BERZE  Property,plantand equipment 13 70 91 350 - 511
REME Investment properties 4 - - - 72938 72938
EXFRBEE Deferred tax assets kY, 2,000 12267 - - 14267
TRmE Properties under development 479,24 1,248,141 318545 - 2045910
BIEHEMERT  Completed properties
IE held for sale - - - 241,289 241,289
ECL G Trade receivables - - 2618 - 2618
BRFE - KR Prepayments, other
TEREMEE receivables and other assets 199,092 531,758 55,908 100,700 887458
BERASEEM  Cashand cashequivalents 49,850 20992 29,090 13332 113,264
EHENEH Trade payables (51815) (26,87) - (732) (78834)
EffERF0E k&  Other payables, deposits and
LESER accruals (192,078) (120,777) (423) (67,498) (380,776)
akaRE Contract liablities (460343) (1,640527) (358,125) (307,824) (2766819)
STRRTREMET  Interestbearing bank and
other borrowings - - - (9,900) (9,900)
BREREEE Deferred tax liabilties % (3,000) (12,825) (15969) (7,702 (3949)
BRTFEFIRMAH  Totalidentifiable net assets at
FIEEFERE fair value 23,000 12833 31,99 34,603 102430
iR Non-controlling interests (13,800 (7,700) (19,19) (20762) (614%9)
9,200 5133 12,798 13,841 40972
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37. ¥ES#» 37. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS (Continued)

BEMIE HEHE FMKIE REEX

Xichang Xichang Bazhou Dongyuan
Shuxin Shugao  Yongzheng  Changyong Total
ARETRL ARETR ARETRE ARETE ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
PARIVES T Satisfied by:
Be Cash 9,200 5133 12,798 13,841 40972

FRANEZEEENRERES N An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisitions of these

N entities is as follows:
EERE EHEHE FMNKE FREX 5
Xichang Xichang Bazhou Dongyuan
Shuxin Shugao  Yongzheng  Changyong Total
ARBTRE ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
RERE Cash consideration (9,200) (5133) (12798) (13841) (40972)
MRS RASEEM  Cash and cash equivalents
acquired 49,850 20992 29,090 13332 113,264

FAREEHEES  Netinflow of cash and cash
MENRERRSE equivalents included cash

190

BMRNFE flows from investing
activities

40,650 15859 16,292 509 72,292

RUE B &5 EKKEMmERE
R AFEDRABARE2618,0005T
M AR#887,458,0007C & FEIW & H
MEREZROENEES R AARE
2,618,0007T &2 A R #887,458,0007T °

BB AR - AR BEE E£2020F12H31
HIEFENKERZEWE QR FTER
B4R A 9 Bl A A R B 2,089,835,00070
N AR #5346,267,0007T °

WEHRENET  AEBRAFEDN
Wz B A #5 9 Bll A A R #65,153,233,000
TR A REE740,474,0007T °

The fair values of the trade receivables and other receivables as at the
date of acquisition amounted to RMB2,618,000 and RMB887,458,000,
respectively. The gross contractual amounts of trade receivables
and other receivables were RMB2,618,000 and RMB887,458,000,
respectively.

Since the acquisition, the Group's revenue and consolidated profit
contributed by these subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December
2020 were RMB2,089,835,000 and RMB346,267,000, respectively.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, the
revenue and the profit of the Group for the year would have been
RMBS5,153,233,000 and RMB740,474,000, respectively.

SESIERARRAE]  Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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38. IRERaRERME

(a)

(@)

(i)

FEHFBRERH

FRN - AEEBEEEBIASHE
ERYNFERAEEEREEREGE Y
IEIR &1L I Bl A A R85 2,494,000
JC(2019%F + AR ¥12,453,0007T) &
ANER#2,494,0007T (20194 : ARHE
12,453,0007T) °

R2019%F 128318 » AEBELERE
NFEEREBHFOREEEAR
#51,875,344,0007C © AR ARESE
EHRREE AT R R R IS A
EEENEE RS RFRE -

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Major non-cash transactions

i)

(ii)

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB2,494,000
(2019: RMB12,453,000) and RMB2,494,000 (2019:
RMB12,453,000), respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for office premises.

On 31 December 2019, the Group settled the amounts
due to directors and related parties in an aggregate
amount of RMB1,875,344,000 by offsetting against the
Group’s amounts due from directors and related parties
pursuant to the deed of assignments entered into
between the directors and the related parties.
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38. IFEHARERME® 38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) BMEEBELENREED (b)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing

activities

192

Pt Pt RE BT
ESRE BEAITE BEHIER R ER
Interest-
Amounts bearing
Amounts dueto  Loansfrom bank and
Lease dueto related related Senior other
liabilities directors parties parties notes  borrowings
ARETT ARETT AR%Tr ARETT ARETn AR%Tx
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
R019F1A18 At January 2019 4793 383,935 1427197 601,700 - 2,483,360
BT Interest expenses 463 - - - - -
Mg New leases 12453 - - - - -
BERSMEEL  Changes from financing
g2 cash flows (7119 (12173) 38757 389450 - (424350)
RMBARER#ESR  Distibutiontothe
HEADK then equity owners of
subsidiaries - 4001 - - - -
BREBEFHEZEM  Redassification of the
EET N balances to amounts due
to directors - (313321) (1,465,954) (991,150) - -
B3 AR Exchange realignment (218) - - - - -
BR2019F12A318 % At31December 2019and
200F1A1H 1 January 2020 10,372 62442 - - - 2,059,010
FERZ Interest expenses 331 - - - - -
oHE New leases 2494 - - - - -
WENBARHZ37)  Acquisition of subsidiaries
(note 37) - - - - - 9,900
BARSTREEL  Changesfromfinancing
S cash flows (6,307) (62442) - - 901,907 (172770
3T S Exchange realignment 407 - - - (30575) -
B2020F 128318 At 31 December 2020 7297 - - - 871,332 1,896,140
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38. IFERERERME = 38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)
(¢ HERSARLHAKE (c) Total cash outflow for leases
FFARESRERZHERESRNE The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of
BT - cash flows is as follows:
20204 20195
2020 2019
ARETT ARETIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BEEE Within financing activities 6,307 7,119
39. MBEIREE 39. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES
RIBERR AEBEEEUATREE The Group had the following financial guarantees as at the end of the
R reporting period:

20204 20194
2020 2019

i ARMTF T ARETT
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000

RAAEBYERFRMEA  Guarantees given to banks in

ZIBRE MR TR connection with mortgage
facilities provided to customers
of the Group's properties (@) 4,516,730 5,468,152
A mIGTFE R EIEHIFESE  Guarantees given to banks in
NAEHEFE MRTT connection with facilities
R granted to related companies
controlled by Mr Lun RX (b) - 113,600

4,516,730 5,581,752
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39.
e

(@)

194

mMEREEe

REEGETRITRAASEREHED
BRTIMEREPRENIRBRERME
& RIBERLHHER - WEPEOX
NIZBFR - AAEBEREEENE
PRISBITHAREERIBAS RAEME
RS R EIR o

RIE Lt g - HHEMELRTIRTE
REBEFNERR  HREFEN
XNRBFIRR  RITEREELE
FHE - WHEIB RIS SR IRy
5

AEEEMERB AR D ABREERE
BEEMENEHRECMEMBRES

I BEASZFPHEEHRENER =
MER -

RAEE  AEBETERSETAEE
REHERTMETFPNZBREME
HROEEERELEANENEE - £%
RE - WEHON - HEAYEAN A ER
FEERAEBRERBRIBEREAS R
ERTRERTFLE R ER - AUt E LA B
BERELESRMEE -

R2019F 128310 » AEBE R Fieln
BRAEES NS TRBARMIRITER
REER - SRITERINABIRELE
UAEEBANETMELSR YTk
IR AR -

REETEEMBERERERS QR
TRAEBR  BERTEAEE FEE
IREERHA AR - AP R G RER
SEFTEESHE -

BEEZRA ARENRERERAOAYT
ERVIEHERARBL TEKR - BEER
R BTENNAREEM - Bt 3
BRPBREAPHARERS -

39. FINANCIAL GUARANTEES (Continued)

Notes:

@)

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities
granted by certain banks to the customers of the Group's completed
properties held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee
arrangements, in case of default on mortgage payments by the
customers, the Group is responsible for repaying the outstanding
mortgage principals together with any accrued interest and penalties
owed by the defaulted customers to those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged
to the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans, upon default on
mortgage repayments by these customers, the banks are entitled
to take over the legal titles and will realise the pledged properties
through open auction.

The Group's guarantee period starts from the start of grant of the
relevant mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration
of property ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will
generally be available within one to two years after the customers take
possession of the relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the year in
respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted
to customers of the Group's completed properties held for sale. In
the opinion of the Directors, in case of default on payments, the net
realisable value of the related properties would be sufficient to repay
the outstanding mortgage loans principals together with any accrued
interest and penalties and accordingly, no financial liability has been
made in connection with these guarantees.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group provided guarantees in respect of
bank loans granted to certain related companies controlled by Mr Lun
RX. The respective bank loans were also secured by pledges of certain
properties owned by Mr Lun RX or by the Group and were guaranteed
by Mr Lun RX.

In determining whether financial liabilities should be recognised in
respect of the relevant financial guarantee contracts, the Directors
exercise judgement in the evaluation of the probability of a resource
outflow that will be required and the assessment of whether a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

In the opinion of the Directors, the fair values of the financial guarantee
contracts of the Group are insignificant at initial recognition and the
directors consider that the possibility of the default of the parties
involved is remote, and accordingly, no financial liability has been
recognised in the financial statements.
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40. HEEH 40. PLEDGE OF ASSETS
EEAAEBRITREMERUARELE Details of the Group's assets pledged for the Group’s bank and other
ERNEERBZFE  SRMBHREN borrowings and senior notes are included in notes 18, 19, 20, 29 and
FE18 1920 29830 ° 30 to the financial statements.

41. ik 41. COMMITMENTS
REBRREBARER AT EARIE The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the

reporting period:

2020%F 20194
2020 2019
AR TR AREFIT
RMB’000 RMB'000
BERTH B R B - Contracted, but not provided for:
EEME Properties under development 1,339,627 1,371,239
ERREME Investment properties under

construction 122,520 119,832

BRWERBATEE i Purchase of land through acquisition
of subsidiaries 491,790 840,108

1,953,937 2,331,179
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42, REBAE XS 42. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(a) BREEHRERSEMAZZIN » RE (a) In addition to the transactions detailed elsewhere in the
ERREERATEBIRS financial statements, the Group had the following transactions

with related parties during the year:

20204 2019%F
2020 2019
ARET T ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000

flm i Se BRI A A Companies controlled by Mr Lun RX:
VTR RIEE Property management services fee* 5,099 2,236
BERBMY Management fee expenses 9,400 7,538
ERNEHREE Interior decoration services fee* 17,877 26,277
REERK AR Construction costs - 23,212
WAEHERSE Office rental expenses 2,248 2,248
FEFXZ Interest expense = 53,741
ERBIA Management fee income 405 430
ABABRY Consulting fee expense 3,505 -
HEMRY Selling expense 3,100 -
KERY Operating expense 3,400 -

fmimiE o E BB AR © Companies controlled by a family
member of Mr Lun RX:

FREERR Construction costs = 323
BEME Joint venture:

FEWA Interest income 16,653 26,642
ZERSGDREBERSEE X 2 MHEMFTR These transactions were carried out in accordance with terms
7 SRR R R AT © and conditions similar to those offered by the major suppliers

of the Group.
* ZEMEFZGEH ETRAFE14AE * These related party transactions constituted continuing
FIREZIFEMERS ° connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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AR =
(b) XEBETESEASHHEHE

FE o RMREYEN

42.

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b) Compensation of key management personnel of

the Group

20194
2019
AREFIT
RMB'000

20204
2020

AR®BTT
RMB’000

Salaries, allowances and benefits in

kind 14,672 17,209

1B TEAL Discretionary bonuses 20,517 3,179

VARG 4 B BB AR I T St Equity-settled share option expense 15,960 29,382

RIKSFT SR Pension scheme contributions 179 547
TNTFEEEBEAEN Total compensation paid to key

HEBsE management personnel 51,328 50317

BANESHMAE — P BENY
B M LS -

RENBSHEMTIA

R2020F %2019 128318 » BRIEQAF
Bt \BERMEaREERATEFE
SN REENFEeREERBEEA
REHEKNAIENeREERSMB

f& °

EMIANLFERLFEE
®

20204 F22019F12A31H » KEEE S
BT AMKREEGIKRAFET ABED
PREERBEZBINEEQNTESE
5 -

BEEENE ERRE-RAELER
FEMRIR - B HRUBR - 5t ATAN R
B HEMERFEREMEENS R
BEE R MkReFEY  BEHENE
FoRFARMENRENEREE B
Wize REFTER  FHERITREME
KAV ER 3 LA Ko FE A5 B S5 SR TR ¢ B HA HA
RE&RE  ZETANQTERALREE
& e

43.

44,

Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8
to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, other than the financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss which are measured at fair value, all
financial assets and liabilities of the Group were financial assets and
financial liabilities at amortised cost, respectively.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the carrying amounts of the
Group's financial instruments, other than financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and senior notes, reasonably approximate to
their fair values.

Management has assessed that the fair values of receivable from
a joint venture, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, cash and cash
equivalents, trade payables, financial liabilities included in other
payables, deposits received and accruals, the current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings and amounts due to
directors approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short term maturities of these instruments.
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44, EMTABHLTFERLAFERE 44. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

198

. ED)
AEEeRMTAAFESBRERER
LR S EOPNGI S o= =08
FoARMBEHEEAEREMBEE
o NEREAE  RAMBHESE
TAMBEEHETHN - WREHE
RANTEHALE - FEEROERE
B E B -

MASERGE BRI ERAILIEN
ATEFEEFEEQATFTENEER
A& - FFBIRTT R E {5 & JERDHR 6
SPHEBESREQNFERE  YES
EREIR -BAEBATERARE
897,895,0007T ' WHEET AFE14

THEEMNBENAFERBEBRRST
ZENERR S CREFBFRHERIN)
FRIRBTANSEAR -

THTDERBRR T RIE-EF AFE

BRI REMEE ZNBIT»OA
FEESBIZEUER - EERE &H
PR BRI R DA E AT Al 3t TR IR 2 BLIR
KERIEEAR KRB R EFE © 12020
FEN2019F128318  AEBBASEH
FRERITREMEE 2 RELORRE T
HATEKX - BEfBRITREMEETERN
RO 2 ATFELBEEMERS °

EHRARE Z 2 FETIER TS RE
BE -FLMESREZAFENESB
HERERRZEERBEREES
EEHEQVE REEHABRFEELE
E o ARREZRA > BEERMAE
2 st A FE GE ARG MBI R)
RAFEHBES G AR BEE
AAHmERREREEZHEE -

OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the finance manager
is responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The corporate finance
team reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting
date, the corporate finance team analyses the movements in the
values of financial instruments and determines the major inputs
applied in the valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by
the chief financial officer.

For the Group’s assets and liabilities not measured at fair value in the
consolidated statement of financial position but for which the fair
value is disclosed, the carrying amounts of the non-current portion
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximated to their
fair values and were determined as Level 3, and the fair values of the
senior notes were RMB897,895,000 and were determined as Level 1.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included
at the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a
current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or
liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the
fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.
The Group'’s own non-performance risk for interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings as at 31 December 2020 and 2019 was assessed
to be insignificant and the fair values of the non-current portion of
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts.

The fair values of the listed equity investments are based on their
quoted market prices. The fair values of unlisted fund investments are
based on adjusted net assets approach by adjusting the book value
of assets and liabilities of the investees to their fair value. The directors
of the Company believe that the estimated fair values resulting from
the valuation technique, which are recorded in the consolidated
statement of financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in profit or loss, are reasonable, and that they
were the most appropriate values at the end of the reporting period.

ESIERR AR /AR Huijing Holdings Company Limited
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44, M T AN LAFERLTF{EE 44. FAIRVALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY

#’ oz OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
LT RELIMESKERENSERTA Set out below is a summary of the significant unobservable inputs to
B ABBRME - the valuation of unlisted fund investments:

fR{E 2 1l BEATAEENAYE

Valuation technique Significant unobservable inputs
FLETMESEKE KRARFEEE WIRERBIZEERBEN 405,514
Unlisted fund investments  Adjusted net asset approach ~ BREIEABEEZEHE N FE

(AR¥TT)

Book value of assets and liabilities of
the investees adjusted to their fair

value (RMB'000)
WIRERBEMEERBEZ AT EIE A 1% increase/decrease in the fair values of assets and liabilities of
A% BEBSEETESIREN the investees would result in an increase/a decrease in the fair value
NERE DR AR E4,055,0007T © of the unlisted fund investments of RMB4,055,000.
RERN - AFEFEESE=HHNE I The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 during the
N year are as follows:
20204
2020
ARET T
RMB'000
M1ATH At 1 January -
NE Additions 359,428
RIBRRMERIE GTAEAM Gains recognised in the statement of profit or loss
WA included in other income 46,086
M12A318 At 31 December 405,514
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4. EMITAMALATFERLTFEE 44.
]z
NEEER
TRERAEESRMIA AFEHE
B -

BRAFLEFENEE -
7A2020512831H

AR®T
RMB’000

RATEETAEEZ  Financial assets at fair value

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY
OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy
of the Group's financial instruments:

Assets measured at fair value:
As at 31 December 2020

EATHER A TEFTE

Fair value measurement using

AERBME EATHE EXTAUHEE
Z¥E WA RS LTPN ¢
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(B—#&%) (B=4) (B=8)
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

WEREE through profit or loss
- WA - Listed equity investments,
EAFEE at fair value 89,324 = = 89,324
- HEmESKE - Other fund investments,
EAYE at fair value = = 405,514 405,514
89,324 - 405,514 494,838

MR2019F 128318 » AEBE I E LR
NEEFENSREE © BR2020F K
2019F 12 A3 B ER AT EFENS
BhAE o

HE2020F K2019F 128318 IEEE -
CRHEERCHAEHMERE L KES
R EEBINATETE  NESE
ASBEHE = -

The Group did not have any financial assets measured at fair value
as at 31 December 2019 and no financial liabilities measured at fair
value as at 31 December 2020 and 2019.

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, there were
no transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level
2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets and
financial liabilities.
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45. &Rt EBEEE B RR R

AEENFESHTABRFEASRITR
HpfER  BEEHNEHRURRS KR
EBY - ZFERMIANTIZANE
RASENREETEEES - A5E
BZEHEMEREERARE  WESHE
WKL EZENER - TEERELR
RRERT -

AEBEcHMITAMELNTIERRBRE
MERER  EERREREBESRER
EERTTRESAEBRRNEER
R ARABMEHN T -

AR @b
AEBAPASOTSENEEBRRE - =
EW LB MRM T 20 A LB A
BIRITREAMER - REELEFEBIT
AT AR ERER - AEERA
FRBRITRR R EMERE RN BK
o

R20208F 128318 - MERITREAE
FRF AL N R 1% B B HAth 2 AR
B A RSB KRG (BRI &
ERFERR)EBZEETNTER
AN A R 4,233,0007T °

EERE

AEEEFIERR - FHEEZREESRT
AR ERBRLENEORRES) - ER
TRTAEERRBMBERELEZEAN
g -

BEeEBRFLEEND R
TEREFR12AINARBEALEBEEFEER
KMETHEEEZRMAZN&SE
EE % (FRIER M BABZK A TIE
BENA]ENISHE R - B RITY LAse BR & BHE
B - ARFEENDLR -

20209F 12831H 31 December 2020

45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

AND POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, balances with directors and cash and
cash equivalents. The main purpose of these financial instruments
is to raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group has various
other financial assets and liabilities such as trade receivables and
trade payables, which arise directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The directors review
and agree policies for managing each of these risks and they are
summarised below.

Interest rate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 29 to the financial statements. The Group
does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate
risk. The Group manages its interest cost using variable rate bank
borrowings and other borrowings.

At 31 December 2020, if the interest rate of bank and other
borrowings had increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables
held constant, the profit before tax of the Group (assuming no
capitalisation of interest expenses), through the impact on floating
rate borrowings, would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB4,233,000.

Credit risk

The Group has established a policy to perform the assessment of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition, by considering the change in the risk of
default occurring over the remaining life of the financial instrument.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December.
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45, ERABREERARRBE ® 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES

202

EEREBRRFERNDRE)
FEdMeBATREENBREE -

72020128318

RE-RAELEHN

Receivable from a joint

AND POLICIES (continued)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)

The amounts presented are gross carrying amounts for financial
assets.

As at 31 December 2020

12f8A
RHEERE
12-month
ECLs

2HRBEEER

Lifetime ECLs
H3IRE

[

F2RER b5 % CH
Simplified
approach

AR¥TR
RMB'000

Total
ARETT
RMB’000

Stage 1

AR¥TT
RMB'000

Stage 2
ARETR
RMB'000

Stage 3
AR¥TR
RMB'000

FEWRIR venture 258,121 = = = 258,121
B HRUER R Trade receivables = = = 56,760 56,760
SAFEMFE - £ Financial assets included

WHEREMEED in prepayments, other

PREE receivables and other

assets 155,843 - - - 155,843

XRHRE Restricted cash 386,855 = = = 386,855
ReRREEEY Cash and cash equivalents 1,696,868 = = - 1,696,868
2,497,687 - - 56,760 2,554,447
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45 EHAREERARRBE ® 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

EeRBRFERNIRE Maximum exposure and year-end staging (Continued)
2019%12A31H As at 31 December 2019

128 A
BHEEESR HEEER
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs

FEER O By F3MRER Lk @bz
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
ARETT ARET ARETR ARETT ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

RE—REELEN Receivable from a joint

R venture 492,149 - - - 492,149
B HRNER Trade receivables - - - 112,806 112,806
HABENTE  HEfE  Financial assets included

WFREREMEER in prepayments, other

SRBE receivables and other

assets 40,565 - - - 40,565
XEHHEE Restricted cash 276,304 - - - 276,304
Re kA% EY Cash and cash equivalents 452 464 - - - 452,464
1261482 - - 112806 1374288
EIREF SRR AR ATRIT B Management makes periodic collective assessments for financial
[ U3 Iﬁﬁﬁmﬁﬁmiﬁﬂﬁﬁ $E assets included in prepayments, other receivables and other
15 £ 45 H R0 8% OB 1 A8 B A B RT 1 assets as well as individual assessments on the recoverability of
H M fEUGRIBAY Al Y [al 14 o REEZ12 other receivables based on historical settlement records and past
& B FEH I EE B R ATENRIEA experience. The Group recognises an allowance for financial assets
H b e W EkIE K E A ﬁ?ﬁ’]%pﬁéﬁ@%& included in prepayments, other receivables and other assets based
- WRLATE M R B EER (0 A)#E on 12-month ECLs and adjusts for forward-looking macroeconomic
THRE - data, if any.
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45, ERABREERARRBE ® 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

REBESER Liquidity risk

REEKEERRFEENITFBUOR - The Group's objectives are to maintain a prudent financial policy,
HERBBREERRBESE  UH to monitor liquidity ratios against risk limits and to maintain a
VESESHE  BRASBEAEREH contingency plan for funding to ensure that the Group maintains
ReENENERBHESTE - sufficient cash to meet its liquidity requirements.
rEEemBEUEHNRMEREReRE The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end of
REE(BFIEE QN EIIL R E IR the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted cash
BEFMEAENT B RERE R flows (including interest payments computed using contractual rates,
BWEEEER WRAEE]EEEN based on rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
MxFEHEAT : earliest date that the Group could be required to repay, is as follows:

—£R H=E
REX RE=F IFER At
Within one Inthe
year or In the third to
on demand second year fifth years Total
ARBTR ~ ARMTR  AR®TR  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
B HERIRR Trade payables 1,389,669 277,233 72,049 1,738,951
HiENFE - B Other payables, deposits
ReREGTER received and accruals 492,289 = = 492,289
HERE Lease liabilities 5,507 1,972 = 7,479
HERTREMER Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 992,054 231,226 1,000,931 2,224,211
BERE Senior notes 980,248 = = 980,248
3,859,767 510,431 1,072,980 5,443,178
ERPRSBER: Financial guarantees
issued:
BREREB W39 Maximum amount
guaranteed (note 39) 4,516,730 = = 4,516,730
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45, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

—F R
BEX
Within one
year or In the
on demand second year fifth years
ARETTT ARETT AREFT AREFT
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ER TS Trade payables 1433818 128,009 20,809 1,582,636
HAERTFIE - BYC  Other payables, deposits
Re METER received and accruals 197,282 - - 197,282
gHaE Lease liabilities 5,709 4,663 - 10372
[EREZHIE Amounts due to directors 62,442 - - 62,442
TESRITREMER  Interest-bearing bank and
other borrowings 1,400,024 565,035 294877 2,259,936
3,099,275 697,707 315,686 4,112,668
BRHMOPBERR . Financial guarantees issued:
BEEREBWF39) Maximum amount
guaranteed (note 39) 5,581,752 - - 5,581,752
EARER Capital management

AEBEAEENTEBRR/RELE
BRFFEKLENREN RRFFRRENEARL
R PXHEEBREREAMRRE
-

AEETEEALEE  THELERBR
B EHEELAE - AEERSEH
BEBRERMAOKRE « MBREREES
BT AT AR E RN - A&
EMNEAEREBE  BERIERFRRER
2020%F K 201912 A31H IEFE A #Ek

= e

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and to
maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares.
No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for
managing capital during the years ended 31 December 2020 and
2019.
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45, ERABREERARRBE ® 45. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES
AND POLICIES (continued)

EXREERREE) Capital management (Continued)
REBEFERFEEBGELEAIRNEEK The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which is net
B FRER AR BRR) EITER « &5 debt divided by the total equity of the Group. Net debt includes
FREBER BRITREMENR - BEAR interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, senior notes and lease
BREEBGERRERESEEBMUR liabilities less cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash. The
ZRHEEE  RMmERARENEEAR gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:
tEmT
20204 20194
2020 2019
ARETT ARBT T
RMB’000 RMB'000
FHERIT REMMER (A E29) Interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings (note 29) 1,896,140 2,059,010
BRER (B 7130) Senior notes (note 30) 871,332 -
HEBE Lease liabilities 7,297 10372
B IRENBEEEEY Less: Cash and cash equivalents (1,696,868) (452,464)
o XREIR S Less: Restricted cash (386,855) (276,304)
&5 %5 Net debt 691,046 1340614
B Total equity 3,829,636 1,622,624
FEEAMGBLX Net gearing ratio 18% 83%
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46. FLT|MFRAER 46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY
R|ER - ARAIHBRAKRER D Information about the statement of financial position of the
™ Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

20204 20195
2020 2019
ARE TR ARETTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
ERBEE NON-CURRENT ASSET
R—REREBARNRE Investment in a subsidiary —* -
mEBEE CURRENT ASSETS
BEAVEFAEENSRIEE Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 155,476 -
TERFRIA - Efth & YURIE f2 Prepayments, other receivables and other
HEMEE assets 66,738 -
FEW & B A R 5RIE Amounts due from group companies 1,639,583 -
ReERBSEEY Cash and cash equivalents 2,656 -
MEEEEE Total current assets 1,864,453 -
=Y CURRENT LIABILITIES
HEMEMAFIAE EliRe Rk Other payables, deposits received and
fEsTE M accruals 47,354 -
BEEE Senior notes 871,332 -
mENBERRE Total current liabilities 918,686 -
MENVE EFE NET CURRENT ASSETS 945,767 -
BEELERTEBER TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 945,767 -
BEFE Net assets 945,767 -
fEm EQUITY
B ETIRA Issued capital 47,972 —
E 1) Reserves (Note) 897,795 -
R Total equity 945,767 -
* SREORARESS00TT - * The amount is less than RMB500.
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46. FTFMBRRAEF @ 46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)
Ktet - Note:
REBRBHENAT : A summary of the Company's reserves is as follows:

ktEE  BRERE EXRDRE 2itER

Exchange
Share  Share option fluctuation  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses
ARETT  ARETR  AREFT  ARETR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 ‘ )0
1201951 A9B (R B H) At9 January 2019 (date of incorporation) - - - -
BRERRIEERLE Loss and total comprehensive loss for the period - - - (46,519) (46519)
NREEERERER S Equity-settled share option arrangements - 46,519 - - 46,519
R019% 128318 R220EIA1B At31 December 2019and 1 lanuary 2020 - 46519 - #6519 -
ERERRZABRLE Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - (82363) (115,730) (198,093)
RAMERL BT Capitalisation issue of shares (40,776) - - - (40,776)
BRI Issue of new shares 1,381,584 - - - 1,381,584
D OEGLE Share issue expenses (66,535) - - - (66,535)
DU A S R REZ Equity-settled share option arrangements - 29521 - 4253 33774
20195 HHIRE 2019 special dividend (212,159) - - - (212,159)
R2020%12R318 At 31 December 2020 1,062,114 76,040 (82,363) (157,.996) 897,795
47. HtEMHERE 47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SRR N 2021 F3 A5 A EE =g E The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
RERETIE - the board of directors on 25 March 2021.
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